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RECORD OF EVIDENCE TENDERED BEFORE THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE DIrEcT TAXES

(AMENDMENT) Bii, 1973,

Thursday, the 17th January, 1974 from 10.20 to 12.30 hours.
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Shri H. G. Paranjpe—Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES EXAMINED
Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry, New Delhi.

Spokesmen:
1. Shri Charat Ram—President.

2. Shri A. K. Jain—Chairman, Taxation Sub-Committee,

8. Shri Harishankar Singhania
4. Shri O. P. Vaish
5. Shri G. L. Bansal

(The witnesses were called in and they took their seats)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Charat Ram,
I must draw your attention to the
Direction of the Speaker of the Lok
Sabha which direction governs the
evidence tendereq before this Com-
mittee, The direction is that evidence
that you give is to be treated as pub-
lic and is liable to be published unless
you specifically desire that al] or any
part of the evidence tendered by you
is to be treated as confidential. Even
if you desire all or any part of your
evidence to be treateq as confidential,
such evidence is liable to be made
available to Members of Parliament.
Please proceed.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: With your
permission, Mr. Chairman, 1 would
like to make a few opening observa-
tions. We are thankful to you for
giving us this opportunity to meet
you and express our viewpoint on
some of the more important aspects
pertaining to the Direct Taxes (Am-
endment) Bill of 1973.

We would like to commence by
welcoming generally the Provisions of
the proposed Bill inasmuch as they
constitute an overall improvement
over the subsisting situation for the
development of production, develop-
ment of research and development of
backward areas. Our observations
would, therefore, be not with an ap-
proach of being critical, in any sense,
of the proposed Bill, but basically
from the polnt ‘of view of the effect
that should be sought to be achieved
in the maximisation of production

and investment in the country. Our
comments would, therefore, be not
from the traditional taxation angle
but with a focus on production and
investment.

The Fifth National plan hag been
tabled before Parliament. The view
of the Federation has been that the
plannel rate of growth of 54 per cent
is inadequate to provide the people
with any noticeable increase in their
economic welfare. We have hagq the
opportunity of having meetings with
Government for discussing how the
production and investment targets,
set out in the corporate sector in the
Fifth National Plan, could be achie-
ved.

With this background we would like
to take your time in deliberating on
those clauses of the proposed Bill
which are concerned with initial de-
preciation ang development of back-
ward areas.

The necessity of devising an effec-
tive mechanism which would provide
enterprises with adequate, what may
be called, industrial assets replacement
finance in the face of continually es-
calating costs has been appreciated
by the government for over two de-
cades now by succesive Finance Minis-
ters. It ig clear that a depreciation
provision which provides for replace-
ment of assets only to the extent of
original costs after ten years or more
is totally inadequate. This problem
of providing to industries industrial



ried not only India but most of the
other -countries as well, and all of
them have devised one or the other
mechanism Yor meeting the situation.
“The ‘problem of providing adequate
industrial assets replacement finance
thas become acute in the last few years
and bids to become worse in the com-
ing years on account of the steep es-
caldation of costs of plant and machi-
nery. This problem faces the na-
tional enterprises across the board,
whether these belong to the State
sector or the cooperative sector or
the private sector. Clearly, neither
the free market price situation nor
the formulae on which controlled
prices are based are able to resolve
the problem. And certainly Govern-
ment cannot afford any creeping-sick-
ness to overtake its business enter-
prices for lack of adequate replace-
ment finance. This is the background
in which we would like to discuss the
adequacy or otherwise of the initial
depreciation allowance provisions of
the proposed Bill.

The initial depreciation provisions
are presumably intended to provide
some manner of relief consequent on
the withdrawal of development re-
bate provision. Unfortunately the
new provision is entirely inadequate;
the total depreciation allowance is
still within the bounds of original
costs and not of replacement costs
of asséts. In the past years a num-
ber of fiscal incentives have been cur-
tailed by the government such as tax
credit certificate scheme, dilution of
tax holiday benefits to new under-
takings, omission of section 801 and
withdrawal of development rebate.
And these have successively made the
position of providing industrial as-
sets replacement finance more criti-
cal. It is our suggestion that the Fifth
National plan targets of production
ang investment would be more reliab-
1y achievable if there was an insti-
tution of some scheme by whatever
name called and in whatever shape
of form which would provide ade-
quate replacement flnance, and in

costs of assets, the 125 per cent basis
of development rbeate system would
now be inadequate, and it should be
somewhere nearer 150 per cent or
more.

The industrial assets replacement
finance needs of industry are univer-
sal, and the tax structure of most
countries in the world takes care of
this problem, at least partially, by
various ways sucdn as revaluation of
assets, additional depreciation, ete.

A connected aspect of the proposed
initial depreciation allowance is that
this facility would be available only
to a few restricted industries. Clear-
ly, the facility of assets replacement
finance is necessary for a larger num-
ber of industries which are capital
intensive anq where the investment
costs of industries have been rising
by leaps and bounds. Even the so-
called small scale industrial entre-
preneurs are facing similar problems.
It is our suggestion, therefore, that
the coverage of industries for initial
depreciation allowance should be con-
siderably more extensive.

Another aspect on which we would
like to have some discussion pertains
to the newly established undertak-
ings in backwarq areas. Here again
we would like to put forward some
suggestions which are likely to achie-
ve the object of development of
backward areas more effectively and
reliably.

In closing, as I have said earlier,
the proposed Direct Taxes (Amend-
ment) Bill is generally welcome in so
far as it goes. But it is suggested for
government’s consideration that, for
the achievement of the desired levels
ang directions in production and in-
vestment, a bold and new thinking
may  be required now.

Now, Sir, we are at your disposal
for proceeding to discuss the Bill in
such manner as you would consider
appropriate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: By ang large, it
is' a very welcome attitude and



approach. The basis of economic logic
is that the problem should not be
looked at only from one angle; the
government’s viewpoint has also to be
duly appreciated. And Isee in your
opening remarks an objective ap-
proach which is extremely welcome.
Now we should like to hear your
views on the Bill directly. You can
treat your memorandum as reag and
you may now focus the attention of

the Committee to the salient features
of the Bill.

SHRI] A. K. JAIN: Regarding clause
2 we welcome this change. But we
want to point out that the position
obtaining previously ang the situa-

tion now leaves one year gap—1972-
73.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have point-
ed it out—assessment year 1972-73,
literary awards etec.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Some particular

people who happen to fall in one
year... ol

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consi-

der it. At any rate you have pointed
out that thing to us.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Regarding cla-
use 3 which deals with the question. ..

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: If-they have
nothing else to say on the first para-
graph we may ask some clarification
on this matter. They have suggested
that this exemption for a period of
one year should also be included for
the previous year. Do these awards
constitute an income? Evepn then if
We provide exemption from the pre-
vious year, it will not help. I think
what we have provided .is adequate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I must point out
of them: firstly, if you were to see
Section 59 of the Finance Act, 1872,
exemption in respect of casual receipts
and incomes stands withdrdwn only
from the assessment year 1973-74. It
cannot be taxed for 1972-73 at all
That is the position of law. That is

imperative only from 1973-74 accord-
" ing to the Finance Act of 1972

SHRI A. K. JAIN: If it is covered,
1 have nothing to say.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is the posi~
tion of law. What you are saying
is already taken care of. Mr. Sanghi,
the position is: assuming it is an in-
come, there is an exemption section.
It was exempt under Section 10(3)—
casual receipts and non-recurring in-
come. But fees are not exempt.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI; It it is casual
receipt or non-recurring income, it is
exempted. But suppose every ‘year
he gets it, then what is the position?

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to

section 10(3) upto Rs. 1000 it is ex-
empt.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Awards in re-
cognition of outstanding merit for
sportsmen or literary perrons, if it
happens to be in the course of the
profession, it does not apply.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: New clause
(17A) reads:

“any payment made, whether in
cash or in kind, in pursuance of
awards for literary, scientific and
artistic work or attainment, or for
proficiency in sports énd games,
instituted by the Central Govern-
ment or approved by it in this be-
half...”

These would be exempt according to
this but in case some objections whe-
ther it is in the previous year or not
or that it has come from vocational
or professional work are taken, then
naturally they are not exempt. Now
it has been provided to be exempt as

if they are. casual or non-recurring
incomes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Anything which
falls within this clause will be ex-
empt.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: I do not think
in the previous year any fncome which

‘was'termed vocational will be exempt.

MR. CHAIRMAN: When tals clause
comes, something which is casuel and
non-recurring is exempt. That is the



correct view. 1 will explain itt. ™
1873-74 the law was to stand chan-
ged. If this Bill becomes law appli-
cable from 1973-74, this exemption
will still be operative. They made
. their submission on the assumption
that the earlier exemption under sec-
tion 10(3) would be withdrawn from
1972-78. That is not the position of
law. It will be withdrawn rnly from
1973-74. When it is withdrawn, the
new law comes in.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: With regard to
clause 3, 1 would like to draw the
attention of the Committee to the
Bhoothalingam Committee’s report
which had dealt with this question
specifically. It has suggested that
depreciation should be allowed in such
a way that over a period o'f years 20
. per cent more than the original cost
" will be provided for. That was the
view a few years ago and in the pre-
gent situa‘ion with the rising cost
of plant and machinery, it should be
nearly 150 per cent which appears
to be somewhat reasonable. They
also suggested that it should be ap-
plied not only to plant and machinery
but to all industrial assets. This
matter is very important because the
cost of plant and machinery has in
fact gone up by something like three
to four times while the cost of build-
ings and other things have not gone
up in the same proportion, but the
20 per cent average increase for all
the industrial assets will be a fair
average and it will be meaningful
rather than conflning it to only plant
and machinery because the deprecia-
tion allowance comes into effect after
31st May, 1974. There is some kind of
an impression that it is a substitute
of development rebate. In our view
that is the correct approach to the
matter and I am very happy to see
that our Chairman also feels the same
way. The initial depreciation as it
stands within the 100 per cent merely
defers the collection of tax from the
st two or three years fo the next
4th or 5th or the 6th year. It is not
a financial incentive to a new indus-
try. In that sense, we do strongly

feel that whatever terminology youw
may give...

MR. CHAIRMAN: It ig only post-
ponement of tax.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Depreciation.
should be given more than 100 per
cent by whatever name you may call
it.

With regard to the criticism that
the devolpment rebate in the past has
led to wasteful capital expenditure,
we would, in our humble submission,
feel—We may not see isolated cases
here and there—that by und large
the tax collection from industries in
the last ten years has been conti-
nuously increasing and it has not led
to any loss of taxation. It is only
through stimulating greater invest-
ment that both direct and indirect
taxes can increase. Depreciatio up--

to 100 per cent is a very important
factor.

While dealing with the replacement
cost, even the Tariff Commission has
taken development rebate into account
while calculating the rehabilitation
allowance when they worked out as
to what is it that the industries need
in the price for the purpose of giving
the element of rehabilitation. In that
they have deducted it. Now if it is
withdrawn then the prices of indus-
trial articles will correspondingly in-
crease and that will leag to a price
inflation and this fact shoulq be taken:
into account specially in the present
context when the need to control pri-
ces is paramount. There are indus-
trially advanced countries where the
need for investment is not as great
as in India. Even those countries
find it necessary to have the provi-
sion of additional depreciation. They

call it investment allowance, or cash:
subsidy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: ‘Nomenclature is
not the main thing. Development re-
bate is not mainly concerneq with the:
-clauses of ‘the Bill, If you make an

- gssumption that whatéver is made in
“this Bfll s in substitution of develop-

ment rebate, I would like to say, that



A . -
.to continuing tax concession, for en-
,couraging industries in selected sec-
tors. :

SHRI A. K. JAIN: What we would
respectfully submit ig that this is to
be yieWéd in the context of the chan-
'ges’ in the corporate sector, in cor-
'porate taxation for the last few years.
They have withdrawn various tax
incentives and tax concessions.

.MR. CHAIRMAN: That again will
.be ou'side our purview. Mr. Charat
_Ram referred to it generally that in
corporate sector these concessions are
“withdrawn. But now we will have
“to  confine ourselves to the objects of
_the Bill, to tax concessions and in
respect of ~encouraging industries in
"selected sectors. We cap gg into the
"merits of the concessions and we can
"also go into the point as tc what those
‘selected sectors are. You have made
“three suggestions. Your assumption
is that this is a sort of substitution of
development rebate. This is not so.
Kindly get rig of this idea. You have
‘made three suggestions. First you
‘said, any initial depreciation should
‘be over and above the depreciation
I otherwise allowed. You said it would
"be over and above the depreciation
"the assessee woulq be entitled. That
“is the first suggestion. The second
"one is this. The assessee could be
given option to write off 100 per cent
in the year of his choice. This is
second. Thirdly you are saying that
it should be available for any indus-
try. Third one, any industry, is a
little too wide, because, possibly, it
would go outside the scope of the
Bill itself. There are some selected
industries. We can add, we can de-
lete. Mr. Charat Ram referred to
industries. There are two methods
by which State can subsidice. One
is purchase of plant and machinery
and replacement finance via fiscal re-
gulations. That is to say, some sort
of subsidy as a result of tax con-
cessions. Another method is you pro-
vide for some -incentive for the plant
to be purchased in future. Another
methoq is to give the asseasee the

profits which may accrue thereafter.
What we do is this. When you pur-
chase plant we are accelerating de-
p.reciation. That is a method of pro-
viding for replacement finance. State
subsidises via tax concessions, That
being the case what according you
should be the method of givirg initial
depreciation over and above the nor-
ma] depreciation? In other words
are you suggesting that 20 Per cent
should be allowed straightaway as
deduction? And then what happens
at the end when there is a balancing
charge when you dispose of the plant
and machinery?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: This is an
overall national problem to which an
answer may not be readily available.
I will tell of some specific case. A
Plant is put up at a cost of Rs. 5 crores.
It has to be replaced if not in 10
years, in 15 years. The cost of re-
Placement of the plant has gone upto
15 crores of rupees. There is such
escalation of cos's over 15 years pe-
riod or so. How is this amount of
money to be provided to industries if
it is not intendeq that it should be-
come sick?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: We see
the point. Any industry may invest
Rs. 5 crores. In the mext 10 years or
15 years, what happens is this. If it
is to be replaced, the ccst becomes
Rs. 15 crores. How is it tc be pro-
vided for in any futuristic planning?
I want to know whether this depre-
ciation, whichever is reasonably pro-
vided later on, should be available
year to year to the industry ag a fund
or should this fund be funded with
Government for which interest may
be paid so that that ig available as
a national asset? What happens to-
day is this. And I want you to enli-
ghten 'me on this. My impression is
that this amount is retained with the
concern for whatever capital use
they may make use of. Even after
15 years, whatever you provide for
that may be within youy hands to be
used for replacement.



TR T RAN 1T T Thay
mttempt to clarify the position, the
only appropriation from prfits which
may be or which onght to be used
is this. We have to see whether any
disproportionate divideng has come
.out of the profits which are made.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: I am fi6t
won this issue.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: I am trying
“to make my point whether the funds
are being made available within the
-company.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: This is an
indirect way in which funds become
available even though the deprecia-
tion amounts are with the company
‘they are not inmmediately utilised for
the purpose of replacement. I am
saying why shoulg this fung be not
made available to the nation? It will
be in your hands and ultimately it will
‘have to be made available at the time
‘of replacement of machinery in the
:industry.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sathe’s query
is this. If you are asking for a re-
lief to provide for a replacement
finance, then kindly create a fund and
identify such fund for investment.
It shoulq be useq for investment and
it should be made available to Gov-
ernment. But, when you want to buy
machinery, then you should be able
to draw upon that fund. That is
‘what ‘'he wants to ‘say.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Let it not
‘be only notional.

SHR]I CHARAT RAM: It was not
‘notional. Development rebate is an
earmarked fund which could not be
used for frittering gway or disburse-
‘ment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Tt could be
merged in your business.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: That is right.

MR. CHATMAN: What he gays is

that it should not be used in business
Dut that should be made available to

Government or it wmay be employed
for a specific security. :

SHR! CHARAT RAM: How tlus

" fund may be provided for or allocated
+ or used is a subsequent question. The
' first questign is to appreciate  the
» positioh. There are innumerable in-
. dustries some of whom, may be, be-
tause of abgsence of best management,

. become sick. Unfortunately, in our
country, many many industries are

becaming sick for various reasons. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is true.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: It would
make a material difference. You know
that most of the cases of sick mills
are because their earned profits were
not utilised oy were misused. Apart
from depreciation and other funds,
the materialg were allowed to go sick
so that it may be Government's busi-
ness to take over them. Durifig the
last war and at other periods there-
after, this has been the story of the
textile mills. So, I am not saying that
it is so for a particular industry.
Otherwise it will make a material
difference. My suggestion is this. If
this amount becomes specifically avai-
lable and if your Federation or indus-
trialists agree with our thinking that
if a higher percentage is to be kept
initially, that will make a difference.
This is what you are trying to can-
vass if I understand you correctly.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: I do not
want to get into the position of a dis-
cussion because there are many many
facets of it whe= industrie: have be-
come sick. I would not rule that out.
In gome cases it is due to mi#*manage-
ment. There are many many other
casegs which I do not think we want
to go into. For instance, in the
matter of coal, llere was a price con~
trol after nationalisation. And then
there was a first price increase of
Rs. 4/-. After aome time, there was
another increase in price of coal. We
do not want to go into that at all. I
still leave this open for a discussion.
What is for your consideration is whe-
ther it is desirable from the national
point of view that there should be a



provision for escalation of costs for
replacement. How this should be
funded or used is, I think, a matter
for Government to consider.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Here, 1 want you
to clarify on one thing. Why do you
suggest this? We have seen other
memoranda also on the same line and
8o 1 want you to enlighten us on that
point. The mood of the existing law-
makers seemg to have been that if the
incentive out of the subsidy or tax
concession is to be given, that should
be after the plant is installed. But
that should not be against the current
profits. What happeng is this. The
classic or concept of depreciation is
to write off ‘wear’ and ‘tear’.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The amount of a
depreciation that we are allowing as
development rebate 1s allowed to be
paid as dividend. Shri Sathe’s point
will be covered it the amount of pro-
vision that you make is increased at
least substantially.

MR. CHAIRMAN: His point is very
clear. A corresponding amount
should be invested to the correspond-
ing security. That should be ‘made
available to Government.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The return will
be of the order of 5 to 6 per cent.

MR, CHAIRMAN: It is just ear-
marking some money by yourself
which i3 not available to you at
subsidised rate for your business but
that is available to you only for pur-
poses of purchase of machinery, This
was hig query.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: If the idea is to
make the fund available not at the
time of the present profits but at the
time of the replacement of machinery,
then the amount required would be
three to four times the present cost
that you pay today for replacement.

If it is allowed to be retained by
us, we can use it much morée profit-
ably for our requirement.. You are
meeting a part of rehabilitation needs
and not the whole of it. o

MR. CHAIRMAN: What about the
other point? Why does it commend to
you and not to the framers of the law
that if we have to subsidise it for
the purchase of compulsory machi-
nery, it is there and why not you
utilise from out of profits earned after
the plant is installed rather than
before? Am I clear?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: You are not
clear,

MR. CHAIRMAN: My question is
this. One method of providing for
the finance is that from to-day itself,
a-certain concession is allowed to you.
And you go on accumulating; out of
that, you purchase. Another method
is this. When you purchase, at that
time, a certain concession is made. And
ar a result of it, future profits are
concessionally taxed, Both the methods
are well-known methods,

SHRI CHARAT RAM: Mr. Jain
said that if it is given currently as
proposed, then greater moRey will now
be made available by the Government
for replacement. Now only 25 per
cent of it is given. Your suggestion
may be of considerable interest pro-
vided this 25 per cent is increased to
a substantial extent.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: After listen-
ing to the witness, I want to know one
thing from him. Whatever be the
depreciation or the development re-
bate we may allow a substantial
amount is being borrowedq from gov-
ernmental or other institutions. Now,
the payment ig to be made. 1Is it a
fact that on account of profits earned
we provide against it an initial depre-
ciation. According to this Bill initial
depreciation or development rebate
that we allow is mostly used to make
repayment to the financial Institutions
from which the industry has borrowed
the money. In this way, the repay-
ment is made and also further money
can be drawn and further expansion
can be undertaken by the industry.



This ig the system adopted by the
industry. What do you say to this?

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA. I think you are right there. That
is the form in which it can take shape.
And ultimately with this money that
i3 available, one could liquidate the
loans. 1f you analyse any of the
balance sheets, you can very easily
sce this. I would like to add to what
has been said a little while ago on
this question. If you will permit me,
I will take you on to one other point.
When we talk about the initial depre-
ciation, we have clarified one thing
that we should not think about it only
for the purpose of replacement of the
development rebate. But, yet, I feel
that by whatever name you call it, it
has gone intg the developmental acti-
vities. If it is in the nature of deve-
lopmental incentive I would urge you
to keep in mind the fact that in the
Fifth Five Year Plan we are thinking
of an investment of Ra3. 53,000 crores
which is more than' the total invest-
ment made in the previous Plans. This
itself may not be enough. Our need
for development finance is very much.
Quite a sizeable portion of this hag to
come from the retail profits of the
private sector. We want to ensure
entrepreneurship is brought into in
the wider context. That means depen-
dance on loans is reduced which in
other words mean more and more
money is made available from the
r2tail profits. All thigs world mean
companies’ finance should be  such
that it can ‘make reasonable profit and
can grow. Therefore. I would suggest
that it is in this background that we
have to look into the question of ini-
tial depreciation. If it is in the nature
of incentive we have to examine whe-
ther it would be an effective incentive.
If it is not an effective incentive then it
luses itz validity. I submit for your
consideration at thig stage of develop-
ment of our country we cannot say we
have reached a stage where we do not
need any developmental. incentive.
Quite apart from the question of
higher replacement costs that are
there which are multiplving geo-
metrically if there was any need at

any time it was now to provide some-
thing more than ‘mere depreciation. I
would urge developmental rebate was
hardly meeting the costs of higher
replacement costs, as such, why not
consider it ag a developmental incen-
tive also.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: Government
is facing a lot of foreign exchange
difficulty. Many plants can be manu-
factureq in the country. Would you
agree if we allow more depreciation
on the plant and machinery manu-
factured in India and less on the
imported plant and machinery. It wil
also help indigenisation.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NJA: It will certainly help and give
inducement.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: This is not a
position which should be discussed in
the present context of the Direct Taxes
(Amendment) Bill. That may be in
the context of general industrialisa-
tion of the country. As to how to
provide industries the replacement
finance, I think, some mechanism
ought to be devised. The present Bill
gives 100 per cent of the original cost.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Suppose the
depreciation value is conceded do you
mean the freedom will be conceded to
utilise 1t for any purpose for industry
or for any specific purpose so avail-
able only in relation to the plant and
‘machinery?

SHR!I HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: 1hig question of the need for
funding i, to ensure that funds are
available when they are needed, you
musy look ot the thing ag g continuing
thing. It is not that Company starts
to-day only; it is a system which
operates on a continuous basis. I put
plan' and machinery to-day and afte"
five vears 1 do so. It operates. In the
przvioug five years I have been getting
depreciation. I am making repayment of
loans. In terms of cash foan the
maoney 18 with the Government, in the
sense that we are repaying the loars
to the financial iustitutions or to the
Banks. If we are not to give this
money fro,n here and they will have



rajsed borrowings from any of the
institutions to the extent it i neces-
sary, eicher we have to increase our
boriowings from the financial institu-
tions or bankg to meet this. In terms
of cash loan, I have not understood
how 1t will make any difference. if
you liok into the gituation on the
basis of continuing company and cash
flow system, you will not find that
gituation will improve any way. Sup-
pose you have to take it away and
fund it. But we need further funds.
These funds are to be utilised. How
to enure that these funds are utilised
for the proper purpose and are not
frittered away in undesirable things?
In undesirable, we use dividends also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Not necessarily.

SHR1 HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: I am glad that vou say it is not
necessary. Dividend is a part charge
on the capital taken from the investor
and servicing of the capital. But as
you meap dividend has to be exclud-
ed, the existing provisions were
already there where' developmental
rebate could not be utilised for the
purpcee of dividend. Therefore, we
are suggesting that this money is
available hasically for the purpose of
industry. N .

MR. CHAIRMAN: His problem is
not with reference to availability of
liquid source when it is put in your
funds. His object wag little different.
While you are given this concession,
you hand over this money to the Gov-
ernment in one form or the other.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What I
was having in mind was—this fund
as a replacement fund and the Chair-
man has rightly put it and not as a
continuous day-to-day business finance
that is available to you from the
financial institutions or from the share
holders money. Now if it isg to be
used for repayment of your normal
finance or capital that you get from
the Bank, then this depreciation for
replacement of this particular machi-
nery or plant will not be avsilable.
That is why I said it hag not to be
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notional. Otherwise you may invest
this amount of depreciation, I am
taking the most genuine case. You
may invest in another plant. It may
be essential from country's point of
view also industrial growth. But our
object in this Bill is in certain sectors
ie. in certain backward areag it may
flow. So, that object being limited,
it is not necessary that a person who
uses this depreciation fund for other
plant investment would necessarily
invest in the sectors that we have en-
umerated and in the areas where we
want him to invest. So, therefore,
let us not confuse the issues, with
general flnance, saying that this is
utilised for repayment of loan. For
that you have to pay the loans from
your profits, you pay interest also on
those loans.

We gre losing tax. Government is
going to lose that much tax by allow-
ing you this concession. That is why
I asked you the basic question.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It ig the view
point which Mr, Sathe has explained.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Depreciation at
replacement cost is the true cost for
running a business, Replacement cost
is rising from year to year. The wear
and tear of the plant and machinery
is not depreciation of the original cost
but depreciation of the replacement
cost from year to year.

MR, CHAIRMAN: That is not the
concept of an Accountant. For deter~
mining your current profits, deprecia-
tion has to be provided as an addi-
tional factor of replacement,

SHRI A. K. JAIN: What is the true
cost of an article? Is it wear and tear
on the original cost or wear and tear
on the replacement cost. If I installed
a plant 20 years ago, it is depreciating
at income. If I provide in my Account
Book the picture, it is negligible. My
true cost is much higher amount than
that amount and the Company should
get its true cost.

In a strict computation if one has
to make computation year to year, it
becomes a complicated method angd



this matter has been discussed in
'several countries by many competent
professionall pcople and Chartered
Accountants also. For simplification
it has been said instead of giving 3
per cent, 4 per cent each year and
working out the replacement cost this
year and that year, make it a simpler
method and do it on straight basis of
20 per cent, 30 per cent,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Replacement fac-
tor is added. They have given three
suggestions in their Memorandum.
They say that the initial depreciation
which is now sought to be given will
ultimately be reckoned for purposes
of over-all depreciation of plant and
machinery. They suggest that this
initial depreciation should be over and
above the normal depreciation. That
is the point which we are discussing.

SHRIMATI SAVITRI SHYAM: I do
not understand much about taxation.
But as g layman I say that during
these 16 years much has been taken
by the industries from the Govern-
ment, in the form of development
rebate or incentive rebate. Machinery
was not modernised and the develop-
ment in the un-development area was
not made. Now the gpecific proposal
is to develop the backward area and
you have to give us specific proposal
not in the name of incentive or cry
for incentive, that you have to develop
this backward area or concession
should be given to the industries by
the Government and what specific
industries should be installed in the
backward area. They have pleaded
in their memorandum that almost
every industry ghould be put in the
Ninth Schedule. But I would like
them to bear in mind the objective
of the Bill and give specific proposals
or suggestions about how to develop
the selected areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The second part
of their memorandum deals with that
aspect. At the moment, we are dis-
cusging the question of depreciation.
When we take up the question of
backward areas, they will answer the
’Hon. Member’s question.

1"

- - - 1

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHAs
NIA: There is one point that I would
like to add on depreciation. Shri Sathe’
had asked how we could prevent the’
initial depreciation allowed here from
being utilised for areas or industries’
other than the selected ones. If you'
look into the list of selected industries;
you will find already that it consists
of industries in which public financial
institutions, the company law etc.
will be involved before they can be
diversified. So, it is not an easy affair’
for an industry to spend that money’
on any other area. This is what I
would like to put on record.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to
Mr. Jain, it would not make any
difference as long ag this greater
quantum of money is available to
replace plant and machinery, of
course, in the priority sector.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: This is a very’
highly technical Bill and taxation
itself is a very technical subject, and
1 would like to educate myself on:
the memorandum which the Federa--
tion has submitted. I believe the
Federation, being the representatives:
of industry in the country has resigned’
itself to the abolition of the develop-
ment rebate, But in their memoran-
dum, they have drawn our attention
to three suggestions. In their second
suggestion, they have said that the
assessee or the industry may be allow-
ed to adjust normal depreciation of
hundred per cent in the year of their
cholce. How is this going to help the:
selected sector of industry for which
this initial depreciation is being given?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: I do not know-
whether what we are discussing is:
really going to be within the so-
called objectives of the proposed BiIl
which are for investment in selected!
industries and in backward areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It could be that
1f initial depreciation is to be allowed
as outright deduction over und above



the normal depreciation, we can make
-a stipulation that it shqu}d be invest-

ed ‘in such g way.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: The gecond
‘point which the hon. Member has
‘made is this. If the first point is not
-acceptable to the Government, namely
-of additional depreciation outright,
two issues arise. One is that of
attracting investment in the defined
‘new industry and the deflned new
"backward areas. However, what we
are really emphasising is prevention
of sickness in the industries which
'have been set up.

MR. CHAIRMAN: At the moment,
“we are not on the issue of backward

areas but on the question of deprecia-
-tion.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: The addi-
tional depreciation or development
rebate or whatever alse you may call
it has to provide replacement finance
80 that the industries which have been
:set up do not become sick.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why do you say
that they should not become sick?
“Why should you not say that this is
to encourage industries? That is the
-objective. The next question which
I am going to ask is going to be a
"very crucial question, anq I would like
‘to know the views of the Federation
on it. But would you like to answer
‘Shri Sanghi's question? How would
"your second suggestion be an adequate
-incentive?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: It is not an alter-
‘native. We suggested that first of all,
‘the depreciation must be in addition
to 100 per cent. The free depreciation
‘idea is not one of tax concession or
tax incentive in that sense because
‘that is only postponement of tax
«collection.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: I would like
to answer this question in a little bit
‘of a personal way and not directly as
a representative of the Federation. If
I have to pick and choose investment
in a new industry. whether it be
<ement or caustic soda or fertiliser,
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I would not do it on the basis of
whether I am being allowed: additional
depreciation or free depreciation at
my choice within the 100 per cent
limit, but I would go and invest in
the first instance where there is pros-
pect and good profitability, The
second question that has arisen is this.
After the plant has been set up, how
do I keep on replacing my assets as
they wear out? In 'my personal opin-
fon, my investment decision w~uld not
be deflected by the provisions now
sought to be put into the Bill, it that
is the objective.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want these
concessions only for cerving as cata-
lytic agents to divert your investments
into these industries.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: It wiuld not
deflnct me at all personally in my
investment judgment. I would only
consider whether there is prospect and
good profitability. This is my per-
sonal opinion.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: From what
the witnesses have said, I think that
no industrialist would like to invest
his money.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is not what
he has said. He has said that that
was his personal view and not that of
the: Federation. He said that he would
g0 purely by the profitability criterion.

SHR1I CHARAT RAM: At a point
of time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: And subsequently
come and consider what the tax
benefits are.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Subject to
profitability, they would certainly take
the adjustment of 100 per cent depre-
ciation in the year in which they get
the profits, so that the investment is
taken back, instead of spreading it
over a couple of years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to
Mr. Charat Ram, that is an ancillary
consideration.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: In the memo-
randum we have been told that there
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are better fiscal advantages to selected
industries. I would 1ike them to give
us some idea of the advantages. I
would like to know whether such
things prevail in other advanced coun-
tries like the UK. or America or any
other, by way of initial depreciation
or development rebate and so on. If
they can fell us something about this.
It would help us in wunderstanding
how we are fairing in this regard.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are diffe-
rent types in UK., Brazil, New
Zealand, Australia, etc.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: Here is a booklet called ‘Inter-
national Comparison’, which is about
three yearg old, and dates back to
1969, but we can try to update it and
supply 40 copies of the same to you,
and this gives a good comparison.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please send us
the copies.

SHRI MADDI SUDARSANAM: Do
you consider the eligibility of any
other industry for initial depreciation,
in addition to the proposed ones?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: We shall deal
with this after we finish this point.

SHRI MADDI SUDARSANAM: Ours
is a capital-scarce country. Don't you
think that too much generalisation of
the proposed initial depreciation
would lead to greater use of capital
in the methods of production or in
the choice of industry?

MR. CHAIRMAN: With reference to
the provisiong of the Bill, there is a
very crucial question that T would
like to put to you, because I am very
much worried about what Shri Charat
Ram had said at personal level, be-
cause it ig of the utmost importance to
me and to the Committee.

If this concession is to have some

meaning, specially to a selected
sector of industry, what 1is
the reaction of the Cham-

the area in which this concession is
available but broaden the quantum of

13

concession? This is an alternative to
the existing provision. Let us assume
the concession is confined only to the
new industrial undertakings in the
Ninth Schedule. So you reduce the
entire area very much. Only new
industrial undertakings in the Ninth
Schedule will be entitled to this. While
enlarging their concession, it is provi-
ded that initial depreciation to be
allowed as an outright deduction would
include the entire capital expenditure
incurred. Would this be a better alter

native?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Will new indus-
trial undertaking include expansion?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Under the exist-
ing deflnition of ‘new industrial ynder-
taking’ existing industries do not get
any benefit. We encourage new in-
dustries and say the initial deprecia-
tion will be 20 per cent of the entire
capital expenditure. Would you apply
your mind to it?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: We have not
followed it totally-whether the concept
is still of only 100 per cent of original
cost or 120 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Not 120 per cent.
At the moment, 20 per cent is only on
plant and machinery. What I am say-
ing is: 20 per cent of the entire capital
expenditure on the project would be
treated as initial depreciation but con-
fined only to new industries that will
come,

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: On a clarification. Does a new
industry include expansion of an
existing industry?

MR. CHAIRMAN: If it is included
in the existing industrial undertaking.
I say we go to a new industrial under-
taking to whom the tax holiday is
available,

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: Suppoce fertiliser is included.
What happens if there is expansion of
a fertiliser plant?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Expansion i¢ not
a new industry. Substantial expan-



sion is covered. Therefore, the prin-
ciple is that we narrow the area of
operation but enlarge the quantum of
concession.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: The first re-
action is, as we had said earlier that
we welcome all that has been proposed
in the Bill inasmuch as it is an im-
provement on the subsisting situation.
Expansion of the business in the limi-
ted 9th schedule industries from the
plant and machinery only to all assets
is not likely to provide the capital
requirement for replacement. I think
we should still be looking for addi-
tional finance requirement when re-
placement needs are there. In your
kind suggestion this is not being pro-
vided. It is still 100 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it better pro-
vided in your suggestion?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: In our sug-
gestion, it is 120 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Normal deprecia-
tion will be there. 20 per cent will
be outright write-off.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: 100 per cent write-off in addi-
tion to normal depreciation?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Depreciation will
be allowed to be written off in the
normal course, 20 per cent of the capi-
tal expenditure to be written off as
initial depreciation.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: In addition to
100 per cent?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes. Why are you
bringing in the 100 per cent factor?

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: This would be very much
welcome. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: You narrow the
area of operation very much, conflning
it only to new industries.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: It is a much better suggestion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In the Chamber's
view, only to new industries, it 20
per tent of the capital expenditure is
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allowed as write-off, that would be
better.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: There is no doubt about it

SHR] K. R. GANESH: This is a

thinking the Chairman has put before
the

you. Of course, it will be for
Committee to go into that. But Gov-
ernment does not stand committed
to it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is Bo
commitment.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: Probably out
of it, certain things may come out.

MR. CHAIRMAN: At this stage, we
are only deliberating and trying to
find out. I wanted to know the
Chamber’s view.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: I had to eay
this because it goes completely outside
the scope of the Bill.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: 1t is a dia-
logue, not a decision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What constitutes
initial depreciation is something we
can define.

SHRIMATI SAVITRI SHYAM: It is
a suggestion; we are not making any
commitment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We go to the
second point. You have said 100 per
cent in the years of their choice. Yon
accelerate depreciation to be allowed
in any year. So far as the third point
is concerned, it is outside the scope of
the Bill. It has got to be for selected in-
dustries. All we can do, if you can
make out a case, is that we can en-
large the selected sector.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The origina®
schedule has been curtailed. We see
mno reason for it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The existing
Ninth Schedule has 33 industries.
Which are the industries which are
deleted?

SHRI HARISHANKAR  SINGHA-
NIA: Kindly see page § of our memo-~
randum.



SHRI A. K. JAIN: The mining in-

dustry, pesticides, petro-chemicals,
tea, printing machinery, processed
seeds, processed concentrates for

cattle feed, internal combustion en-
gines,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is the Chamber
aware of the criteria on which priority
industries have been determined?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: No.

MR, CHAIRMAN: We have called
the Secretaries. They are the most
important people on this Bill. We
will put it to them why were these
deleted and what are the criteria.
What we want you to tell ug in that
case is, how, according to you, these
industries are as important as those?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Let us take coal.
It is entirely in the national sector.
But we are not making a distinction
between public and private sectors. In
view of the energy crisis, the develop-
ment of coal is of paramount impor-
tance to the country. In fact, the
entire strategy of our national eco-
nomy is now based on a change-over
from fuel oil to coal which is our
main energy source.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: Bauxite is the raw material for
aluminium. It is a non-ferrous metal.
We do not have copper, zinc. But alu-
minium is one of the basic materials
we must develop. Therefore, bauxite
mining.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Similarly iron
ore, manganese, limestone. The last
is very important to the cement in-
dustry. If you exclude limestone, in-
vestment in limestone mining will be
excluded.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will put it to
the people who prepared the Sche-
kule, as for the rationale for exclud-
ing these.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Pesticides—this
is one of the most important agricul-
tural inputs. Then petro-chemicals.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-

NIA: Tea is one of our basic export
earners,
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SHR] A. K. JAIN: Tea machinery.
It forms only 25-30 per cent of the
investment in tea gardens. This is
entirely a new item.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will ask the
Secretaries or whoever is responsible
for the preparation of the Schedule as
to what is the way out. According
to you, the Ninth Schedule should
have 33 plus 8 industries.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: 22 plus 8 industries.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: There are dele-
tions from the original list. On p. 4
we have given additional suggestions.
These are also by way of clarification.
For example, steel castings and forg-
ings. This should include grey iron
and other alloy castings. Some of the
grey iron products are one of the
most important new items of export
from our country.

Similarly, thermal and hydro power
generating equipment should include
manufacture of transformers, cables
and transmission towers. There are
some companies manufacturing trans-
formers. They are not manufactur-
ing thermal and hydro pewer equip-
ment,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Manufacturing
cables and transmission towers. Indus-
try and agriculture should surely in-
clude manufacture of hoilers motors,
internal combustion engines, etc.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The component
parts are very important.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is by way of
abundant caution; is it so?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you make it
inclusive, then the definition is likely
to be very much restrictive.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: Thig may be
broadly seen; our suggestions are there
for your consideration.



MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider
it. This is an important aspect. We
will ask why these eight industries
have been left out.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The question of
component parts is very important,
becauge the small scale and ancillary
industries are making component parts
which go into the industries which are
eligible.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are they exclud-
ed?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: These are includ-
ed in the items of industrial, and
agricultural machinery. Whether the
manufacture of component parts is
also in the manufacture of industrial
machinery or not is a debatable point,
but as our Chairman said, the ques-
tion of incentive should be free from
doubt, and legal disputes which may
go on for 10 years or so should be
avoided.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you are to
rope in the manufacture of component
parts, then the Ninth Schedule will
become scheduleless. Everything will
become one way or the other a com-
ponent of this, and it will become
impossible. We will see to these
22 and eight items.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Clause 4. A con-
dition is attached for the allowance
of the initial depreciation that an
assessee should furnish g certificate
from the prescribed authority before
the time-limit for furnishing the re-
turn of income. There is a time-limit.
A certificate to the effect that the
plant and machinery have been ins-
talled for the purpose of the business
appears to be redundant. The deve-
lopment rebate scheme has been
functioning for so many years with-
out such conditions, and there is no
allegation that they are being mis-
used.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are alle-
gations that without the plant, the
development rebate has been claimed.
We will consider this. If there is
some administrative difficulty, we
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must sort it out with the administra-
tion.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Whether this
certificate will be given before assess-
ment is not clear.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The time-limit
could be relaxed. But there ig a seri-
oug administrative problem.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: What is the administrative
problem?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Our income-tax
officers are not technical experts,
and whenever an assessee appears he
explains that such and such thing
falls within this category and he gets
certain rates. Later on, on scrutiny,
there is an objection to the effect that
it does not fall within this limit. So,
there is a controversy and g certifi-
cate from a competent authority is
called for and all this creates an ad-
ministrative difficulty.

SHRI O. P. VAISH: As far ag this
aspect is concerned, there is no doubt
that there is difficulty with the ad-
ministration in that they are not able
to decide whether an industry falls
within the Schedule or not.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They are able to
decide, but having decideg it, some-
body comes and says “You have taken
a wrong decision.”

SHRI O. P, VAISH: This is an area
where an advance ruling could be
given. I want to set up a machinery,
and after I have set up the machinery
the decision would not help me either
way, because the incentive is meant
to influence my decision to set up the
a decision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may write
to the prescribed authority and get
a decision.

SHRI O. P. VAISH: There should
be a provision for an advance deci-
sion. Otherwise it will be of no use.

SHRI R. D. SHAH: As the Chair-
man has explained, it is purely an ad-
ministrative difficulty, because the



Income-tax officer is not a technical
man, He takeg all the care that is pos-
sible. Sometimes, the assessments
are delayed and sometimes long after,
objections are raised that this was not
a priority industry, which means
reopening the assessment, which leads
to so many problems. So, if there is
an authority which is prescribed for
the purpose, the certificate from that
authority will be beyond criticism by
anybody. That will take away a good
part of the doubt and the various
problems that emanate from it.

In regard to the argument that it
will delay assessments, I would like
1o say that we do not want any delay
to be caused in getting the certificate
from the prescribed authority as this
would delay the assessments. If the de-
lay is on the part of the business under-
taking in asking for a certificate, the
party is to be blamed and not the
Department, because if such delays
are condoned it would delay the as-
sessment proceedings. As you said
very rightly, the prescribed authority
can say that this industry could be
certified.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider
it.

SHRI O. P. VAISH: It may be pro-
vided for in the Bill,

SHRI R. D. SHAH:;: It ig only an ad-
ministrative aspect.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will give the
administration the directions on this
point. If that is not flnal, you may
g0 in appeal against that.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Clause 5. We
welcome thig provision. 1 will only
draw your attention to the proviso at
page 5 of the Bill which says:

“Provided that the scientific re-
search ig undertaken under a pro-
gramme approved in thig behalf by
the prescribed authority having re-
gard to the social, economic and in-
dustrial needs of India.”

Tte CSIR is there, and the CSIR ap-
proves the scientific bodies to whom
payment is made. So, this proviso be

comes redundant. If an industry sub-
mits the programme first to the pres-
cribeq authority which will examine
the matter it may take a year or two,
and by the time the decision is given
the industry may lose. You have
made it as a first condition that it is
allowed only when the payment is
made to an approved body. It is not
that a deduction is being allowed to
the company itself. When the body
is approved by the CSIR, this fur-
ther proviso is redundant.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: When there js already a condi-
tion that the prescribed authority is
the C.S.LR. this redundant provision
need not be there. Otherwise, for each
project of research, one must go to
the Government and take their eppro-
val which would only mean adminis-
trative delays and it may retard the
activities in regard to research.

SHRI CHARAT RAM: It ig again
overloading the Government with
various problems,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will have to
find out the view of the Government.
We will weigh what you say. You
say that once these institutions are
approved by the CSIR, they should
take care of it. But there seem to be
some more difficulties because of
which this proviso has been put in.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: What kind
of research as they do after it is ap-
proved? If the C.S.LR. approves of
a research, for that purpose there is
a concession. But who is going to
find out what actual work has been
done? ’

SHRI CHARAT RAM: Ultimately
you will need to proceed on some
form of trust, unless you feel other-
wise. No industrial enterprise will
take to frivolous methods.

SHRI A. K. JAIN; The assessee
pays it. cid ceme e



SHRI O. P. VAISH: It is being used
for scientific research related to the
business carried on by him. And
then the proviso is put that the busi-
ness ought further to conform to a
programme approved in this behalf
by the prescribed authority having
regard to the social, economic and
industrial needs.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We shall see.
This is hedged in by several precau-
tionary conditions, if I may put it
like that. We shall try to find out
from the Secretary when we talk to
him. We take note of what you say.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: You can
send your suggestions in a note,

ISHRI N. K. SANGHI: May I know
whether he wants complete deletion
of the proviso or he will be happy it
we delete “having regard to the so-
cial and economic interest.”

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: The whole proviso is un-
necessary. If I have to give any
grant to any university for a parti-
cular research, I will have to wait
for about six months before we can
start work. By that time the Uni-
versity might lose interest.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I shal] tell you
what happens. We shall consider
what you have said. We do not want
unnecessary fetters to be brought
in but at the same time we cannot
barter away cardinal safeguards.

The point is this. Assuming, for
instance, that business is interested
in making cosmetics, for example
how best it can improve the odour of
a shaving lotion or improve the
colour of a lipstick, that is something
in which the Government is not pos-
sibly interested.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: If we want to channelise re-
search or give incentives to selected
research, why not a list be published
from time to time so that everyone
knows about'it? - One may add or
subtract from the list.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: Govern-
ment may recognise certain institu-
tions for research work and contri-
butions to those institutions will auto-
matically be exempted.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: We request you
to have a look at it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We shall
sider it. Next point.

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: This is with reference to clause
9. This is a welcome feature, 1
would repeat what we have already
observed. We want the incentive to
be effective incentive so that indus-
tries go to backward areas. If we
analyse the broad difficulties, why in-
vestment cannot go to the backward
areas, you will find that the infra-
structure is one of the most impor-
tant difficulties: transport, electri=
city, water, housing, educational and
medical facilities and so on. Many a
time industries have to spend their
own money for getting electricity or
other facilities. In the form in which
it is provided here, you get the benefit
after sometime, after depreciation,
etc. It is not an effective incentive,
immediately. Therefore, this sug-
gestion has been made with regard to
certain percentage of the capital em-
ployed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How much?

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Under the pre-
sent law it is 6 per cent excluding
borrowings for new industries. We
did not want it to be mixed up with
that. That is why we have made
this suggestion.

con-

MR. CHAIRMAN:
really take industries to
areas?

Will you ever
backward

SHRI CHARAT RAM: You have
raised a very valid point, whether the
objective of taking industries to
backward areas will be achieved.
The other day we had meetings with
the Planning Commission. If the in-
frastructure is not there, communica-
tion, roads, power, etc. it is highly



doubtful. Even in backward areas
we have got to identify the towns
where infrastructure exists. These
incentives are welcome but I doubt
wery much whether industries could
be carried to backward areas when
there is lack of infrastructure,

SHRI HARISHANKAR SINGHA-
NIA: 1t is true that unless infrastruc-
ture is basically there, you cannot go
there but it is also true that you have
some infrastructure at some places but
by adding to that infrastructure, you
can take industries there. Take for
instance housing conditions, which is
a big burden. If you go to a remote
place, where are vou to house the
technicians or labour? Nobody wants
to go. If you give incentives directly
related to such infrastructure invest-
ment it will be an incentive for peo-
ple to go; they get some immediate
incentive. It will serve the dual pur-
pose of increasing housing and also
give employment to people in those
areas. My suggestion is that a cer-
tain percentage of the capital......

MR CHAIRMAN: What percentage?

SHRI A. K, JAIN: The present pro-
vision of 15 per cent of the total
investment being given as subsidy is
available only upto an investment of
one crore; that does not apply to
larger industries. That ceiling could
be removed and the 15 per cent could
be made available even for higher
investments. For instance, there is a
Re. 10 crore investment and 15 per
cent of that comes to Rs. 1.5 crores.
15 per cent should be available sub-
ject to the proviso that the amount
is actually spent on infrastructure.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Suppose the
total expenditure incurred for infras-
tructure is Rs. 2 crores in respect of
a project of Rs. 10 crores investment,
what ought to be done?

SHRI A, K. JAIN: Rs, 1.5 crore
should be available to the industry
as subsidy; the balance Rs. 50,000 the
Company has to bear.

MR. CHAIRMAN; You suggest that
subsidy take care of the infrastructure,

You can take it up at the appropriate
level,

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The present pro-
vision of the Bill is based on 20 per
cent reduction of profits for 10 years.
But in the first three or four years,
the company will not make taxable
profits. So, the benefit is only illu-
sory. So, it should start{ from the
day the company starts making tax-
able proffts=" T the alternative,
instead of linking it to the profits.
you may link it to the capital employ-
ed and allow it to be carried forward
to subsequent years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We can consider
that,

SHRI A K. JAIN: The capital
employed should also include borrow-
ings.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: That means,
the total assets of the company,

SHRI CHARAT RAM: Yes, gross
fixed assets of the company.

MR, CHAIRMAN: We will consider
it

SHRI A. K. JAIN: The depreciation
provision may become selective in the
case of other areas. But in the case
of backward areas, it should be avail-
able entirely,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider
it,

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Do you think
the changes you have suggested would
really bring about industrialisation in
backward areas?

SHRI A. K JAIN: It would defi~
nitely facilitate the industrialisation
of backward areas. :

SHRIMATI MARJORIE GODFREY:
We should help them in getting raw
materials. Many of them are having
a lot of trouble about that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They say, “Give
us these tax concessions and we- will
manage all that”. . .



SHRI A, K. JAIN: Today the
expenditure on infructuous projects
is allowed neither as revenue expen-
diture nor as capital expenditure.
This causes great difficulty because
out of 4 or 5 projects only one
materialises and “the expenditure on
other projects becomes infructuous.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I don’t think we
would be able to do anything in this
Bill for that.

SHRI A. K. JAIN: Sometimes for
roads and bridges Government says,
“You invest one-third of the money.
We will invest two-thirds of the
money”. That one-third of the money
which the company pays is not
allowed either as revenue or capital
expenditure. These roads and bridges
do not belong to the company.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Palkhivala
also made that point. We will con-
sider it.

SHRI O, P. VAISH: The roads are
not merely for the company’s emplo-
yees. The whole community avails of
that benefit. Then, we have to take
technicians and higher level managers
to such areas. Suppose we take a
man from Delhi. He incurs addition-
al expenditure on the education of
children because he has to send them
to the hostel. Any increase in his
salary is subject to tax at 60 or 70
per cent,

“CHAIRMAN: This is a larger
) 1 want you to crystallise your
suggestions on this point in a sup-
plementary memorandum and send it
to us in the course of a week.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: For setting
up industries in backward areas, you
have said in page 5:

“It may, however, be appreciated
that the setting up of business in

' the remote backward areas is a
| difficuls task. Naturally in such
i areas fasecllities like transport, elec-
wricity, housing. medical, education

and other amenities are not avail-
able.”

That means, you are taking the res-
ponsibility of arranging these facili-
ties. If Government agrees to your
suggestion, will it be possible to start
industriegs in backward areas?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: It will faci-
litate,

SHRI S. R. DAMANI; Government
are very anxious that you should go
to the backward areas. Will it be
possible if we agree to all these sug-
gestions?

SHRI CHARAT RAM: Yes.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: Sir,
I would .request you to ask them to
submit an exhaustive list as to what
are the concessions they need on the
fulfilment of which I can have an
assurance that these people will go to
backward areas like Bhagwalpur.
They need education, tax concession.
good housing and some other things
mentioned in this Bill. I want them
to give us an exhaustive list.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Through this
fiscal legislation we are entering into
the realm of something which has
defled solution all these years, namely,
eradication of regional imbalances
and disparities. = We are unable to
get the induetrialists to go to the
backward areas. According to the
Chamber what are the incentives
which are adequate to make the
industries go to backward areas?
What are the other infra-structure
facilities which should be made avail-
able in the backward areas to lure
and draw industrialists there. You
should include concrete sguggestions
in your memorandum, which we
should get in the course of this week.

¢ SHRI CHARAT RAM: We realise
our responaibility as the apex chamber



to give concrete suggestions for the
achievement of the national goal of
economic development of the back-
ward regions, not only by fiscal mea-
sures but in other ways also. We will
submit shortly our memorandum
which will mention the facilities that
should be developed so that industries
can be established in the backward
areas,

MR. CHAIRMAN: It should be
submitted in the course of the week
because we do not have much time..
Thank you very much.

{SHRI CHARAT RAM: Thank you
very much for giving us this oppor-
tunity.

(The Committee then adjourned).
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(The witness was called in and he took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Palkhivala,
for the purposes of recorq it is neces-
sary for me to once again read out
to you the direction which governs
your evidence before this Committee,
of which you are aware, I am sure.
The evidence you give would be trea-
ted as public and it ig liable to be
published unless it is specifically de-
sired that all or any part of the evi-
dence is to be treated as confidential
Even though you desire so, such evi-
dence is liable to be made available
to Members of Parliament. Please
proceed.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Mr.
Chairman and other Hon. Members
of Parliament. This is a short Bill
and I would like to emphasise some
of the more important features of the
Bil] rather than go through every
detail. You have Clause 2 of the
Bill which seeks to amend section
10(6) (vil-a) of the Income-tax Akt.
The idea underlying this proposed

amendment is a salutary one and I
support it. My only “suggestion is
this. The words which appear at the
enq of the proposed proviso namely:
‘In the case of an individual who is
employed in India for designing erect-
ing or commissioning of machinery
or plant or supervising activities con-
nected with such designing erecting
or commissioning’ should be deleted.
The reason is this. Your proposed
amendment is to enable Govt. to dis-
pense with the condition which al-
ready exists in the Act, namely that
a foreign technician should not be
given exemption if he has been in
India ag a resident during any one
of the four preceding years. Now
what we have found in practice is
this: In the public and private sector—
the position is the same in public
sector,—you have a number of highly
qualified foreign technicians who are
familiar with Indian conditions and
whose presence and misttnce here:
woulq be more valuable than the pre-



sence and assistance of a newcomer,
and yet they are denied exemption
simply because they had come to
India and had been here for such a
length of time as to make them re-
sident during one of the preceding 4
years. What is proposed by this am-
endment is to enable Government to
dispense with this condition, nramely,
the condition that the technician
should not have been here as a resi-
dent during any one of the four pre-
ceding years; and by ommiting the
words which 1 have just now read
out, you would enable the Govt. in
the public interest to waive the condi-
tion of non-residence during the pre-
ceding four years in the case of any
technician. So there can be no ob-
jection to the proposed deletion I
suggest because the power rests only
with the Govt. ang no assessee can
claim the beneflt of the changed law
unless the Government thinks that
in the public interest this particular
condition should be dispensed with.
That is why there is nothing to be
lost but much to be gained by enlarg-
ing the power of the Government in
the manner I have suggested to dis-
pense with the condition in any case
in the public interest.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN. Why you
want to give the discretion to the
Government? In this case you suggest
that discretion should be given to
the Government. Why don't you spell
it out clearly in the statute itself?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: There
are a large number of cases. In some
of the cases it may be in the interest
of India not to permit too long a stay
of foreign technicians; otherwise
Indian technicians will never learn
the gkills. You have got to balance
one good against another or perhaps
one evi] against another. There is
this condition about non-residence in
earlier years. Now, in some cases
Govt. may feel that it is better that
foreign technicians should not stay
here too long in one job after another
Decause otherwise Indians will never
Jearn the skills. That 3¢ why I don’t

think it is against public interest to
permit Govt. to exercise the power.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You suggest that
Government’s power to waive must
not be circumscribed or limiteq only
for those types of engineers or tech-
nicians who are referred to in the:
clause, who are employed in India for
designing, erection, commissioning of
machinery or plant, but it should be
available to any technician. We will
consider it.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Any
technician may be given exemption
although he might have been resident
here in any of the preceding four
years if the Government ig satisfied
that in the public interests such ex-
emption should be given to him.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
What type of other techniciang you
have in mind? What is the effect that
it will have with the changes that
we are proposing to have ang for the
advancement of technology, would
that help the technicians in this coun-
try? Is there any material change
in it?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Yes,
surely. Two basic changes are pro-
poseq in the Bill. Onme is the period
of construction and the other is the
period of operation. The words that
you have already used in the Bill are
to restrict the Government tg permit
exemption only for the period of cons-
truction, whereas I am suggesting
that the scope of the bil] should be
enlarged so ag to cover the period of
operation.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
So far as the operation is concerned,
we are depending so much on foreign
technicians ang not on development
of our Indian technology. Why can’t
we encourage them for the purpose
of operation?

SHRI N. A. PALKRIVALA: This
point, if I may say so with great res-



;pect, would not i@ a valid point for
‘this reason. Even to-day it is open to
any Indian business—public or pri-
vate sector—to employ a foreign tech-
mician and get the exemption. To—
day you can get a foreign technician;
and, after some time. let him go
back and you get another technician
and let the second technician go
away after some time and then get
the third technician. If a technician
‘A’ is here for some years, why are
you preventing others from coming
-over here? You permit ‘A’ technician
to go away and bring ‘B’ technician
.and after some time ‘B’ technician goes
away and you bring ‘C’ technician.
.A, B and C all get exemption. Why
should you not permit ‘A’ technician
who had been here in India already
to be brought over here again for a
new job and get exemption? That
is the only question. Therefore, it is
not as if by permitting this you are
going to prevent Indians from learn-
ing the skills by kind of power which
‘you propose to give by this Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If it is not degir-
able to have a technician in the lar-
‘ger interests, the Government can de-
cide about it. When we want to have
:a technician, that should not be fur-

‘ther  circumscribed. What is your
‘next point?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
next point is very important. That

is the point which arises from Clause
3 which seeks to amend Section 32
©of the Indian Income-Tax Act.

As all Hon., Members are aware,
‘what is suggested is that after
development rebate is abolished in
respect of plant and machinery to be
installed after 31st May, 1974 there
should be a substitute kind of
incentives, namely, initial deprecia-
tion. The initial depreciation would
‘be like this. You claim your ordinary
depreciation in the ordinary course.
But, over and above that, in the first
Yyear of installation or use of the Plant
You get the initial depreciation. That
is Ain addition to ordinary depreciation.
“This initial depreciation is 20%. Now,
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the difference between development
rebate and the initial depreciation is
this, Firstly, the development rebate
gives a deduction to the assessee over
and above his 100 per cent depreciation
over the life of the plant. As it is,
the plant may cost him Rs. 5 lakhs.
You are giving him 20% development
rebate. What happens in practice is
that he gets Rs. 5 lakhs as depreciation
over the life of the plant, and he gets
an extra Rs, 1 lakh a3 a deduction
in the first year of installation or use
of the plant. By contrast, initial
depreciation is taken into account in
calculating the total depreciation that
an assessee would get over the life
of the plant. Therefore, if the plant
costs him Rs, 5 lakhs, by way of initial
depreciation and ordinary depreciation
all taken together, he will not get
more than Rs. 5 lakhs as a deduction.
This is the first difference between
development rebate and initial depre-
ciation. The second difference is that
whereas development rebate is per-
missible to-day in respect of all
industries and the rates are 25% for
the industries which are mentioned in
the Fifth Schedule and 15% for the
industries which are outside the Fifth
Schedule, initial depreciation is to be
restricted only to the 22 industries
which are listed in the Ninth Schedule
which is proposed to be added to the
Act by this Bill. In other words, in
comparison with development rebate,
initial depreciation is a very restricted
relief available only for 22 industries.
These are the two differences between
initial depreciation and development
rebate. If initial depreciation is to be
given in the form as provided in the
Bill, it is just waste of time to make
this change in the law. We can do
without this change. This change has
no meaning at all. Frankly speaking,
if we do it, we would only be the
laughing stock of the world. In other
developing countries nobody cares a
paisa for initial depreciation. Initial
depreciation is just a waste of the
assessee’s time, waste of so much
paper; and in fact I would urge
strongly you better do without it. You
are not going to achieve anything by
this change, After all. what is



happening in the progressive countries
of the world? They permit 100%
depreciation to be written off as the
assessee pleases. For example, in UK.,
the Income-tax was started in the year
1798. It has been borrowed by several
countries including ourselves. In UK.
you can claim total depreciation in the
first year if you like, Take the
countries like Malaysia, Singapore and
other countries which are developing
so fast. Take the countries of Africa.
Take the other various countries like
France, Germany. You will find that
they have no quarrel with any assessee
so far as depreciation is concerned.
Many of the countries are prepared to
allow their assessees to claim their
depreciation allowance in any year
they like. You allow the assessee to
claim in the first, second year or third
year. There is no extra benefit, since
you get 1009 of the rost by way of
depreciation and no more. In our
country, this type of allowance leads
to all sorts of litigations. First of all,
this provision will lead to many
disputes. There are disputes of this
character pending for 20 years. And
there are disputes which are pending
for more than 20 years. The matter
is either at the stage of the high court
or the supreme court for over a period
of years.

By allowing in the first year the
initial depreciation, the assessee is able
to postpone his payment of tax,
whereas development gives him the
reduction in tax. That is the difference
between, development rebate ang initial
depreciation. When you allow him
development rebate he gets a reduction
in tax. When you give him initial
depreciation, he gets no reduction at
all but he enjoys pestponement of his
tax liability by some years.

The position is the same whether
it is the private sector or the public
sector. The private sector, instead of
concentrating on developing the
country, goes on diverting its
attention to the question of tax. Our
attention is very very substantially
diverted to the question of tax
changes which are made from time

0

‘does not succeed at all.

to time. If a sizeable change in the
tax burden fis therq, that is going
to make a difference to the Economy
of the country., If the change is
ridiculously marginal, then nobody is
going to be affected. Don’t make that
change. If we do that, we will go
on wasting time. No sensible man
is really interested in this type of
change. This change will virtually
mean nothing . for the economic
development of this country, From
my eXperience as an adviser to
private sector enterprises, I can say
that in quite a few of them, there
are problems. If initial depreciation
is going to be restricted only to the
cases listed in ninth schedule then
further difficulties will arise. While
taking some of the industries out of
the Fifth Schedule and putting them
in the Ninth Schedule, concurrently
in some cases the words have been
changed and the terminology itself
is changed. In Fifth Schedule, you
have provided 33 priority industries,
but you have got only 22 in the Ninth
Schedule. By political pressures the
industries which deserves to be put
in the Ninth Schedule will be put
only in the Fifth Schedule, By this
sort of thing you allow pressures
being built up and the man with all
the pressures that he commands
succeeds, but the man without a lobby
The result
would be that instead of a rational
approach being adopted, pressures are
just being built up as to what industry
should be included in this Schedule
and what should not be included in
that Schedule. 1 do not think that
initial depreciation will at all give anv
tax relief because, at the end of fifth
vear or so the assessee will be paying
the same tax over the whole period.
By merely postponing the payment of
tax you do not generate resources for
him.

1t is true, of course, that in the first
year, he will have more resources
because his tax liability will be less:
but his tax liability will increase ir
the second year, and over a period of
years no resources will be generated.



That is why Sir, all progressive coun-
tries have rejected initial depreciation
as an antiquated fisca] stimulus, In
England they permit investment
allowance (corresponding to develop-
ment rebate) for the simple reason
that costs are rising all over the world.
Just take for example the fertiliser
plant. What you could instal seven
years ago, if you want to instal the
same plant today it will cost you 100
per cent more. This difference has
come about only in a period of seven
years.

What is your object in doing this
exercise? The object is that this
country may grow and develop. How
you are going to make the country
develop. The way to do is to give
them development rebate. It was an
excellent idea. And, Sir, if ever
development rebate was needed, it is
needed today. It is a colossal mistake
to abolish development rebate. If the
decision is irrevocable, then what is
the way out of the difficulty? My point
is you should do something which will
take care of the situation which exists
today. My primary suggestion is that
you should do something worthwhile
which will have real impact on the
economy. Why was there tremendous
development in the economy during
TTK’s time? He gave four or five
sizeable incentives which had real
impact on the economy.

You should give to the taxpayer—
it applies both to public sector and
private sector—an adjusted deprecia-
tion allowance. The adjusted depre-
ciation allowance means you give
depreciation not merely on the basis
of actual cost of the plant but what
it would cost the man to instal a part
or whole of the plant today. By this
tax relief he will be able to generate
resources and can replace the plant or
instal a new plant.

Since we are faced with all these
problems we have got to generate
enough resources in the public and
private gédtor s6' that development
may take place. If you give adjusted
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depreciation allowance it would be on
the following basis. You take the
actual cost of the plant. Let the
Government publish an index figure
every year to indicate what is the rise
in the cost of such a plant. For
example, if the plant cost Rs. 5 lakhs
in 1970 by the time you come to 1971
the cost has increased by 10 per cent.
So, give depreciation for the second
year, that is 1971, at a rate which takes

" into account this increase cost. At the

same time you ensure that the tax
relief is not squandered away, The
excess of the adjusted depreciation
over the normal depreciation should
be taken to a reserve. The business-
man should be compelled to keep it in
reserve and then flnance new expan-
sion schemes out of this reserve. If you
do that the moneys are not frittered
away in dividends but your economic
development takes place. This problem
is facing the public sector as much as
the private sector. On the present
system of taxation it is even difficult
to keep a plant in good health, apart
from modernisation. The cost is
mounting so high these days that in
the industries which are important one
you are just unable to provide even
for bars good maintenance, Every
plant is g national asset. If any plant
deteriorates, its health goes down, Let
me give you an example. Take, for
example, electricity. Why is there
shortage of electricity in India? We
have got antiquated generating sets
which have not been kept in good
health.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Palkhivals,
any replacement is a 100 per cent re-
venue expenditure. Isn't replacement
of an engine in a truck allowed as an
expenditure to be be written off?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: You
are aware how many litigations are
pending on this very point. We never
get that kind of deduction from the
Department. You have to fight.

_If the financial costs were increasing
normally by 2 per cent then it is some
thing else; but now there is galloping

" inflation, not omly here but abroad.



To-day, perhaps, hon. members may
not be aware, if you place an order
for machinery anywhere, you will
never get a irm quotation. They will
only tell you, that is subect to escala-
tion. How will you be able to generate
resources? My point is with our li-
mited resources we must so deploy and
programme savings that the economy
can develop. If you are going to do
this by fiscal incentives which have
‘an important part to play, given the
right type of tax structure.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: 1t is not at
the cost at which it hag been erected.
It should have a bearing on what the
cost is now. That is his opinion.

Suppose Government says10 per cent
the assessee will contest and it will
be causing litigation.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: It may
even be more. But the man has to
‘take the decision of the Government
under the law. In fact Government
‘will specify the increase in the cost,
for the purpose of adjustment to dep-
reciation. They will give a sizeable
part of the increase. The man has no
reason to complain. The law itself
will provide for the rate of increase
in depreciation. That factor will be
prescribed by the Government year
‘after year and the Government’s deci-
sion will be final. This is not a new
single idea merely to benefit the
‘business man. Throughout Europe it
is being done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Following what
Mr. Sezhiyan has said, I have an-
other reservation about this increased
replacement cost factor being taken
into account for the purpose of dep-
reciation. Whatever be the merits of
this case you will have to appreciate
that it pre-supposes existence of
a very  highly sophisticated tax
mechanism which ig completely
lacking in our country. How is it
possible to introduce such g sophisti-
cated system in a Department where
the whole working is still to come up
to certain standard, even when the
laws are much simpler than this.
‘That, I think, ig one drawback of this
scheme. Do you not think it is real-
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ly very difficult to be working upon
it?

SHRI N. A, PALKHIVALA: My
suggestion is that our existing ad-
ministration would not find it more
difficult to work this scheme than
the various fiscal incentives here
given some yars ago in our past bud-
gets.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is, other
incentives were equally difficult.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA, The
hon. Chairman will recall] the tax
relief based on the additional excise
and tax release on what is exported.
How do you calculate your export
earnings? The Company is selling
goods here and abroad. How do you
calculate the profits made on the ex-
port? How do you allocate overheads
between the sales abroag and the
sales in our country?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The data that
they will have to fall back upon can-
not be got easily.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: 1 do not
think your fear about the inability
of the tax administration 10 gear it-
self to the proposal is a secondary
question. May be, the tax adminis-
tration may be able to adjust it. We

are to accept what the hon. mem-
ber says.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You yourself

suggested that data is requireq by the
Government. Is it possible to get
under the circumstances? Are we
complicating the issue is a point?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: My
point is having regard to the very
abnormal inflationary factor that we
are experiencing. This has become
a necessity and it will not be as if
Government will not be able to cope
with it. We have our dearness allow-
ance increase all the time. On what
basis ig it done?

MR. CHAIRMAN: On the cost of
living index.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: People
of India are getting D. A. on the cost



of living. The wholesale price index
is published every year. The Govern-
ment publishes every year the in-
crease in the cost of food crops, plant
ang machinery, raw materials. They
have gof the data, and statistical data
outlines are published by different
companies. It may well be that Gov-
ernment may not give 100 per cent
total mneutralisation. Quantum is a
different aspect. After all, the ob-
jective is that the economy of the
country must develop. You want un-
employment to go away. This can
be possible by creating more jobs,
by seeing that the financial resources
are deployed in the direction of
growth. The money which you leave
with the public and private sector
will not be used for payment -of divi-
dends, but will not be used for any
public right, except for creation of
more jobs. When you have more
machinery and plant, it will mean
‘more employment, more excise. It
will mean more tax. If you have
this kind of structure the revenue
collections of the Central Govern-
ment would incraese. They would
not decrease because you wil] create
a larger industrial base. You are
going to get more because of more
production. You are going to have
more goods, more excise angq the
scarcity will go.

Steel and Cement costs you in the
black market 100 per cent more than
the controlled price. This is because
of scarcity. We are not able to gene-
rate enough.

About electricity if you see the rea-
son of shortage, it is because the plant
has not been kept in good health. It
is not as if resources are available;
the resources are not there. What I
am suggesting it wil not only gene-
rate resources but compe] the man-
agement to employ resources, take
them into the industrial base and the

net result will be larger collections
for the Government.
SHRI D. D. DESAI; The Govern-

ment is publishing statistics in res-
pect of labour, urban debts, etc. and
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even for the manufacture of goods
and raw materlals required by the
Industry the statistics are more ex-
haustive.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVAULA; I agree,

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: For
long we are hearing that there is not
enough to keep the plant in good
condition. May I know from the
Ministry or his advisors here, is it
not correct that the plants which are
old and not in good health are heap-
ing huge profits. Take for instance
sugar. The obsolete plants are giving
huge amount of profit. How is it
that we are talking of Europe, Nor-
way and other placesy How do those
considerations or argumentg apply in
the case of our country? I want Gov-
ernment to explain this point.

SHRI A. N. PALKHIVALA: May
I answey this question as a witness?

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: I
am not asking the witnesg to reply,
but I want to have this information
from Government. Are there not
plants in this country, which have
not been maintained properly and
whose advisers had given them ad-
vice only to reap huge profits and not
to keep the plants in good health?
How can you, Mr. Chairman, say
that it is not sensible or it is insensi-
ble and so on for the Committee to
have such things? What do you mean
by ‘insensible’? Are you having the
dictionary meaning in mind? You are
saying that there is a complete lack
of the tax system in this country.
I would like to ask whether thig Gov-
ernment is without a tax system. How
is it that you are allowing the witness
to go on haranguing and abusing the
whole Government and the people
while at the same he goes on support-
ing the businessmen only?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Ther hag been
no abuse of the Government. That is
the view of the witness, which he is
canvassing.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: I
understang it that the witness has



put forward one point of view. How
can be says that it is insensible on the
part of the Government or the Com-
mittee to hear all these things? And
1 fing that you are so much charitable
to him that you go on allowing him
to say that it ig insensible and so on
and tell the same story every time to
use.

MR. CHATRMAN: Whenever we
jnvite a witness, it is his right, in
parliamentary language, to »resent his
view. We may not accept it, but that
is another ‘matter.

SHR1I BHAGWAT JHA AZAD:
you cannot allow him to say that it
is insensible for the Committee to
spend its time in this and so om, or
say such unparliamentary things.
After all, this is not a law court.

MR. CHAIRMAN: All that Mr.
Palkhivala stated was that the whole
concept. ...

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD:
First, let my question be replied to
by Government. I have given the
example of cotton, sugar and Hlso
cement about which we are being told
now. When the control was removed
on cement, which we opposed in
Parliament by saying that it was a
wrong decision on the part of Gov-
ernment, it was said that the entire
profit that would accrue thereby
would be reinvesteq in the cement
industry. Now, the witness says that
it should be adjusted because of the
increasing costs, towards the cost of
replacement of the plant. But is the
Government’s tax structure responsi-
ble for increasing costs in this coun-
try? Are not these persons also res-
ponsible for the increasing costs?

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is a matter of
opinion.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: But
we would not allow this kind of opi-
nion to go around. We want to know
from Government the information on

this vital point, whether it is a fact
or not,
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The hon. Mem-
ber can elicit any information he

wants.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: I would like
to make one submission in regard to
a procedural matter. It has been our
convention that whenever we sit in a
Committee like this, if we discuss

any views put forward by any
witness, we do so among our-
selves. If any clarification is re-

quired in regard to the opinion ex-
pressed by the witness, then we can
seek those clarifications from him, but
whatever views we have we should
discuss them among ourselves later.
So, it pains me that there has been a
little bit of deviation from that con-
vention or practice today. I would
suggest that it is better that Govern-
ment do not give that information at
the moment in reply.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is not a view,
but it is factual information which he
is asking for, and if Government have
any information on this point, they
may give it. The point on which in-
formation is sought is whether or nct
plants are being properly maintained.
If the hon. Minister has any informa-
tion on that point, he may give it.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD:1
appreciate what Mr. Guha is saying.
My only point is that the whole argu-
ment of the witness is based gn certain
premises which are wrong in my
opinion.

The first premise is that because of
the tax structure, the resources are not
coming up, and it is made to appear
as if resources could be had only by
means of tax rebates, and that is the
position obtaining all over the world,
in the U.K,, Holland so on and so forth,
secondly, an argument is made about
the plant being kept in good health.
But are there not enough examples in
this country where the plants have
not been maintained in good health
not because there are np resources but
because the management is interested
only in reaping huge profits and sque-
eaing the maximum out of the plant
so that when under the pressure of
public opinion, Government take over



the plants, they would be giving only
junks?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The query in
in short is whether it is the defanlt
on the part of the management or
lack of resources which is responsi-
ble ftor this lamentable state of
Affairs?

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: Is not
the management respopsible for this?
Take, for example, steel. For instance,
in Japan, if for one unit they require
five thousand, we require six hundred
per cent more in our country. Is this
not an instance of mismapagement?
I have no brief for the public sector;
if they are doing something wrong,
they are also to be blamed. But the
Reserve Bank reports show that as
compared to what Japan prodyces,
we need 600 per cent more for produc-
ing the same quantity. Is this pot a
sign mismanagement? I would like
to have information from Government
on this point so that we can appreciate
the point being canvassed by the
witness.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: On the spe-
cific question which the Hon. Mem-
ber hag asked, I do not have the in-
formation immedately available. The
different Secretaries to Government
will be appearing before us and they
will be the proper persons ot answer
this specific question with regard to
various. industries,

MR. CHAIRMAN: On thig point
only, namely; whether the improper
health of the plant is attributable to
lack of resources.

SHR;1 K. R. GANESH: Thig point
hag been discussed time and again
in Parliament. Mr. Palkhivala with
all his erudition is putting forward
a particulay viewpoint. I do not want
to intervene at this stage. But it is
a particular viewpoint, and that
viewpoint i8 not acceptable to many
-of us. Of course, he has every right
to put forwarq that viewpoint with
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all his erudition. But he should also
agree that that it is a view which is
not acceptable to quite g large section
in Parliamept as well as outside and
there is anpother view algo It is not
my purpose to go into that now in de-
tai].

As regards the basic approach
which he is having, in the other Com-
mittee we have said time and again
that the Reserve Bank study has
shown that 292 companies have made
and retained profits at a rate which
was higher, and if these profits are
not being ploughed back, it is not be-
cause of lack of resources or lack of
sgvings but because of other reasons.
I cannot quote any thing better than
the latest Reserve Bank study on this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Palkhivala
please deal with the remarks of Shri
Ganesh ‘also because that impinges on
the question of effective rates.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I shall.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: In
regard to the highest tax incidence, it
has been quoted to us in the other
Commitiee that what is claimed to be
98.67 per cent or so is actually in the
case of the top industries the 298, and
below that it is 40 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The
sector.

-corporate

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
During the last 25 years there has
been a tremendous expansion of the
resources of various companies gene-
rally known as monopoly houses gpart
from other houses. There hag been
expansipn in the present tax structure.
So long during the period when the
development rebate was in force or
was being allowed, there has been
industrial expansion made by these
houses. I would like to know this
from witness who has experience in
these matters. He says that if the
deyelopment rebate is now abolished,
as it ig going to be, there will be a



tremendous retardation in. develop-
ment. How has this development re-
bate been taken advantage of for
expansion? What will be the conse-
quences of its withdrawal? He says
the proposal to allow initial deprecia-
tion is a useless provision and, there-
fore, need not be incorporafed in the
statute at all. What will be the
effect if no provision at all is made?
1 would also like to know his views
how it could be that these big busi-
ness houses are allowing tax arrears
to remain?

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is a question
not related to this. The other ques-
tions are utterly germane.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
The plea, ag I understand, subject to
correction, is that because of the tax
provisions as such, there is no incen-
tive to save and as such there is no
ploughing back of resources. There-
fore, lack of resources is the reason
put forward.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is the pre-
mise on which he has suggested this.

SHRI PALKHIVALA: My function
here is to give honest evidence in all
gincerity. Whether it coincides or
not coincide with the philosophy or
ideology of any one else is, to me,
irrelevant. 1 am on oath to tell you
the truth and I shall tell you the
truth, however unpleasant it may be
to anyone else. I would be failing in
my duty as a witness appearing before
the Select Committee if I try to mouth
any platitudes or say things which are
only pleasant ang comfortable. If
the hon. members are satisfied that
1 am wrong, they will reject my
evidence. If any of the Hon. members
think that I have something worth-
while to say, they will give it impor-
tance. What matters yltimately 1s
the Hon. members’decision. It 13 my

duty and I am on oath to tell you the
truth.
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Now, let me take the points which
are made against me....

SHRI K. R. GANESH: There is 2
difference between truth and view-
point. If you canvass a viewpoint in
the manner you are doing-you ‘have
got to do it-you have also a duty...

SHRI PALKHIVALA: My evidence
consists of two things-opinion and
facts, to the extent to which I have
to express opinion, I can only be true
to my own conscience. To the extent
to which 1 have to tell you facts. I
can only tell you facts as I honestly
know them. So both so far as opinion
and facts are concerned, I can only
give such evidence as I know in my
own conscience to be true. Other-
wise, ] would be wasting your time.
I repeat what I have said before that
if initial depreciation is to be given,in
this form, it is my clear opinion that
it will serve no purpose. If it serves
no purpose, then the corollary follows
that it would not be worth your while
to deal with this aspect.

This is my opinion-and I say it
again.

Now, let me deal with the hon.
member’s points.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: I
understand the vehemence and force
and strength of arguments with which
the witness is defending his viewpoint.
That is correct. But we are also
functioning in this Committee. We
are also on oath. When he puts be-
fore us certain propositions, which
according to our information, are not
true, we have the right to ask him
why he does so. It is not true fo say
that only he has taken oath and that .
we are not on oath.

I have put a few questions. These
questions are of a basic nature. Ac-
cording to facts, the premises of the
witness are wrong. I think Govern-
ment should come forward with the
facts. What is the use of the Com-
mittee if we know that The witness is
proceeding on certain propositions on
the basis of wrong facts?



SHRI D. D. DESAI: The Committee
consists of more than one member.
It is not proper to give more empha-
gis only to one viewpoint.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are also
entitled to seek elucidation. I am
sure witness will give it. We are on
the question: to what do we attribute
the ill-health? We want him to give
his viewpoint.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
Mr. Palkhivala has just now said that
the initial depreciation, as contempla-
ted in the Bill, will not serve any
purpose. It ig his opinion. I want to
know from him what are the factors
that contributed to his coming to that
conclusion. So far as I am concerned,
I do not wish to enter into a contro-
versy with the witness. My questions
are directed to getting certain clari-
fications from him so that we can con-
sider his viewpoints more objectively.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I am
grateful to you. In fact, I was just
going to say that the question put by
the Hon. member who just spoke is,
to my mind, very crucial. His ques-
tion was: Please let us know the data
how much development took place
when development rebate was allowed
and what is the rate of development
now? It is a very relevant question.

SHRI K. P. UNNIKRISHNAN:
There are other factors also operating
in the economy.

SHRI N, A, PALKHIVALA: 1 wish
the factors could be gone into. You
would be really surprised to find the
difference between the rate of growth
in those years and the rate of growth
now. Speaking from memory, the rate
of growth during the years develop-
ment rebate was allowed was about 8
per cent ag against the rate of growth
which has dwindled to 3 or less than
3 per cent recently, which, to my
mind. ..

MR, CHAIRMAN: Development re-
bate is still intact.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I was
going to say that it would dwindle

" further after development rebate is

abolished. Why was develppment re-
bate given? It was given a8 an en-
couragement, as an incentive. The
hon. member asked: why do I think
that initial depreciatipn by itself will
serve no purpose. The reason is:
it will serve no purpose, as a sti-
mulus to economic growth. That
is the whole point of this de-
bate. Will it serve as a stimulus to
economic growth? 1 say it will not,
for this reason, that so far as initial
depreciation is concerned, it only
means, as I said. that in the {inv
year you will get more depreciatio..
but less depriciation in subsequent
years,

Let me give an example. You en-
gage a man on a salary of Rs. 1000.
He says ‘Look, this is inadequate;
Please give me more’. You say ‘All
right. I wil] give you Rs. 1500 in the
first year, but in the subsequent year
you will get Rs. 500'. This is the
exact point about initial depreciation.
You are not giving any incentive to
the man when you tell him. ‘Your
salary will remain Rs. 1000 per
annum. I will give you Rs. 1500 in
the first year; in the subsequent year
you will get only Rs. 500’. He will
tell you, ‘Looking over a period of two
years, 1 am only getting what I was
getting before’. You say, ‘No; I give
you an incentive’. He says ‘No, Sir;
there is no incentive to me’. It this
homely illustration will bring home
the point to hon. Members, T have
explained myself. It is exactly this
and nothing else.

What happens in development re-
bate? You tell the man. ‘Look, your
ealary is Rs. 1000. It will remain
Rs. 1000. But in the first year I will
give you extra Rs. 200 when you are
in charge of this new plant. After-
wards, you will get Rs. 1000,

These are the two types of exam-
ples. In ome case you give a .regular
salary every year. In the Arst year



you give something extra. That is
development rebate. In the 3étond
case, you give a higher salary in the
first year, but a lowér salary in the
subsequent year. The whole effect
of the initial deprecxatxon is that over
a period of years what he gets in the
first year he wili not get by way of
deduction in the subsequent year, This
is the point.

That ig why what I am suggesting
is this. Appatently, people are con-
cerned—som: of us are concerned
with the lack of economic growth.
Some of us feel that the idea of eco-
nomic growth is not that a few poc-
kets may be lined but that the poor
may one day see a better tomurrow
and there would be more employment
for them and more revenue for Gov-
ernment.

Now I may give an example. Sup-
pose the rate of industrial growth was
12 per cent g year, it has been calcu-
lated beyond question that the
Central Government alone would get
Rs. 1000 crores annually by way of
extra revenues, leaving aside the
State Govern'ments who will get more
sales-tax. The Central Government
alone will get Rs. 1,000 crores per
anhum more if the industrial rate of
growth wag 12 per cent. There may

be resources, but the resources are

neither available to the honest people
nor the Government, which the
blackmarketeers and tax-evaders who
are getting more and more prospero-
us, The whole object of what I am
saying is, prosperity should not be
confined to the tax-evaders and black-
marketeers, but prosperity should be
uniform throughout the country. As
a result of these shortages, as a result
of development not taking place, I
must tell you and 1 repeat that
statement that if a handful of indivi-
duals are lining their pockets, I do not
want that to happen. By giving the
type of fiscal incentive that 1 have in
mind, you will be only helping the
honest The dishonest do note care

for your fisca]l incentives. They give
thelt incentives to themselves. They
are prosperous and happy. As a result
of expansion not taking place, who
is gaining today? Take fertilisers. It
is not the producer who is gaining.
The man who sells it in the market at
a hundred per cent premium gains.
Again, in the matter of coal, the Gov-
ernment cprporation is getting far
less than what it deserves. The
dealer gets a hundred per cent profit
here also.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: I
am happy you have mentioned the
case of fertilisers. But we know it; we
know the dealer gets hundred per
cent. It is known. But then the produ-
cers in Bombay, the biggest industri-
alists in the country, before they
despatch every wagon, charge from the
dealer 100 per cent. Why? Who is the
big producer who is producing and
charging the peasents and the farmers
indirectly through the dealers?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Who-
ever charges, whether it is the dealer
or the manufacturer, my point is this
Please give incentive to the honest.
Assuming the facts are correct, as-
suming that the manufacturer is
charging extra, he ig not worried
about the fiscal incentives. Your fiscal
incentive is no more than a flea-bite to
him; he has enormous fortunes
which he has built up. The dishonest
are going the easy way. The wealth
is being distributed from the honest
rich to the dishonest rich. These in-
centives are only for the honest; the
dishonest do not care for the incen-
tives.

I want this hon. Committee to apply
its mind to the question whether the
time has not come when the honest
people who will not make black-
market money but honestly pay your
tax, should benefit by the fiscal in-
centives which are only for the honest
tax-payer. The tdx-evader does not
need 20 per cent; he will take 40 per-
cent. and he is not waiting for your
incentive. Your ineentive are only
meant to help the Honest. You will



te. distorting the piciure if you do not
bear in mind the basic fact that these
incentives are really meant for the
actual development of the efforts
of honest peeple. I will not take more
time on this. If the hon. Members
ultimately decide that they will have
ijnitial depreciation and nothing else,
that they will not adjust the deprecia-
tion allowance. In that case, I have
three submissiong to make as to the
way in which you can improve the
scheme, s0 as to make it worthwhile.

On the assumption that you will
have only initial depreciation and no-
thing else, my suggestiong are these,
to improve the scheme and make it
worthwhile. The first is, initial depre-
ciation should be given to all in-
dustries, because you are giving it
only for new plant and machinery.
That means only in those cases, where
some expansion takes place. My sub-
mission is that 40 per cent initial de-
preciation should be given in those
cases where the industry falls within
the Ninth Schedule which you propose
to  introduce, Dbecause according
to the Governments thinking presum-
ably, that is the most important sec-
tor of the economy, and that is
why they have picked up 22 indus-
tries and those 22 industries must get
40 per cent initial depreciation.
Those industries which are in  the
existing Fifth Schedule and which
do not occur in the Ninth Schedule
should get 25 per cent by way of ini-
tial depreciation.  All other indus-
tries which fall neither in the Ninth
Schedule nor in the Fifth Schedule
should get 20 per cent initial depre-
ciation. If you do this, first of all, you
will eliminate the political pressures.
1 am unable to say on what rational
basis some industries have been ex-
cluded and some others are included
in the Ninth Schedule. Some industri-
es are equally vital for us. In  fact,
they are, from certain points of view,
‘more vital. But they have been exclud-
ed. Give initial depreciation to all the
industries but in varying proportions;
then the concerned people will not

grumble merely because one industry
has been given more and the other
less. This is my first suggestion which
involves the point that the principle
cf the initial depreciation should be
applied to all industries and the rates
should be 40 per cent., 25 per cent and
20 per cent depending on whether it
is in the Ninth Schedule, Fifth Sche-
dule or it is outside both the Schedu-
les.

My second suggestion is this. It is
even more important than the first
suggestion. We must do something to
see that your intial depreciation be-
comes something more then mere
postponing of taxes and becomes more
than a giving a higher salary to the
employee in the first year and cutting
his existing salary in the $econd year.
This is really what initial deprecia-
tion does over a period of yaars. In
order that there may be some real
incentive, please treat initial deprecia-
tion as something which shouldq not be
taken into account in deciding the
totality of depreciation to be enjoyed
over a period of years. In order to do
that, I have given the actual draft.
That will be useful.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If we accept that
principle, your draft will help us.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Since
I have given it in the memorandum, I
will not repeat it now. Now you can
ask, are we not reviving development
rebate, because development rebate
was also in addition to depreciation.
My answer is no. In order that it may
not be development rebate which is re-
vised, I have made two suggestions.
Firstly, in deciding what would be the
balancing charge.

1 take one example, I will give the
very same one which I have mention-
ed in the written memorandum.
Suppose, for the purpose of argument
the cost of an asset is Rs. 1,000 and
the initial depreciation which has
been enjoyed is Rs. 200. The normal
depreciation is Rs. 600. In all he



should g.t Rs. 800. Ultimately, when
he discards the asset and ig able to
gell it for Rs. 300, having enjoy-
ed Rs. 800 as initial depreciation and
having gdot Rs. 300 by way of sale-
price, he getg Rs. 1,100. Suppose it
was a development rebate, he would
not have been taxed at all, whereas
under my suggestion he will be taxed
on the balance of Rs, 100. Likewise
take the question of balancing allow-
ance in the event of there being a
shortfall when he sells, Suppose the
asset cost him 1000. The normal dep-
reciation was 600, initial depreciation
was 200, he is able to sell it for 150.
He has 600 - plus 200 plus 150
sale price making in all Rs. 950, It
will be taken into account in deciding
what must be the balancing allowance
which would be only Rs. 50.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The tax payment
is postponed to the date of his dispo-
sal, If he disposes of the assets and
it he realises less, he will have obso-
lescene allowance deduction; if he
realises more it will be taken into
account.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
great advantage will that so long as
he continues to maintain it in good
health he will enjoy the benefit of ini-
tial depreciation ag if it is an excess
deduction which ig given to him.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We shall consi-
der this.

SHRI N. K, SANGHI: In case we
think on the lines of balancing it for
the purpose of writing down the
value when it is discarded, may we
take it that the first suggestion is to
be overlooked?

SHR] N. A. PALKHIWALA: My
first suggestion is: you give adjusted
depreciation allowance. If you accept
the first suggestion, the subsequent
alternative does not arise for consi-
“deration. Since I do not know which
way the hon. Committee will ultima-
tely decide on this matter, I am
making an alternative suggestion,

- MR. CHAIRMAN: The second sug-
gestion ig closer to the Bill.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: It
needs only a little adjustment, If you
accept the second suggestion in my
point of view it would be still diffe-
rent from the development rebate; it
would not merely duplicate the deve-
lopment rgbate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You said that
the way these were mentioned in the
Schedule led to litigation. We are
examining this after noon witnesses
from the Government, who will ex-
plain to us the rationale behind this.
It appears from the Statement of Ob-
jects and Reasons that possibly we
may add or subtract from the Sche-
dule but we shall have to basically
adhere to the Schedule. That being
so, to avoid litigation, do you think
it would be better to make the des-
cription of the industries more ex-
haustive?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I sug-
gest that hon. Members may not de-
viate from the terminology already
ured, because once you deviate you
are going to have a crop of liiigation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Does the Bill de-
viate?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: A par-
ticular industry is mentioned in the
Fifth Schedule. It glso happens to be
mentioned in the proposed Ninth Sche-
dule but the terminology is different.

MR. CHAIRMAN:; It should be dif-
ferent unless you intend to restrict
the scope of the industry itself.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
learned Committee could consider
why a change is necessary. Once
you are satisfied that the change is
relevant, one will have to examine
whether the phraseology used is ac-
curate or needs some revision.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: 1 take
it that litigation was going on in res-
pect of the industries Thentioned in

.the Fifth Schedule, because the Ninth

Schedule is being brought in now.
What are the industries with referen-
ce to which litigation is going on?



SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I should
certainly be able to give the cases
within my knowledge. My point is
that the terminologies used have al-
ready resulted in litigation. The new
terminology used is not such ag to
set at rest the doubts which have al-
ready arisen and broadly speaking,
they are such that they will raise a
fresh crop of disputes. Some of the
disputes which arose under the 5th
Schedule have already been subject
matter or decided cases because the
Fifth Schedule had been there for so
many years. You will start another
crop of litigation by having some new
industries ang also by having a diffe-
rent terminology far industries which
are already there, I shall try to re-
call those cases which have resulted
in litigation. Of course my list will
be a limited one.

MR. CHAIRMAN: .f you are good
enough to send it quickly, it would
help us.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: What are
the points that are being noted as
matters of deviation? What is the
exact deviation that you notice here?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Some
examples have been given in the
memorandum from the Bombay
Chamber of Commerce. '

nrEa

MR. CHAIRMAN: Some of them
are there. One may want to be
strict; one may want to be liberal.
But one has to be clear. We shall
consider it, if you could send it to us
as quickly ag possible.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I shall
apply my mind to it straightaway and
send it quickly.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: The manu-
facturers who had come to us say
that the amount which is being allo-
wed should be an increased percen-
tage because they say that after 15
years the ecost goes up and that money
allowed was not enough to replace
the machinery. I asked them the
question. Every year a certan

amount: is: put away by way of depre-
ciation which is ultimately to be uti-
liseq for replacement. The cost at
the time of replacement may be two
timeg or even. three times. Cap this.
amount not be funded with the Gov-
ernment as replacement finance? Gov-
ernment will pay intérests on that
and this amount will be available to
the industry at the end of the period.
It will also be a larger amount for
replacement. I had asked this ques-
tion because today we find that many
indus'ries utilise the depreciation
amount for other purposes like invest-
ment in more profitable sectors, re-
payment of loan etc. In the mean-
time, the unit becomes rick angd is
closed down. -

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Fund-
ing with the Government will not
help for two reasons. Suppose a
man borrows Rs. 1 crore from a na-
tionalised bank to instal a plant. You
give him depreciation. He has got
to repay the loan in a certain number
of instalments. All these expansions
etc. have to be on borrowed money
because internal resources are not
sufficiently generated. If he is asked
to deposit the amount with the Gov-
ernment, he wil] not have the money
to repay the loan. When you are
dealing with some well-established
sector like steel, it is all right. But
when you are dealing with thousands
of small peole, it will play havoc,
My suggestion is, if you find they
misuse i{ and do not use it for the
purpose specified, you take it back.
That is what happens in the case of
development rebate. If the develop-
ment rebate is not used for its legi-
timate purpose, there is a provision
in the Act which says that the Gov-
ernment will take back the develop-
ment rebate granted years ago. Like-
wise you can provide that if this re-
serve is misused, the amount which
haq been deducted in the past will
be taxable ag if it was income of
that particular vear.

SHR! VASANT SATHE: By giving
this initlal depreciation, we are los-



ing tax. In addition, we are provid-
ing money for repayment of loan.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: You
are providing money for repayment
of loan in order that there may be
additional assets created or replace-
ment of assets, which after a period
of years will cost much more. The
whole object of the exercise is to
take care of inflation. In days when
there was no inflation, no country
gave this relief. Today it is given
because all the time costs are mount-
ing. You are giving it in order that
the businessman may have some re-
sources to meet the expenditure on
development, modernisation, expan-
sion, etc. The whole object is to give
something more in order that the
plant may not just die down.

Sir, I wanted three changes to be
made and I have finished with two.
The third one is, in ciause 2(b) of the
explanation you have deflney new
machinery or plant like this:

“Machinery or plamt would quali-
fy to be treated as new machinery
or plant if such machinery or plant
is imported in India by the assessee
from any country outside India.”

"My suggestion is that the words “by
the assessee” should be deleted. This
is an inadvertent error. The STC
may import it for him or some other
person may import it. So long as
‘it is mew plant or machinery, what
difference does it make whether it is
‘imported by the assessee or STC or
‘some other person?

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consi-
der it.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA. My
next point is about clause 4, amend-
ment of section 34.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I will give the
backgreund to this. Every time the
department calculates depreciation,
there is difficulty with the overhead.
There are varying rates for different
items. Therefore, to get rid of this
‘botheralion thée fnr AT, R has been

decideq that the prescribed authority
will give the certificate and I.T.O, will
give you the depreciation.

SHR! N. A. PALKHIVALA: Inter-
nal audit creates more difficulties for
the income-tax department and for
the tax-payer. There are any num-
ber of decided cases where the de-
partment has acted absolutely cor-
rectly and the audit hag been proved
to be wrong. The audit man is not a
gualified lawyer or expert. Suppose
you do not collect a tax or there are
mathematical errors in calculation,
audit can poimt that out. But who
is the audit to tel] the income-tax
department, “You may read the sec-
tion in one way. But I read it in
another way”?

MR. CHAIRMAN: we are dealing
with it in some other Committee.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA. If you
have a certificate from the prescribed
authority, that does not interfere at
all with the powers of audit. They
have a right to say that the certifi-
cate was wrong. It will only mean,
the I.T.O. will zay, “If anybody has
made a mistake, it is not I, but the
prescribed authority”. So, from the
point of view of litigation, what dif-
ference does it make? What does
the prescribed authority certify? Not
that this is the amount of deprecia-
tion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: No. They certi-
fy the type of machinery, as a result
of whidn classification will be very

easy.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Leave
aside big cities like Bombay or Delhi.
Take small place which is 60 or 80
miles away from Delhi. Suppose a
small new factory is started there by
a small man anq he installs a new
machinery. He ig only g small man
and not a big business man. There
are thousands of such small business-
men in Punjab. He installs such
machinery anq he says it is agricul-
tural machimery. He has got his
plant. But he cannot fils the return



1ill he Hds got hold of a certificate
ffom the préscribed authority, on
paymetit, of course. That authority
has to look at the machinery and cer-
tity that this machinery is needed for
the purpose. Just consider what
would happen. Suppose the tax-payer
thinks that this machinery is needed
for the purpose anq the prescribed
authority feels it is not needed, who
is to decide? I would say with the
greatest respect that you are prvent-
ing a man from agitating his point
under the law.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I Can he not go
in appeal?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Where
is the appeal against refusal to give
a certificate? There is no such appeal.
There is a small tax-payer 80 miles
away from Delhi. He is honestly
convinced that the plant is required
for his purpose and it may be that
ultimately the High Court will vindi-
cate that he is right. He thinkg that
this machinery is needed for the pur-
pose of his business. He goes to the
prescribed authority .There is no gua-
rantee that your prescribed authority
will be omniscient, sensible etc. There
are men and men. Some people have
the requisite knowledge and others
do not have, and we have no control
on who will be appointed. The per-
son who has installed the machine
goes to the prescribed authority and
asks for 5 certificate. The authority
goes to the factory. Money is wasted.
Even though I am not on the mone-
tary aspect, you compel the assessee
to pay the money. The authority goes
and inspects the machinery ang says
“lI do not think this machinery is
needed”. Now, this prescribed au-
thority is not an expert op all indus-
tries, but he is dealing with hunderds
of industries. How can one man know
about agriculture, ship-building and
a host of other things. Thig one man,
your prescribeq authority, would be
dealing with 20 different industries.
He would say “look, with my limited
knowledge I am satisfled that this is
not needed”. Se, thére 15 mo certi-

Acate fortheomirng and the man can-
not clairh deduction. It is not as if
a man ultimately vindicate himself.
He just cannot claim a deduction,
because you make it impossible for
him to claim a deduction by not giv-
ing him a certificate. You are pre-
venting a tax-payer from even agi-
tating his point even though he may
be completely in She right.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Suppose a
man has got 25 pieces of machinery.
He may be having five pieces which
cannot be actually utilized and he
may be wrongly claiming deduction.
There must be some mechanism to
check it. At the same time, the pres-
cribed authority should not arbitari-
ly say so many pieces are not
needed. ’

SHRI N, A. PALKHIVALA: You
may ask what is the difference bet-
ween the existing practice and the
proposed one. The difference is very
wide. As it is ,the income-tax officer
is entitled to have a check. I am
assuming there are gtill some honest
men in this country. If the income-
tax officer after inspection disallows
depreciation, I can fight it out. But
here even if you provide for an appeal
or revision against the decision of the
prescribeq authority, you would have
provided a cumberous procedure.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If the Depart-
ment really makes out a very strong
case for the prescribed authority. we
will ensure that an assessee will not
be debarred from having a valid
remedy. Secondly, we will ensure
that it is not cumberous and onerous.
Thirdly, if at all there is to be a pres-
cribed authority, he ha3 to be a
technical person. Care will be taken
of that.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Will
you kindly consider what problems
you are creating, supposing the pres-
ctibed authotrity does not give a certi-
Retite in time? Have you heard of any
cotumntry where you have a prescribed
authority’s certificates to claim ordi-



nary deprication? Even when you gave
development rebate, did you provide
for such a prescribed authority? We
will only manufacture white-collared
jobs and not produce anything for the
country. There would be thousands
of people all over the country who
would be doing useless paper work.

SHRI R. D. SHAH: I entirely appre-
ciate the viewpoint of the hon, wit-
ness. But the Income-tax officer is
not a technical man. We have found
that what he has treated as a priority
industry has been objected to in audit.
Simijlarly, in many cases Income-tax
officerg have allowed depreciation at
a rate which wag objected to by audit
saying that this depreciation rate
should not have been applied. There
are some borderline cases where this
happens. There is revision of many
such assessments in that grey area and
this meang a lot oi inconvenience both
to the Department and to the tax-
payer. Here the underlying idea was
that the technical man in the Indus-
tries Ministry would only say that
this is a priority industry or not, I
would like to make it clear that there
is no intention of the person in the
technical Ministries going and verify-
ing the machinery in respect of those
articles which are to be produced, as
outlined in the Schedule. So, with a
certificate that “this ‘machinery is
installed for thig purpose” the matter
ends,

Then comes the next question. If
the audit raises an objection, it will
raise an objection against the techni-
cal man whose view ultimately would
be final. Today audit can raise an
objection against the view of an
Income-tax officer pecause he is not
& technical man. We have seen in a
number of cases this controversy bet-
ween the Income-tax man and the
audit ‘man” as to whether a particular
industry is a priority indsutry or not
and both of them are non-technical
man. Therefore, because of this pro-
vision, the volume of litigation would
come down rather than increase. Of
course, ‘“we can improve upon it.

SHRI N. A, PALKHIVALA:May:
I give two answers to this? Take
agricultural machinery, a simple case.
There will be hundreds of different.
items. How can the prescribed autho-
rity dealing with this problem be
expected to know all these items?
Secondly, even assuming you want to
have a change, you should provide
that in the event of a dispute between
the ITO and the assessee, the matter
will have to be referred to the pres--
cribed authority and then the assessee
would have the right of appeal against
the decision of the prescribed autho-
rity. Otherwise, as it is, what happens
if the prescribed authority is wrong?

MR. CHAIRMAN: We see the
validity of the argument. We do not.
want unnecessarily to burden the
department with work which is not
really fruitful, which is not going to
put an end to litigation. We will
certainly consider this.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: If at
all you want to have any reference to-
the prescribed authority, do not do’it
at the stage of the assessment; let it
be at a later stage. Take the proce-
dure in the case of wealth tax. If
there is a dispute between the depart-
ment and the tax-payer, then it goes.
to the valuer. Here also you can pro-
vide for the same kind of machinery..
In the event of a dispute between the
ITO and the department, specifically’
for the purpose of the Ninth Schedule-
it will be referred to the valuer.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Here the dispute-
ig between the I.T.O. and audit.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Audit.
should not interfere with the discre-:
tiori of the department. I honestly
tell you that this new provision will
benefit only a few professional law-
yers and nobody else.

SHR! ERA SEZHIYAN: Why do-
you presume that audit will not have:
competent persons?
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SHRI N. A, PALKHIVALA; So far
.as audit is concerned, it consists of
-people who are expertg in accounting
‘but ‘not in other matters.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: I beg to
.differ from you. I have worked in the
Public Accounts Committee and I
have come across many competent
. auditors.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Internal
-audit is different,

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: I have
seen statutory audit people from close
-quarters. They have been very help-
ful in interpreting the statute,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are seized of
“that matter and we are going to find
-out, to what extent they are liable to
“the interpret the law.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: It
-was said that the audit may not be
knowledgeable. Suppose in this case,
the competent authority is the Minis-
try of Industrial Development, will
that do? There is a dispute at present
and it is said that it has been done
wrongly because the other person
-doeg not know. It can be otherwise
.also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According
“him, LT.O. should take care of it.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: 1 will
-explain this. Development rebate and
~depreciation have been worked for so
‘many years without any preacribed
authority. What ig the trouble? Some-
“times if the Audit raises an objection,
‘the same may be fought out.

to

MR. CHAIRMAN: They say that
half of their energies are wasted in
‘fighting out the audit.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Your pro-
blem will be solved, Mr. Palkhivala.
if the competent authority, az Mr.
Bhagwat Jha Azad pointed out just
‘now, is really a knowledgeable autho-
rity like the Industrial Development
Ministry ‘with all the staff for every
fleld right from electronics to agricul-
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ture. I believe, that the men in the
Ministry of Industrial Development
are ag knowledgeable as the man who
has started the Unit. Take for instance
a layman in Punjab, who has started
an industry for manfacturing a parti-
cular item. I believe, his knowledge
can be equated at leagt with the
knowledge of the technical man in the
Ministry. If that is so, and if in the
initial stage, he were to certify that
here is an industry which falls within
thig schedule, it will enable tHat
assessee to avoid any further difficulty.
That will be binding on the LT.O. If
we provide in law that it will be the
final authority to certify, to that
extent, that will bind the hands of
the audit. Will not that solve the
problem?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: There
are two types of cases. While you
have dealt with one type of cases, with
respect I would say, that you have left
out the second category. You have
dealt with the category, where the
preacribed authority agrees with the
assessee. But what about the other
category, where the prescribed autho-
rity say, ‘no, your business does not
fall within the Ninth Schedule. What
is the remedy?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: We pro-
vide a machinery for appeal to the
assessee. It will be technical man. If
an appeal is provided, 1 think, that
will solve the problem.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Then
you 'must have the prescribed autho-
rity for thirty other provisions. You
see, what the magnitude of the pro-
blem is. Take depreciation, and see
how we are tackling it. You have
different rates of depreciation. You
must have a prescribed authority for
that also to tell you which of the
different rates of depreciation applies.

‘Then there are disputes with the
-Audit, with the Department about the

newly established undertakings, Does
it really come within the definition or
is it outside? Ig it an expansion of an
existing unit or otherwise? There are
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hundredg of cases like this, where the
disputes grise between the Incme Tax
and the Audit and Income Tax Depart-
ment and the assessees. If you want
a certificate in this case, you should
have certificates for other cases also.
These problems arise all the time.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Who will
decide that? I.T.O. is not an experi-
enced person.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider
what Mr, Palkhjvala has said on this
point. It is a very_valid point. If it
remains, it will remain in a manner
that minimym hardship is caused
either way. '

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
Mr. Palkhivala says that if the pres-
cribed authority does not agree with
the assessee, without providing for an
appeal, it will cause hardship. But
why not an assessment made on a
certificate which is not accepted by
the assessee, in appeal that can be
taken up. That question can be gone
into then. Why a separate appeal
should he required.

SHRI N, A. PALKHIVALA: As the
provision is provided, unless an asses-
see gets a certificates, he has no right
to claim initial depreciation. The
right is conditional on the certificate.
That is why, an appeal would have
to be separately provided for.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
Supposing it is provided a certificate
hag to be given. There is no question
of not giving a certificate. That would
be a subject matter of appeal from
the assessment order.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: There
is no right of appeal. He will be
asked, “Did you produce a certificate”.
Appeal will be dismissed without a
certificate. That is a condition here.

MR. CHAIRMAN: One company is
engaged in the manufacture of nylon
yarn from imported capro-lactum. The
Company’s claim that it is engaged in
the manufacture of articles falling
within item 18 of the Fifth Schedule
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wag accepted by one 1.T.O. The succes-
sor 1.T.Q. took a dierent view. Accord-
ing to the latter L.T.O., while capro-
lactum is a petro-chemical, the further
processing of capro-chemical into
nylon does not fall within item No. 16
of the Fifth Schedule. The Reyenue
Audit has also taken a view in con-
formity with the later 1.T.O.s view
and has pointed out that in the earlier
years, there has been considerable
under-assessment on account of incor-
rectly treating the Compeny as one
engaged in priority industry. To
resolve the issue, expert opinions
from three or four authorities have
been obtained and even the opinions
of the experts have been found not to
be uniform.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: ITOs
are being unnecessarily criticised. The
existing remedy is adequate. The
Department has the right to appeal, as
also the assessee. Let it work. For
ordinary depreciation, this problem
arises all thg time. When you instal
something in your maganese ‘mine or
coal! mine, the question is always
there. whether it ig electrical machi-
nery or a mining machinery. This
problem aris's again and again. I
have myself appeared for a public
sector undertaking, where we went to
the Supreme Court. If you start like
thiz, there will no end. Everyday
your Customs Officers have to decide,
whether 3 particular item imported is
item A or B. He decides, and he is
the one who decides all the time. You
don’t need the Industries Ministry to
deal with it. How do you deal with
the customs cases and excises cases
every day? You will undoubtedly
have these problems when you say
that discretion will be exercised. One
man may take one view and another
man mav takeé another view. This is
necessarily incidental.

You will have to provide a fairly
cumersome procedure for the right of
appeal againat refusal of the certi-
ficate, even if the certificate is to be-
produced not at the time of flling the



return, but before the assessment.
Suppose the authority has wrongly
refused to give you the certificate or
suppose the authority is too bhusy, the
assessment will havg to be postponed.
You will have five thousand matters
pendijng before the prescribed autho-
rity and he may take time to deal with
them. In the meantime the assess-
ment cannot be completed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us go to the
next point.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA; The
next item ig clause 5 which seeks to
amend Section 35. The idea is that
whatever has been spent on scientific
research before the commencement
of the business should bg allowed. The
intention is to help scientific research.
But if the change is to be in this form,
it is not worth making the change at
all.

In the Explanation to Section 35(1)
(i) on p. 4 of the Bill, the following
is sought to be inserted:

“Wherever such expenditure has
bezn laid out or expanded before
the commencement of the business
within three years immediately be-
for the commencement of the
business”,

These conditions are such that any
man will say “Kindly leave me alone;
I don’t want it”. First he has to go to
the prcsoribed authority ang tell him
what the gcientific research was about
and how he incurred expenditure
three years before the commencement
of the business and so many other
t?:ings. When you realise how much
time it takeg just for the licence appli-
cation to be cleared. you will be sur-
p.nsed. I am asking myself the ques-
tion whether it makes any sense or is
logical that if I incur expenditure on
scientific research of about 2 lakhs
before the comcencement of the busi-
ness, I must go to the prescribed
authority for certificate; but if I conti-
nue to incur expenditure for thirty
Yearg after the commencement of the
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business, I can get thirty years' deduc-
tion without such a certificate. Does
this make any sense? My asubmission
ig that this “jprecribed authority”
should go. Yoy are just creating
white-collar jobs and a lot of paper
work and nothing else. Let the ITO:
decide. If you ask ‘me whethzr he is
competent for this, then I will ask the
question; how is he competent to
decide after the business has com-
menced and is going on?

The second point is that the deduc-
tion is confined only to salaries and
the cost of materials. But power, rent
etc. are also items on which expendi-
ture is incurred. You should either
allow research expense properly or not
allow it at all. What about the fuel
and rental charges? And if he has to
go about by car, what about the per-
quisites like travelling allowances etc.
Al] that is being ignoreq and only the
bare salary will he allowed. What is
the logic behind this? Perquisites are
permitted even under the Income-tax
law; but they are to be ignored here.
This, I submit, does not make to me
any sense. Js this the idea of the
Government for promoting industrial

research?

MR. CHAIRMAN: We must find out
fronm the Government as to what is
the rationals behind this. If they are
going to allow some expenditure relat-
ing to research, why is it that they
are taking only the bare salary and
allowances and_leaving out other
things? In the afternoon we will be
examining the people responsible for
this.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Now, you
say that the clause should be made
more comprehensive and that we
should take away the prescribed
authority?

SHR] N. A. PALKHIVALA: That is
one point. My other objection is that
you are not allowing anything like the
real scientific research expenses which
must be allowed.



‘SHRI VASANT SATHE: So
evant 1o make it more comprehensjve?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Yes. For
example, the salaries are subjected to a
certain ceiling; you cannot give any-
thing you like they are restricted
under the rules. So all these restric-
tions are there, but subject to those
restrictions, whatever items of expen-
diture are there should be allowed.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA:
expenditure also.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: That
is what I am pointing out.

Research

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As a student
of science I would say that the witness
is 100% right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Well, don't con-
«<ede anything in his presence!

SHBI N. A. PALKHIVALA: X must
'make some sense. You incur expenses

.on rent; you incur expenses on
transport. These are all items of
expenditure incurred on scientific

research; so why net given a reduction
for them?

Then, my next point is in regard to
p. 4 You say that you will give
deduction to a person provided he
‘makes the donation for the purpose
of research relating to the “business
carried on by him”. My suggestion is
that it should be “business or pro-
fession carried on by him” because
thcre are doctors, engineers etc. who
carry on a profession and not a busi-
ness. Therefore, my suggestionis that
on page 4 Section 35 line 44 the words
starting from “related to the business
-carried on by him” should be deleted
from the proposed Bill.

‘MR. CHAIRMAN: That means sub-
section (1) to be used for scientific
research related to be business carried
on by him” is not necessary.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Suppose
a man wants to give a lakh of rupees
for research purposes, let him .contri-
‘bute that amount for research
‘institutions......
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SHRI VASANT SATHE: How will
you define the scientific research or
otherwise carried on by him?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
safeguard is given on page 5 of the
proposed Bill. “Provided that the
scientific research is undertaken under
a programme approved in this behalf
by the prescribed authority having
regard to the social, economic and
industrial needs of India.” So you
have a complete check on this, Omly
that research which is approved by
the Government, which the Govern-
ment thinks is in the interest of India
will be considered.

"MR. CHAIRMAN: Why should it
be related to the business carried on
by him as long as it is for scientifis
research? We wil] consider this. With
this safeguard, we can consider that
weighted deduction is not allowed by
any one whether it is related to
business of profession or not.

SHRI N. A, PALKHIVALA: The

next point is about Section 80HH
which is sought to be inserted in
clause 9 on page 5. It is a very

laundatory objective, There is in fact
a separate necessity to promote the
economic growth of backward areas;
because unless you do that, there will
be regional imbalance, there will be
violence and sometimes agitations for
disintegration. For example, the hon.
Members are aware that in several
areas in certain States, people think
that they have not been given proper
treatment and they have not been
economically developed.

Section 88HH is extremely laudable
and it is very necessary that this
objective should be achieved. My only
point is about the way it is done, this
clause will not achieve the objective.
The reasons for this are as follows.

If you start an industry in the
backward area, first you have to
provide road facilities, transport
facilities, availability of power etec.
And for doing all these things, what
yvou have provided is that for 10 years
from the date you start your produc-
tion, 20% of the taxable profit will
not be taxed. Now, the magnitude



of the problem 1s such and the
difieulty facing the man who wants
to start business is so much, that this
20% exemption is just meaningless.
§ have tried to examine what is done
in other countries. Ours is not the
only country facing the problem of
this kind. This problem is also faced
by other countries. There are many
countries both East and West, old
world and new world, where this kind
of incentives are given for backward
areas. First take the period. You
give the relief for 10 years. This
period of 10 years is on paper but in
practice it will come only to about
S years, Who makes profits for the
first 5 years in backward areas. The
backward areas, If you look at it can
you say how many have made profits
statistics give information about the
during these 5 years?

MR. CHAIRMAN: How, the indus-
tries should be started in the backward
areas.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA:
Maharashtra, we do have some
industries in backward areas because
our State Government is much more
liberal and it has given lief in
electricity and other fuel, sajes tax,
etc. Now the point is that the State
Government can not do it alone.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Which\grea
you have in mind in so far as M
rashtra State is concerned? Do you
have any industry in Vidarbha or
Marathwaa? Can you tell me which
industries have been started in those
areas?

SHRI N. A, 'PALKHIVALA: If you
want the details, I can supply them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The real difficulty
is this. We had ‘some eminent indus-
trialists who gave evidence before us.
One of them very frankly told us that
whatever physical incentiveg . we may
provide in legislation, that would not
matter. We would determine .ithe
location of the industriegs from - the
viewpoint of soundness of industry,
etc. Therefore the basic {itestion is:
can we by physical-legistation‘really

In.

work for eradication of regiona, .m-
balances or disparities?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I would
say ‘yes’. I accept what the business-
man has told you. He will, for set-
ting up an industry in a particular
loeality or region, look at it from
viewpoint of economic viability and
all that. Suppose there are two
areas—one area is 8o developed that
without any incentive one cap start
an industry and there in another area
which is either backward or partially
backward. If an entrepreneur has to
choose between the two and if the
tax laws are the same, he will first
gelect the area where better facilities
are available even. But the tax laws
give more substantial relief to the
businessman who opens an industry
in the backward area,—a different
type of relief which I have in mind
and which I will submit to the Com-
mittee for consideration,—then he is
bound to say that although all facili-
ties are available in the developed
area. it is better to go to the back-
ward area. What I have in mind is
that, first of all, the ten-year period
must start from the date when taxable
x;oﬁts come to be made; it cannot be
from the date when you start your
production. The real period of ten
years can only be from the date when
he starts making profits. First of all,
you have to choose your commence-
ment date and then give him incen-
tive. Otherwise, quite frankly speak-
ing, he ig not interested. No man
is bound to come to a backward area.
For that, all that is required is that

You must put him in such a position
; he does not suffer much. Justice
equiwes that you must give a sizeable

incentiv® {p a man who develops this
country by
area. In thig
the hardship he suffers is eliminated.

What is the good of offering re'l,lef in
the years when no tax is te.

This is misleading, When there" ‘Li
no taxable profits, you are not offer=
ing any relief at all.

May I therefore suggest that your
relief must start from the year when




taxable profits emerge. (2) In the
case of a newly established under-
takings, you give relief both to the
‘company. and to the shareholders to
the extent dividends are declared out
of the tax free profits in the hands aof
the company. Likewise, there should
be a provision in Section 80HH that
the shareholders must get relief in
respect of the dividend which is dec-
lared out of those profits which get
exemption in the hands of the com-
pany. (3) You must give incentives to
a man who builds up the infrastruc-
ture. What is lacking today in the
country is infrastructure, Roads are
not there; water supply is not there.
If you want to develop the nation,
give him the incentive to build roads.
If he builds the road, the nation will
use that road. This is very important.
By deflnition, a backward area is one
where roads are primarily lacking.
If he builds a road, he will not get
any depreciation, because it is not a
capital assets for which any rate of
deprication is provided. This does not
make gense. In order to make sense,
give him the incentive of a deduction
in respect of the expenses he incurs
by building up the infrastructure
which is going to be used for the bene-
fit of the whole nation.

The difficultiegs are fantastic. There
are bewildering problems.  Unless,
we tackle them, the backward ares
will remain backward. My plea is
that whosoever does anything for the
benefit of the nation, for the unity of
the country.—should be given incen-
tives. If the Govt. can do everything,
then there is no problem. If the Govt.
wants that citizeng should do gome-
thing for the benefit of the nation,
then they should be placed in a posi-
tion where thev can do it reasonably.

The expenses incurred on roads
and other infrastructure should be
allowed the benefit of tax deduction in
the year in which they are incurred
In other countries, they are more
generous in this respect. What I am
suggesting is not an unheard thing
Let us take Ireland. As compared to

India, it is a better country, but it is
a poor country. First of all there
45 per cent of the total capital expen-
diture is met bv the Irish Government
and you get a depreciation of 100 per
cent in any year of your choice Then,
your profits are completely exempt
for ten years. In Malaysia and Indo-
nesia, similar reliefgs are there. They
allow full tax exemption. In the Bill,
if nothing better can be done, it is
my view that it is better not to tinker
with the law. but just leave it as it is.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Suppose, if
we were to take g bold decision that
whatever amount you spend on build-
ing up infrastructure, we will not ask
you from where you have got the
money. Instead of thinking of taking
a deduction, etc. what would you feel?
Because the monev which he will
spend, he will take from the bank
which is a public money, sharehol-
ders’ money and then ask for deduc-
tion. That really does not help us.
There is so much black money in the
hands of the people, they do not know
what to do with it. I would like this
amount to be utilized for the deve-
\opment of the backward areas. Your
point that you will ask this 20 per
cent from the date when you start
making profit is valid and fair enough.
But for infrastructure, we have to

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: When
1 fight ang plead the cases of honest
tax-payers I come across such pro-
blems of being misunderstood that I
do not know how grivosuly if I cham-
pioned such a thing, I would be mis-
understood.

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: Can
that help in any way?

SHR]I VASANT SATHE: ] am seri-
ous on this.

S8HRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: What
you have said has been done in other
countries with great success. On this
point, I will say nothing because, as
1 said, the atmosphere in the country



today is such that, even if you sug-
gest something sensible....

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: We
can think over that.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Black
money is no! the prorogative only of
bad men. Bad and good in thig coun-
try are now indistinguishable. Black
money is available in plenty to all
those—they cannot help it—who are
engaged in business and industry in
a big way. They cannot help it. It
just comes to them. They do not
know what to do with it. Let us try
to enceurage these people to go to
backward areas. What is wrong
about it?

SHRI BHAGWAT JHA AZAD: Even
those who are supposed to be honest
have black money.

SHRI R. D. SHAH: Mr. Palkhi-
vala, I would like to point out to you
one problem which arises in multi-
ple ways. A company which is en-
titled to the benefit under Section
80J will have thousands of sharehol-

ders ang there will be hundreds of
such companies. Now, in the initial
stage, when the certificate is given

by the company as to the percentage
at which Section 80J relief is to be
given, the assessment of the share-
holders would be made on that basis
and whatever tax credit is to be given,
will be given. When the assessment
of individual companies is made, the
percentage woulq vary. This results
in revision of thousands of assess-
ments and because of changes in the
assesed income due to appeal etc., this
revision may have to be made a
number of times. Do you think
of any better method by which....

MR. CHAIRMAN: Relief is given
Not only to the company but also to
the shareholders.

) SHRI W. A. PALKHIVALA: This
1s a very major problem which Mr.
Shah has mentioned. If vou look at
the stathtics, you wil] ind that tens
of thoum nds of tax payers who may
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be paying tax at the rate of 10 per
cent or 15 per cent and who have no
meang or the facilities for going in
appeal, lose the benefit. My sugges-
tion is this. You should set up an
independent machinery, consisting of
first class people, who may be inside

the Government or who may be even

from the retired members of the Tri-
bunal, who will decide on the facts:
etc. as to what is the percentage
which should be exempt. Their deci—~
sion should be final. 1 would, in fact.
rather welcome a wrong  decision
which is final than this ridiculous
spectacle of matters going on and

MR. CHAIRMAN: It takes decades..

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: We
should choose first class people. I do.
not want to mention names because I
do not want to be discrimipatery.
You have first class men today even
inside the Governmet. Single them:
out and put them incharge, and thev
will look at the accounts etc. and
then decide on the percentage of pro-
fits which shoulg be exempt. Their
decision should be flnal. There ghould
be no further discussion and no fur-
ther debate on this. There should be:
no appeal, nothing. People will cer-
tainly accept it. Today, in the Bombay
High Court, about which I have a
little knowledge, there are matters
pending in regard to Sections 80J and
80K, which Mr. Shah mentioned,
which relate back 15 years and 20
years. The matterg that are decided
by the tribunal todav will come up
before the High Court after 8 years,
at the present rate of dispogsal. My
point is this. The simple thing would
be to set up an independent machi-
nery. Pick out your men who are
known for their ability to rightly in-
trepret tite law and who will quickly
finish the matter. Their decsionr
should be flnal, anq there should be
no appeal. Today, speed is the real
thing which is needed. The matters
should not drag on and on, for an
indefinite period. This is a very im-
portant point. I hope you would do



it. This is within your competence,
within the purview of the Bill, it 1
may say 80.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is my next
Question. You say we will be able
¢o do it. Assuming we provide that
relief is to be given to the sharehol-
ders also, you can suggest a mecha-
nism.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
mechanism is already there. If you
look at the Statement of Objects and
Reasons, you find that, objective is to
provide for certain tax concessions for
encouraging industries in selected
sectors....Now, what are the selected
sectors? The newly established under-
takings are the selected sectors. You
are selecting newly established,
wundertakings. Any sector can be
selected by reference to the criterion
of the region, criterion of the type
of industry, category of industry ete.

MR. CHAIRMAN: ‘selected sectors’,
1 was taking it to be those which are
-selected already by the Government.
To that, we can add or we can delete.
This is in the Ninth Schedule. The
:second limb of the same object says
“and those in backward areas’. Now,
‘therefore, in regarq to backward
‘areas, there is to be tax concession
generally. But, otherwise, don’t you
think that the first part confines our
jurisdiction only to industries?

-

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Let
e even take that. Let me take that
construction, which may be a narrow
one. But, I will accept it. You sug-
‘gest a machinery for that. You sug-
gest a machinery for the Ninth Sche-
dule. It does not matter. The Gov-
ernment will then apply it to others.
You only say this is your suggestion
‘regarding Ninth.Schedule. Your pro-
Pposition would be like this. The Ninth
‘Schedule which is to be introduced is
of vitzl importance to the couyntry.

SHRI VASANT SATHE. Ar, you
intrepreting this to mean, selected
wectors as independent from those in
backward areas? Is that what you
are interpreting?
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‘S8HRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: They
are dis-junctive.

-SHRI VASANT SATHE: I thought
this is selected sectors in backward
areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Backward area,
every industry. Otherwise, selected
gectors.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Mr. Palkhi-
vala, most of the Members are inter-
ested in the development of backward
areas. There is no doubt about it. We
have some proposals which are before
you. You have suggested certain al-
ternatives, that the profitability itself
shoulq start after profit has started
accruing to the industrial concern and
you have given other suggestions.
Would it help in the faster industrial
development of backward areas, if
we re-introduce something like deve-
lopment rebate for the backward areas
only or do you think that the pro-
posed alternatives that you have sug-
.gested woulq help better in regard to
the development of backward areas?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: The
proposed alternatives that I have sug-
gested would be more beneficial, than
mere development rebate. The dev-
lapmnt rebate, for example, will not
take care of the infra structure, like
roads etc.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: The pro-
posals that we have made plus the
development rebate, would it not
help?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: That
woulq be, of course, g better step.

‘SHRI N. K. SANGHI: We do not
want them to remain on paper only.
We really want speedier industrial
develorment of the backward areas.
After the area is industrially deve-
loped, we can withdraw these con-
cessions. We have given some propo-
sals which will help in the develop-
ment of the backward areas.

-SHRI' SOMCHAND SOLANKI. You
have said that the exemption of pro-
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fits to the extent of 20 per cent would
be totally inadequate.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: It
should be at least 50 per cent. I have
said so on Page 14 of my memoran-
dum. I repeat that there also. At
least 50 per cent of the profits must
be given tax exemption. Unless you
give g really worthwhile and signi-
ficant concession, you will not be able
to achieve the objectives, which you
have in view. If you really want
development of backward areas, if
you are really serious about this, then
this, 10 per cent or 15 per cent is
useless. It will not work. If you
like, I can work out an exercise,
showing in parallel tables, how much
a person has to suffer and how much
expenditure he has to incur in setting
up industries in the un-developed re-
gions compareq to developed regions.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That will be
very useful.—how much a person has
to incur both on the capital account
as well as on revenue account. That
will be very important.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: Why
do you say that it should be 50 per
cent?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: This
may not be mathematically accurate.
But, the magnitude of relief which is
really needed, is such that, it would
have to be in the range of 50 per cent.
I will give you one example. A man
in a developed region earns a profit
of Rs. 100|-. If you tax him at 60 per
cenf, he is left with Rs. 40. Let
us say, a person in a backward re-
gion makes a profit of Rs. 40. Then,
if you do not. tax half of his profits,
he is left with Rs. 20. Then, on the
balance of Rs. 20/- you can tax him at
50 per cent. So, even after the ex-
emption, his profits are Rs. 30|- after
taxes, as compared to Rs. 40|- or
Rs. 50]- in the developeq region. His
margin of profits is much narrower
than in the developed areas. Even if
you exempt to the extent of half, or
even the total income, the net profit
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would be less than in the developed
regions.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI:
Would it not be better to fix the quan-
tum of reliet on the basis of cost ox
production anq profits, so that the
profits in the backward areas and the
developeq ones may be comparable?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: In that
case, the relief would have to be
failured to the needs of each one of
the assessees. It is better that yan
have a rough and ready view.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA. Whatever
may be the concession given, it wild
be an immense problem to allure the
private industrialists to the backward
areas. For making their profits here
comparable to the profits in develop-
ed areas, can you think of an alter~
native suggestion, insteaq of raising
the quantum in this manner?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Lqgi
cally speaking, what you say makes.
sense; it should work that way; bdbut
since you will have to deal with
hundreds of areas and hundreds of
industries where the profits and costs
are fluctuating, you should have a
norm. It would be difficult to achieve
it in practice, although I see the force
of your statement, as an ideal. We
have, tlierefore, to work with a broad
idea.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Why don’t
you say that in fixing the quantum.
the element of flexibility will' be taken
into consideration?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: It
would be difficult to work it out year
after year.

SHR1 VASANT SATHE: I was
really impressed by Mr. Palkhivala’s
anxiety and sincere concern in the
development of backward regions in
the interests of the courtry’s unity,
because we alsp feel the same way.
Would you, Mr. Palkhivala, also sup-
port this provision in the Bill which
says that industriex like sugar, paper,
tyres and tubes, cotton, textiles, jute



textiles, cemen\, cegetable oils etc.
even if they are not located in. back-
‘ward areas but in places like Bombay,
Calcutta or any other developed re-
:gion, should be allowed this 20 per
«cent? By way of interpretation, this
appears to be the provision.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: Selected
areas anywhere in India, seem to be
covered.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Any industry
will get it; the Ninth Schedule is with
reference to initial depreciation. Any-
way, Mr. Sathe, we have finished that
point and are now dealing with back-
ward areas. Please confine yourself
to it, because we have to follow some
procedure. If you want to ask some-
thing on backwvard areas, I will give
you an opportunity after he has finish-

ed.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: I have some-
thing to say. Whatever be the legis-
lation. what I am1 worried is whether
the real encouragement would be
there and whether they would go to
the backward areas with so much of
sincerity.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: I
would request you to consider the
five suggestions that I have made in
writing—they are on pages 13 and
14 of my written submission. I will
say one or two things, Our masses
have two great drawbacks, viz. lack
of roads and lack of water. One
village out of every 4 has no con-
nection with road, nor does it have
water. Roughly, this is the extent of
their difficulty. A 'man tries to see
that some water is brought in there,
he tries to build roads. These are all
expensive. You should say, “what-
ever you incur on them, we would
allow as a deduction”.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Committee
will give the most anxious considera-
tion to what you have suggested in
regard to allowing the expenses on
infra-structure incurred by anybody.
We will see what best can be done,
because eradication of regional dis-
parities is essential.
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SHRI VASANT SATHE: Could we
also say, “provided they are also
made available for the use of the
general public?”

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: You
can and should put that rider. Now.
the last point I have is about 80—H
is that the Bill excludes the mining
and ship-building industries.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why?

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: 1
see no reason why they should be ex-
cluded; it is at page 8, line 13. I
think this is completely wrong and
shows the illogicality of the whole
thing,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We would like to
ask the people concerned gbout the
logic bshind this.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: There
are so many coastal areas, including
the Andamans. People there may
like to construct fishing craft. What
is the rationale behind this provision?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Personally, I am
unable to say why these two indus-
tries are being discriminated against,
it they are located in backward areas.

SHRI N. A.. PALKHIVALA: 1
any person is gought to be given for
this, I would like to deal with it.
Poasibly, it will not be a defensible

reason.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will ask for
the reasons. The Secretaries are com-
ing before us and we will ask them
But I do not want to put those rea-
sons before you. .

SHRI N. A, PALKHIVALA: The
very last thing I would gay is about
clause 13. I am sure, that is again
an oversight and nothing else. You
are aware of what happens. Very
often, an assessee may take a challan
from the Department and voluntarily
pay the tax.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Voluntary pay-
ment at what stage?



SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: It
is very simple. Up to the stage he
did not make voluntary payment, you
can levy the penalty and, from the
date the voluntary payment is made.
no penalty will be charged. In cal-
culating the penalty, you have to find
out the base by reference to which
the penalty will be calculated and,
in calculating the base, you should
ignore the period which is after the
voluntary payment of tax.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Whatever tax is
paid, voluntary or otherwise.

SHRI N.A, PALKHIVALA: There
i3 the Supreme Court judgment that
any payment made by way of self-
assessment or on provisional assess-
ment ghould not be taken into ac-
count in levying the penalty. What
is penalty? The penalty is for late
submission of returns.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That made a
‘mockery of the whole thing.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: 1
see the Department’s point. I think,
it is a valid one. A man delays filing
of returns for four years; then, he
files the returns and makes the pay-
ment by way of self-assessment.

- Then, a penalty can be charged. But
what about the man who may have
voluntarily paid the tax within six
months after the year ended?

MR. CHAIRMAN: For six months
the penalty will apply to him.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: Not
after that. Whatever be the period,
when he has paid voluntary tax, after
that. there should be no penalty.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There should be
nenalty levied upto the date on which
he hag made the payment, not after
that.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIWALA: Sup-
pose he has delayed the filing of re-

turns for four years; the volugtary
payment is made after one year Then,
the penalty should be for one year.
It is true he has delayed the filing
of the returns. It may be due to
hundred and one things. But he has
paid the tax after one year. The
penalty should be for one year.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think, that is
a valid point. If he has paid the tax,
thenfi from the date of payment at
least, he should not be penalised.

SHRI N. A. PALKHIVALA: This
particular clause seeks to amend a
Section which impcses a penalty for
late filing of returns. Suppose a man
has to file a return within six months.
But he takes two years to fille his
return. We penalise him for that,
The Supreme Court has said that ae-
cording to the wording of the Sec-
tion as it stood originally, before this
proposed amendment, any tax which
i3 paid, on the late flling of returns,
by way of gelf-assesment or provi-
sional assesment. should be taken into
account in deciding whether there
should be a penalty or not.

What happens is that sometimes a
man does not want to deprive you of
the tax—he wants to pay the tax
fully—but there may be some tech-
nical difficulties in filing the returns.
Now, he pays the full tax o rhe may
even pay more because, he knows, he
will get the refund. In such cases,
there should be no penalty. If there
is delay in fifng the retumns, say,
for two years and the tax was pald
after one year, then, for one year’s
delay, you can levy the penalty

MR CHAIRMAN: That is all. Thank
you.

SHRI N. A PALKHIVALA: I
am grateful to the Hon. Chairman
and the Hon. Members for giving me
a natient hearing. Thank you.

(The witness then withdrew) '



11, The Associaed

Spokesmen;
1. Shri M. H. Mody
2. Shri X. C. Khanna

(The witnesses were called in and
they took their seats)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mody, Ifor
the purposes of record it is necessary
for me to read out to you the direc-
tion by the Speaker which governs
your evidence before this Committee,
of which you are aware, 1 am sure.
The evidence you give would be
treated as public and it is liable to
be published unless it is specifically
desired that all or any part of your
evidence is to be treated as copfiden-
tial. Even thougnh you desire so, such
evidence is liable to be made availa-
ble to Memters of Parliament,

Now, Mr. Mody, we have gone
through your Memorandum. The
basic concepts made out in  your
Memorandum are the very same as
have been made out by Mr. Palkhi-
vala in the Memorandum submitted
by him. Just now, we heard him for
nearly thrga hours. He tendered a
very erudite evidence before the Com-
mittee, Therefore, over and above
your Memorandum, if you have got
something to add, you may do so.

" SHRI M. H. Mody: 1 appreciate
thrat coming after Mr. Palkhivala, it
is something of an anti-climax...

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is not that.
The points are the very same which
he made out.

SHRI M. H. MODY: I am not aware
of what he has said. But, naturally,
I.can very well imagine that there
may be a certain degree of Trepetition.

I would like to confine myself to
two major issues, which arige out of
the Bill. The first is the one dealing
with initial depreciation and the
second is the one dealing with relief
for backward areas.

Chambers of

Commerce and Industry of India

New Delhi.
3. Shri R. N. Ratnam
4, Shri M. M. Malhotra

As far ac initial depreciation is con-
cerned, 1 would like to deal with a
few relevant points. There is a very
great need for an adequate allowance
for depreciation in one form or an-
other which would encourage the in-
vestment in capital assets. Our sub-
mission is that there is a very great
national need at the present moment
that the tax system must encourage
investment i capital assets. It is our
submission that the proposed initial
depreciation allowance is grossly in-
adequate, if I may say so. I am not
going to enter into the question of
development rebate and its substitution
except to say that there is certainly
a very strong case for extending the
deadline...

MR. CHAIRMAN: That decision has
been taken by the Ministry. That is
irrevocable,

SHRI M. H. MODY: Then I will not
touch upon that.

There iz a great need for adequate
depreciation allowance. The concept
of depreciation allowance, as you will
appreciate, has been evolved over a
period of time. When the deprecia-
tion allowance was originally granted.
the idea was that it must be related
to the actual wear and tear suffered
by the equipment. This idea has now
completely gone over board and the
purpose of depreciation allowance is
to encourage capital investment and
growth of the economy.

Ours is a very backward country.
Even countries which are in an
advanced stage of development, such
a3 the United Kingdom, and Sweden.
allow much more substantial and
liberal depreciation allowance, and in
that context the proposal of 20 per



cent initial depreciation is grossly in-
adequate. Our submission is that the
scheme of allowance must be revised
to take into account the most import-
ant element of providing for the re-
placement cost of the assets. Our
submission here is not merely with a
view to pointing out that small allow-
ances are available for the benefit of
private industries; our view is that
the capital assets of private industry
are, in fact, national assets because
they contribute to productivity, they
contribute to the supply of goods
which are essential, and they contri-
bute to employment. These are
national resources which are being
wasted. You are aware of the ins-
tance of Brazil where, in spite of a
high rate of inflation, when deprecia-
tion allowance had been provided
taking into account the replacement
factor, and this has contributed to a
very high rate of growth in the
economy. Our submission is that the
scheme must take this into account.
One of the results which we see today
because the system does not take this
into account is stagnation of the eco-
nomy; private companies have to
resort to borrowings from the public
or borrowings from public sector
financial institutions which are again
national resources. If one company
obtains these resources, it is at the
cost of another sector or gt the cost
of another company.

Having caid this, 1 will not touch
upon the other technical issues which
we have dealt with in our Memoran-
dum such as the fact that, consider-
ing the completely inadequate allow-
ance for initial depreciation which is
being contemplated, it is also being
further restricted to a very small list
of industriess; We have not been
able to ascertain the principles on
which this list hag been compiled. It
appears to be extremely restrictive.
What we feel is that any scheme of
depreciation allowance must be across
tne board. There is no distinction
between one industry and another.
All of them contribute to production
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and employment. There are some
specific exclusions, for example, road
transport vehicles. ...

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are examin-
ing Government witnesseg to find out
what is the rationale behind enu-
merating the various industries in the
Ninth Schedule. If you have any
specific inclusions to suggest. you may
give us the list. You may pay some
attention to it and let us have in writ-
ing what according to you ought 1o be
included further.

SHRI M. H. MODY: We will give
you such a list.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have to do
it quickly because we have to submit
our report to Parliament. Please send
it by the week end.

SHRI M. H. MODY: Yes, Sir.

The other aspect of this relief which
is causing us some concern apart from
its inadequacy is the business about a
certificate from a prescriped authority
being obtained....

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have had very
long discussion with Mr. Palkhivala
on this matter. He has put the case
at the highest, and the consensus ap-
pears to be about the prescribed
authority business that we need to
ask the Department to make a very
strong case for the retention, and if at
all it has to be retained, then it can-
not be as cumbersome and as onerous
as this.

SHRI M. H. MODY: In that case, 1
will not labour that point.

Now I would deal very quickly with
backward areas relief. Here it is im-
portant to appreciate what are the
disadvantages which operate against
an industry which is set up in a back-
ward area. These disadvantages are
well known to the Government. Pro-
bably the most important is the
absence of transport facilities, com-
munication facilities, telephone facili-
ties, telex and things liks that. Ano-
ther factor is the absence of water
supply and power supply which are
very important requirements for ary
kind of industry. The third factor is



the absence of skilled labour, and
what is even more important is the
lack of an industrial environment.
There is also an absence of housing,
sanitation. medical and educational
facilities. These are the adverse fac-
tors....

MR. CHAIRMAN:
the infra-structure.

SHRI M. H. MODY: Therefore, 1
personally feel that the relief which
we should allow must be specifically
geared to counteracting the disadvan-
tages which flow from the absence of
infra-structure. Our first submission,
therefore, is any expenditure which a
company incurs in providing the infra-
structure. ...

In other words,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Palkhivala
has made a very powerful and persu-
asive plea before the Committee :hat
the entire infra-structure expenditure
must be allowed. His second sugges-
tion wag that 50 per cent of the profits
should be allowed to be written >ff for
ten years from the first year when
there is taxable profit.

SHRI M. H. MODY: May I make one
additional point. Corresponding to
the relief allowed for new industrial
undertakings, relief should also bLe
allowed to the shareholders.

Then I would deal very quickly
with the relief for export development
expenditure which is provided for in
the Bill. I am referring to Clause 6 of
the Bill. The proposal contained in the
Bill is that, instead of ‘one and one-
third times’ the allowance will be
‘one and one-half times’ in the case of
a company in which the public are sub-
stantially interested. In other words,
the relief is being confined to public
companies. Our submission ig that the
need for encouraging exports is very
great and, therefore, this relief should
be allowed to all kinds of assessees. As
a matter of fact, in export development
a very large number of small assessees
are involved. For instance. handloom
exports. This activity is, in fact, car-
ried on by small companies, small
partnership organisations and there is
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no reason why such companies who
have even less financial resources to
deal with the situation should be -ep-
rived of this relief.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It would be one
and one-half times in the case of pub-
lic companies.

SHRI M. H. MODY: My understand-
ing ig that the existing ‘one and one-
third times’ will be allowed to all
assessees and for public companieg it
may be one and one-half times. There
is no real justification for this discri-
mination. What matters is export per-
formance which government wantg to
encourage.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Which page of
your Memorandum?

SHRI M. H. MODY: On page 1,
clause 6.

I would then like to refer to amend-
ment of Section 271 which has also
been proposed. We are all concerned
that the amendment should be retros-
pective in character as it is proposed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why should it not
be retrospective?

SHRI M. H. MODY: The Govern-
ment themselveg have said in the past
that they are against retrospective
legislation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Retrospective
legislation cannot be rejected outright
in all cases. It has to be seen in what
context it has been made. Don’t you
think arising from the decision of the
Supreme Court the basis on which
penalties are levied makes a mockery
of the whole concept of penalty?

SHRI M. H. MODY: Where deci-
siong go against the assessee the Gov-
ernment want retrospective legislation
and where it goes against the revenue,
they do not want retrospective legisla-
tion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is not only
penalty so far as this is concerned.
Even Mr. Palkhivala has said that
what we intend to do is extremely rot
only desirable but it is very necessary
also.

SHRI M. H. MODY: I am not dis-
puting it from that point of view. But



such a principle should apply in fav-
our of the assessee also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will see. 1,
for one, stand for prospective legis-
lation.

SHRI M. H. MODY: I am only mak-
ing the plea for other situations. Then
this question of prescribed authority
also arises in the case of research. I
think the committee is conscious of
that problem.

We shall then refer to the Schedule,
the 9th Scheduls making certain
changes in the terminology.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will also jee
to it that we do not add to the iitiga-
tion. In fact, when you give this sup-
plementary memorandum to us, you
may tell us ag to which are the im-
portant industries which. according to
you, must come in the Ninth Schedule
and also you may give us why you
think they are important. You may
also refer to the terminology in a
manner so that we may avoid litiga-
tion.

SHRI M. H. MODY: I have nothing
more to say.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much.

(The witnesses then withdrew).

(The Committee adjourned for lunch
and reassembled at 1500 hours)

IIT. (1) Shri B. D. Pande,
Cabinet Secretary,
Government of India.

Shri M. R. Yardi,
Finance Secretary,
Government of India.

Shri H. N. Ray,

Secretary,

(Departmeut of Expenditure),
Ministry of Finance,
Government of India.

(2)

3)

(4) Shri R. V. Raman,

Secretary.

Ministry of Industrial Deve-
lopment,

Government of India.
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(5) Shri B. B. Lal,
Secretary.
Ministry of Planning,
Government of India.

(The witnesses were called in and
they took their seats).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pande, for
the purposes of record it is necessary
for me to read out to you the direction

by the Speaker which governs your
evidence before this Committee, of
which you are aware, I am sure. The

evidence you give would be treated as
public and it is liable to be published
unless it is gpecifically desired that all
or any part of your evidence is Lo be
treated as confldential. Even though
you desire so, such evidence is liable
to be made available to Members of
Parliament.

You are aware of the background in
which Bill was referred to the Select
Committee. When the Bill came for
consideration before the House gnd for
being passed, very strong protests were
voiced from all sections of the House
against the very approach of the Bill
itself. It was emphatically and un-
equivocally mentioned by almost all
the members who spoke on the Bill
that whereas the objects are laudable
and for achieving those objects fiscal
measures are necessary, the entire ap-
proach was considered hopelessly in-
adequate, hopelessly unrealistic. In
fact it was considered as if it were an
exerclse of sheer futility. We have
also been hearing witnesses and some
of them have come and I must endorse
what the Members said while parti-
cipating in the debate on this Bill
Now it is in that connection we
thought it best to get some of the
pointg clarified and basic fundamental
questions involving the principle on
which the entire legislation is made
out.

So far ag I am concerned. the flrst
question which I consider very
important with reference to this
Bill is to provide for certain
tax concessiong for oncouraging



industries in selected gectors and those
in backward aress as also for promo-
tion of research and development of
export. These are four fold objec-
tives. I want to know whether you
had projected any revenue calcula-
tions one way or the other for deter-
mining what would be the impact of
these incentives either with reference
to initial depreciation provision or
with reference to proposed conces-
siong in the backward areas,

SHRI M, R. YARDI: Tax ccnces-
sions by themselves will not be suffi-
cient to achieve the objective cf hav-
ing growth in selected industries and
in the backward areas. A multi-
pronged effort will have to be made
to see that the proper industrial cli-
mate is created for this purpose. So,
so far as backward areas are con-
cerned it will be useless to say that
any tax concession that you give will
be able to bring about development
in the backward areas. This will
have to be coupled with giving of
intra-structural facilities—i.e. roads
power, etc. Similarly, you see some
concessions for the availability of
land, certain other concessions, for
instance, Sales Tax. It is only when
all these come together, necessary
climate will be created for industrial
development in the backward areas. I
do not know whether the Committee
knows about the various facilities and
incentives which are offered by the
States for this purpose, 1 would pre-
sent a copy of the publication, which
gives some information as to what
kind of incentives are being given
These are not the only concecssions
which are contemplated. There is a
concession which is given by the finan-
cial instiutions 0o far as industrial
concerns are concerned. So far, Rs,
38 crores of finance has been given
by these financial institutions. It 1is
only with a combination of all these
things that you conceive that a cer-
tain dent on the problem will be
made.

Ipdustrial development does not re-
quire merely tax concessions or finan-
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but it requiregy thany other face
tors, For ®xample, the _social and
economit infrastructure has to
be there. There has to be a certain
trend of growth which should already
have taken place, Wherever efforis
have been made in this directiom.
there has been progress. For example,,
1 can quote an example in this con-
nection, I hope you will not say that.
I am becoming proud of my State:
when I say this. But where certain
steps have been taken to provide the
necessary facilities, development has:
taken place. For example. take the:
work which SICON is doing in Bom--
bay. It has tried to locate growth
centres which are coming up and it
has tried to give the necessary faci-
lities in the matter of acquisition of-
land, the provision of power, the pro-:
vision of roads and 0 on, Coupled
with all this, if certain tax conces-
gions are given, we believe that a.
certain rate of development will be
fostered as a result of this. But this:
by itself will not be able to do that
Merely increasing the tax concession
from 20 per cent to even 50 per cent
by itself will not be able to bring
about thig result. It is only when a
multitude of various factors is brought
into play in the backward areas that
something could be done,

Similarly, so far as the industries
are concerned, there has been a feel-
ing whether in the conditions which
exist in this country where there is.
a sheltered market. where there are
shortages of goods, where the prices:
are not controlled but are going up
and up, there is any need at all to
give any subsidy. The development
rebate was essentially an accelerated’
depreciation allowance plus a subsidy,
that is, it gave the benefite of accele-
rated depreciation allowance plus a
development rebate on the plant to-
the extent of 25 or 15 per cent ac-
cording as whether the sector or in-
dustry was a priority one or not.
Now, the question is whether under
the present conditions, a subsidy is -
necessary to any industry for the pur-
pose of bringing about rapid indus-



‘trial growth. But it wag felt that at
least in a certain selected industries,
.it was necessary to give certain faci-
lities to have a reasonable cash flow
-during the first few years of indus-
trial growth when the production is
.not coming up but when the concern
has to find more and more funds for
putting the factory into production,
‘Therefore, it was felt that if an initial
depreciation allowance of 20 per cent
was given, the cash flow position of
the company will be very satisfactory
in the first few years and it should
be able to make good on the basis of
that.

As regards the question whcther
the concessons given are adequate or
not. there can be two views, The in-
dustry is bound to say that they are
not adequate, because in this ccuntry,
industry does not function without
any incentives, because they seem to
think that if they have to do some
national service, they must get cer-
tain incentives. But the quesction is
whether incentives by way of subsidy
-are necessary in this country under
the present condition when there is
not anything like a competition.
where it is a sellers’ market and the
people can make money and we know
‘how people are flourishing both in
industry and in trade,

Therefore, it was thought that
while development rebate should be
withdrawn, some facilities should be
given go that the industries are not
‘worse off when the teething troubles
start and when their requirements
of finance are the greatest in the
initial stages.

1f it is argued that this initial dep-
Teciation allowance should be given
on the basis of 120 per cent ot the
capital cost of the project it means
continuing the development rebate

by decreasing it frcm 25 per cent to

20 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why are you
assuming anything? You may ex-
p'ain the rationale of what you have
done,

SHRI M. R, YARDI: I have got
with me also the suggestions which
have been made by the FICCI and
Mr. Palkhivala, and I have to deal
with them also, and I hope you
would not mind if I refer to them,

After all. I must explain those points
also,

MR. CHAIRMAN: As I have said,
there are two views. One view is
that these incentives are adequate
under the present conditions, The
other view i3 that they are not ade-
quate, You say that they are ade-
qQuate. How can you say ab initio
whether they are adequate or inade-
quate? Have you examined the cash
flow statements to come to this con-
clusion? How many cash flow state-
ments of how many companies did
you examine before you came to this
conclusion that this sort of initial dep-
reciation would improve the cash flow
position of the company in the first
few years?

SHRI M. R, YARDI: I perscnally
have not examined any cash flow
statement, But I am personally clear
that this kind of allowance will see
them through in the first few years.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Is it then a
theoretical proposition that you are
putting forward?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: If you want
practical things, I can get them made
and send them on to you.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Do you know for
how many years the companies do
not make profits? Do you know how
many companies do not even get a
set-off of depreciation? If you wmay
straightway that this initial depre-
ciation will improve the cash flow, it
is a highly theoretical anoroach. Have
you made a study of this? Do you
know how many companies are not
able to get even a set-off of depre-
ciation or development rebate?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The Chairman
of the Bnard of Direct Taxes will he
able t~» tell you, because I do not
have it....



MR, CHAIRMAN: But you have
made the statement,

SHRI M. R. YARDI: 1 am making
a statement on a general basis,

MR, CHAIRMAN: On a theuretical
basis you are making it.

SHRI M. R, YARDI: On a general
basis I am making it. If you ask me
whether T have examined the balance-
sheets of companies, I would say 1
have not.

MR, CHAIRMAN: If only you
would have made an assessment of
the new industrial undertakings, 1
am sure you would not have made a
statement like this that this sort of
initial depreciation would improve the
cash flow position of the company.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: It will im-
prove the cash flow position com-
pared to what it would be if this
initial depreciation were not given,
I am making only a comparative
statement. I am not saying that it
will improve in such a way that it
will make up for everything. I am
saying that it will improve the cash
flow position to a certain extent as
a result of this depreciation allow-
ance,

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: Before 1
g0 to the ~contents of the Bill, I
would like to hear from the many
Secretaries who are appearing be-
fore us their basic approach towards
the taxation laws and the taxation
amendments which have heen 1nede
so far,

When this Bil] was introduced in
the House, many Members from both
sides of the House expressed their
deep concern at the frequent amend-
ments that were being brought—
forward to the taxation laws and the
large number of amending Bills which
were being introduced. We urged
that stability of the taxation laws
should be one of the basic things that
should be aimed at. When the Law
Commission was asked to go into the
Income-tax Act, the precise object
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was that the Income-tax Act should
be simplified and codified. The legal
luminaries in the country and the
eminent jurists of the country like
Mr, Setalvad. Mr. Chagla, Mr. K. N
Wanchoo, Mr. Satyanarayana and
Mr. V. K. T. Chari, Mr. G. S. Pathak
and Mr, Palkhivala and others went
into this and suggested a model Bill,
and then we had the Act of 1961. As
the time that Bill was introduced for
consideration and passing, the then
Finance Minister said that at last we
had arrived at a simplified taxation
law and it was hoped that at least
for five years there might not be any
amendments, But within the first
five years, I have found as many as
400 amendments, and 1 find that now
the number of amendments has gone
up to 900 or so.

What is the general approach to the
taxation laws, especially to the Income
Tax Act which was put on the Statute
Act which was put on the Statute
Book in 1961 with all the best hcpes
and best efforts that it would not
need any amendments in the near
future? Why has it undergone such
a vast and numerous quantum of am-
endments? What is the basis lacuna
or weakness? Is it in drafting or any-
thing else?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: 1 do not know
whether it can be attributed to weak-
nesg in drafting, As I have been able
to see it, after a measure like the 1961
Act was put on the statute book, as
one went along. problems came,
changing situations came, there were
demands all round. It was felt that
certain amendments were necessary.
If L may submit these we are all
approved and enacted by Parliament.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: If you wish
to imply that Parliament is also a
party to it....

SHRI B, D. PANDE: Not that. Some
of these amendments became neces-
sary probably because of deficiencies
noticed by MPs in the administration
of the Act, when deficisncies were
noticed in the reports of the Public
Accounts Committee in the case of



some provisions of the law. For ex-
ample, deficiencies were noticed about
the provisions relating to penalties,
fines ete. That had to be tightened.
Then the changing circumstances,
Economic necessities necessitate a

change.

When we come to thic particular
measure, the development rebate had
been in force in thig country for
about—speaking _from memory—17
years before the finance Minister’s
announcement about its withdrawal. He
gave three years’ notice which was
required. The Finance Minister also
had at that moment when he made
the announcement said that while the
development rebate, which had been
in force for so many is being re-
moved, it would be replaced by some
other legislation to give some incen-
tice, not in the same wide way and
to the whole gamut of ' industries
covered earlier, which would assist
industrialisation. At this time, the
Finance [Minister indicated that his
intention would be to restrict the con-
cessions to identified backward areas
to selected industries which would be
industries considered important in
the national interest or in the na-
tional programme. It was in pursu-
ance of that that this modified sug-
gestion has been brought in. So this
was the compulsion of the situation.
When development rebate goes, either
there i3 nothing and we are left with
no incentive or there should be a
Itmited incentive.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: I made two
points. About the numerous amend-
ments necessitated, we can talk in
general terms, but the fact is that it
has gone beyond the expectations or
the basic impression that was gives
in 1961. Regarding the second thing
brought in this Bill, he talked about
the Finance Minister’s assurance gi-
ven in the budget speech.

We have another Bill, the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Bill introduced in
May 1978. This could have been taken
care of in it. If we take the seven
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objectiaes given here, all these could
have been taken in stride there., 1
do not know why a Bill which was
introduced in May, 1973 could not
have taken care of these amendments
also as that would have helped the
Comrmittee and Parliament also. That
was not done. There could be only
one objective which could be conside-
red separate, namely (ii) relating to
the Supreme Court’s judgment to re-
move the difficulty created by that
judgment. This judgment was given
in January. 1973. You had ample
time to put all this into the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Bill introduced
in May, 1873.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: Perhaps Shri
Yardi will supplement what 1 egay.
The other amendmsnt Bill covers a
very large number of subjects arising
out of the wide-ranging recommenda-
tions of the Wanchoo Committee.
This Bill has a more limited pur-
pose. Since development rebate is
coming to an end in May, 1974, it
was felt that adequate time or at
least advance information at an early
date should be gvamilable to prospec-
tive industrialists and entrepreneurs.
This being a smaller measure with a
limited purpose, it was thought, could
perhaps to enacted quicker, as that
was expected to take a much longer
time because it was wide-ranging in
the scope of its amendments.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: About that
also, this was known long ago.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: It could not
be introduced too far ahead of time.
It was introduced in August, 1973. It
was thought it could be enacted early
and it would be available in time to
prospective industrialists,

SHRI M. R. YARDI: That iz the
'‘main reason. This Bill has a limited
purpos:. It was necessary to get it
passed in the next budget session.
Otherwise, the development rebate
would have been withdrawn and
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there would be no continuation of
any incentives to industry. Then
there was the object of taking care
of the Supreme Court’s judgment. It
i only a procedural matter. If the
Supreme Court’s judgment stands, we
shall have to refund a large number
of penalties. Apart from that, there
will be no compulsion on the income-
tax payee to pay the advance tax or
self-assessed tax in proper time. He
can do it at any time before the de-
mand is raised.

Therefore, it was felt necessary to
have this Bill pessed early. It was
expected that the other Bill, which
has a large number of provisions,
which restructures the whole income
tax law in a very fundamental man-
ner, would naturally take time, and
would not come before the House in
next budget session.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: The Sup-
reme Court judgment was given in
January, 1973.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Even then we
have to consider it, consult Law,
draft legislation and so on. All that
takes time,

SHRI D. D. DESAI. Could you say
that the Bill would enable the indus-
tries to have enough cash generation
or cash position to replace the plant
and machinery in the initial, stage?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: No. If that is
the intention, no kind of concessions.
under the income tax law, nor even
wholesale remissivn of income tax,
will enable them o replace it.

SHRI D D DESAI: In other words,
the tax svstem enables the Govern-
m--* ¢1 ta'ra away the investment in
tr~ form of tax

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Not invest-
ment.

SHRI D. D. DESAI: Capital.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: So far as capi-
tal coat is concerned, it can never be
expected that it would sort of be
amortised. ...

SHRI D, D. DESAI; Will this not
result in many gick industries in
course of time saddling Government
with the liability of taking them
over?

SHRI M. R. YRADI: I do not think
SO.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: That is not our
understanding. The industry would
have to be viable on its own. After
the initial depreciation iz over, it will
have to justify its existence.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is no part of
Government’s job to subsidise the
entire plant and machinery.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: I will answer
this. You are talking about an exist-
ing industry which has gone into
production. What about an industry
which comes after five years? It has
to incur a higher capital cost and it
has to compete with the existing im-
dustry. Every industry will have to
come on its viability.

SHRI D. D. DESAI: The industry
in course of time will have to replace
its plant and machinery. Will it have
enough with it with this sort of taxa-
tion?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Personally,
I think the profits which industries
make should enable them, if not to
replace the whole of the plant and
machinery, at least a substantial part
of it.

SHRI D. D. DESAI: You know
that after payment of tax and divi-
dends, there is no profit left.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is not ger-
mane to this Bill.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: 1 would
like to refer to the objects of the Bill.
You have referred to the establish-
ment of industries and the giving of
concessions 8o that industries can be
established in the country. First of
all, I would like to know this. Dul-
ing the last four or five years, what
are' the reasons for industrial produc-
tion not having gone up? Rspecially



whepn our agricultural production has
gone up, when money supply has in-
creased and the demand has increas-
ed why has industrial activity’ remain-
ed stagnant, when at that time, Gov-
ernment wag offering 3 development
rebate which is also still in force?
Even then, having a development re-
bate and having agricultural produc-
tion going up, and when the money
supply also has increased, what is the
main reason that industrial activity
has remained stagnant ang industrial
production has not risen? We must
examine what was wrong. We have
to take corrective measures to see
whether the measures suggested in
the Bill are sufficient to correct this,
or something more is required to be
done.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The very fact
that the existance of development re-
bate which was considered to be a
substantia] incentive did not help the
industries to grow at a sufficient rate
would show that tax concession by
itself i8 not sufficient for industrial
growth. As to why this industrial
growth did not take place, I would
request either Mr. Pande, who was
the previous Industries Secretary, or
Mr. Ramzn to explain.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will have to
confine ourselves to the provisions of
the Bill vis-a-vis the objectives, and
it.is no use lecturing on the generali-
ties. I do not want witnesses nor the
Members to dwell on generalities.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: Our aim is
the setting up of industries, and ex-
pansion of industries and giving con-
cessions so that they may go up. Un-
less we know the reasons for the
slack, how can we judge the things?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Damani, there
might be a variety of reasong truly
outside the scope of the Bill which
may or may not be responsible for
the supposed stagnation in industrial
growth or unsatisfatcory growth in
the industrial sector. That has ab-
solutely n») relevance so far as the
scope of the Committee’s work is
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concerned. These officials have been
calleq here because we wanted to ap-
prise ourselves of the position and
to get a rational explanation for the
various provisions of the Bill, reach-
ing the objectives. 1 would request
Hon, Members to get out of the
generalities completely, and come to
specific points as to tne provision and
objectives of the Bi'l.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE: It
is assumed in this country that there
cannot be industrial growth without
incentives being given. One sort of
incentive that is obviowsly thought
of, it seems, is in the fiscal legisla-
tion by way of taxes incentive. The
development rebate hag existing in
this country for a number of years.
I would like to know from the Secre-
taries what role this development re-
bate has played in the generation of
industrial growth, In his written
note, Mr. Palkhivala says because
of the development rebete, there has
heen an industrial growth at the rate
of eight per cent. I du not know
what was the basis of this statement.
I would like to know that.

MR. CAIRMAN: He said that bet-
ween 1056 ang 1964, industrial growth
was at the rate of eight per cent and
thereafter it declined to three per
cent notwithstanding there was the
development rebate. The question
that the Hon. Member has put is, in
other words, has any study been made
before this legislation was brought.

SHRT SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
Now that a decision has been taken—
it appea.. to be an irrevocable deci-
sion—that development rebate will
be abolished ang that initial deprecia-
tion is thought of, what is the expec-
tation of Industrial growth as a re-
sult of this initial depreciation being
granted at the rate of 20 per cent?
It is being said that this niggardly
allowance or incentive which is being
given is useless. If the industry does
not want it, why should you at all
think of giving the deprecia‘ion? 1If
a policy decision has heen taken to do
away with development rebate, why



should you change the law which
the industrialists reject out of hand?
1f we are to pamper the industrialists
or try to persuade them by giving
them lollypops which they do not
want, we had better not give them.
Let us see if the industrialists behave
or not, tax incentive or no incentive,
when they do no‘ care for it.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: I would
like to know in what respect this 20
per cent initial depreciation which
we are now proposing is different
from the development rebate which
was available and how much additio-
nal financial resources are made avail-
able initially to serve as an incentive.
Secondly, 1 would like to know, if
development rebate is not serving
the purpose, what other measures in-
cluding those which the Maharashtra
Government tried, are thought of?
Here, I want to dififfer from Mr.
Yardi;—with all the incentives that
have been provideq in Maharaghtra
including concessions on sales-tax,
electricity tax, etc., industrial growth
in small places has beep very little.
For instance, Nasik, g small place, is
the backyard of Bombay; you cannot
call it as backward, apart from the
jugglery of definitions. It is Poona’s
frontier!

Ang then there is Nagpur. There,
no industrial growth worth the name
has taken place except for a few
units such as Mahendra and Mahendra
and some others. No industrial growth
worth the name, considering the
resources available in that region,
has really taken place. In spite of
the fact of the declared policy
resolution of the 15th March, 1958
that was made on the floor of the As-
sembly that hereafter we will not
allow any new industries to start in
Bombay, that had to be taken back
and we had to go back and say no.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: I am proud of
the fact that incentives were given
for the s‘arting of industries in the
backward areas. If these incentives
had not been given. all the industries
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would have come to Bombay and Bom-
bay suburbs.

SHRI B. D. PANDEY: I may reply
first to Mr. Somnath Chatterjee’s
point, namely, about the development
rebate. 1 think we should not mix
the development rebate with the
growth of industries but with the es-
tablishment of industries. I would
say that the development rebate did
serve the purpose of establishing a
very large number of industrial units
in the country during the period it
was in force. Actual production
varied from year to year on account
of all kinds of factors, availability of
raw material, power, demand and
supply, etc. But there was considerable
investment in different industries and
a fairly wide spread industrial struc-
ture was es‘ablished in the country.
The concessions given under develop-
ment rebate scheme led, if I may put
it like that, to two major deficiencies.
It led to over-capitalisation; more
capital was invested than was really
necessary for the industry. Second-
ly as industry grew more and more,
the loss of revenue became sizeable;
an estimated Rs. 70—80 crores under
the corproate tax was the benefit
that the industry gained in one year.
A large diversified industrial base al-
ready having been established, and
some industrial capacity being unuti-
lised, the purpose of the development
rebate was reviewed and Government
announced that rebate will cease to
apply after three years. Government
still wants to encourage industry in
a certaip direction, gpecially in cer-
tain backward areas. Here is a limi-
ted incentive being given to certain
selected industries in selecteq areas.
This does not mean loss of revenue;
the industry will pay the full corpo-
rate tax. This is an incentive for u
limited period. Whether it will suc-
ceed or not is a difficult thing to say.
All over the world whenever incen-
tives had been given to establish in-
dustries in backwarqd areas—some
have given 50 per cent capital
advance, etc.—it has not always been
successful; experience varies from
country to country.



SHRI M. R. YARDI: I should like to
give the dimension o¢ assistance given
by way of development rebate, and
the assistance being given by way of
initial depreciation. The cost of the
development rebate during the last
few years has come to Rs. 7080
crores. That means the Government
has subsidised the industry, not in
any particular fiel§ or areas, to the
extent of Rs. 350—400 crores over the
Fourth Plan period. That has enabled
them to make profits also, sometimes.
Development rebate is given over a
period of eight years so that for in-
dustries which are established upto
May 1974, it will be carried forward
upto a period of eight years. But
any industry which comes into exist-
ence after May will get only initial
depreciation allowance. That also
means that during the five year pe-
riod, the same amount which would
have been given by way of develop-
ment rebate would be fjivien, but
not as subsidy. That has to be made
over the period of the life of the plant.
Some 'money is given in advance.
Normally they would have got it by
way of development rebate or sub-
sidy but it is given as a sort of depre-
ciation allowance, so that they get
some amount that has to be made good
in the latter vears.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: Prior to
19568 initial depreciation of 20 per
cent was there—When it was given
up Mr. Deshmukh, the then Finance
Minister in 1956, he proposed 25 per
cent development rebate. You are
giving it up and bringing back initial
depreciation. Are we going in a
vicious circle?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: As I mentioned
the orginal 20 per cent did not have
the acceleration that was intended. A
large incentive was given.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: We
withdrawing the larger incentive.

SHRI B. D. PANDEY: Only in a
limiteq area; a lesser incentive.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: I do not think
that the whole industry has rejected

are
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this. May be some spokesmen of
some industries are saying that it is
not adequate. I am doubtful whether
they will not also avail of this.

MR. CHAIRMAN:; We want to judge
the efficacy of the proposed measure
as a tax concession. ] want to know:
what i3 your concept of tax conces-
sion? Postponement of tax liability
is a tax concession?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: Postponement
of tax liability until the industry
becomes a viable, productive and
profitable industry is also an incen-
tive,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it a tax con-
cession? The words are ‘concession’.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Tax conces-
sion could be tax which ig a deferred
tax.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is your
concept. In how many cases would.
this really be deferred tax? Assugp-
ing in a particular industry for four
years there are no profits, you carry
forward the losses for four years—
that will be carried forward
until it is set off In any case
there is postponement of tax liability.
Have you projected this? Have you
made any study as to what will be
the exact tax concession by way of
postponement of tax liability? Have
you made any study of the assessments
of the new industrfal undertakings?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: We have to
answer this.question in the negative.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What are the
facts and figures on which you are
saying that the cash position has im-
proved?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: If the Com-
mittee wants that study to be made,
we shall have it done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want to do
that quickly and give us by the
weekend. Take typical cases. How
long does it take for an industrial
undertaking to reach this position?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We shall have
to take industries which are mana-
ged efficiently.



MR. CHAIRMAN: Take only the
Ninth Schedule industries.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: There also we
thave to take industries which have
gone into production with the maxi-
mum efficiency and see the effect.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But let them be
chosen utterly at random. Let us
know whether this is only a figment
of our imagination or something real.

SHRI D. D. DESAI: Is there any
case of any public sector undertaking
making a profit in the second or
third year?

SHRI B. D. PANDE; By and large
public sector undertakings are long
gestation plants where even under the
project report for the first 8 or 10
years no profit is expected. Some in-
dustries which are setting up small
units dealing with consumer goods can
become profitable in the second year.
Some may take 5 years. There are
instances of public sector industries
which have become profitable in the
second or third year like Instrumen-
tation Ltd., Kotah, Shipping Corpora-
tion etc.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The distinc-
tion is not between public and pri-
vate sector. It is between good mana-
gement and bad management.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Whether public
sector is well managed or not, at least
it is honestly managed.

I want you to substantiate whether
or not it is a tax concession. Please
take representative companies.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: We want to
help certain selected sectors for in-
dustrial development. We have had
development rebate for 17 years and
according {o your view, it has helped
industrialisation of the country. Since
you have decided that this should be
given up from 1974, do you think the
stage has come that industrial deve-
lopment will be taking place without
this?

SHRI B. D. PANDE. It is not felt
that there will be need for widespread
incentive being given to all industries
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in all areas, A large number of in-
dustries will be able to go along with-
out any development rebate. Thig is
now a limited incentive only in back-
ward areas to selected industries.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: It is to
be given to all industries in the Ninth
Schedule, whether they are in back-
ward or forward areas.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: When a main
industry comes up in a particular
area, a number of ancillary industries
also spring up to help this main in-
dustry. You are giving some advan-
tage to the big industry only and not
to the ancillary industries.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: It is a very
valid point. We shall get it examined.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: You have
said that development rebate has led
to an over-capitalisation of Rs. 300
crores. Who benefited most by this—
the 22 industries listed in the Ninth
Schedule, particularly big houses or
all industries?

SHRI B. B. LAL: So far as over-
capitalisation was concerned, the re-
ference was to the fact “‘hat since
such a heavy rebate w.s allowed and
that was over and above the actual
cost of the plant also, therefore many
industrialists had a tendency to go
in for a high degree of mechanisa-
tion to the detriment of employment
opportunities, instead of having labour
intensive  processes. In a country
like India with such a large scale of
unemployment, we would like to en-
courage industries to have, of course,
a certain degree of mechanisation,
but also to have as much employment
potential as possible.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: If it is so,
how is the present provision going to
ward off that danger® 1 want to un-
derscope the plea put forth by Shri
Unnikrishnan on the impact of the
development rebate. Mr. Palkhivala
said that the rate of development has
come down from 8 to 3 per cent.
Whatever be the rate of industrial
growth, the big monopolies are
growing. If you take the period 19568
to 1966, all the big industrial houses



like Tates and Birlas have grown.
Thig shows that it had a bias
in favour of larger industrial houses.
What is done in the present Bill is
that you are taking away the develop-
ment rebate and giving initial depre-
ciation. Is it going to help the smaller
firms and not big houses?

SHRI B. B. LAL: Firstly you have
asked how the tendency for over-
mechanisation or over-automation will
be prevented by the new provision as
against the old one. I would submit
that under the old system the income-
tax concession gvailable was more
than the cost of the plant. If the plant
cost Rs. 1 crore, the allowance given
was much more than Rs. 1 crore. The
total depreciation that you provided
was over and above that. Here we are
giving a certain facility but now you
cannot claim more than 100 per cent.
of the cost of the plant. Suppose I am
sctting up an industry in which a
large amount of manual operation is
involved. Under the old scheme I could
set off more than Rs. 2 crores or an
investment of Rs. 2 crores. Now we
are not going to give more than Rs. 2
crores on an investment of Rs. 2 cro-
res. Although you are getting more
relief in the first two years, ultimately
you will not get more than 100 per
cent. In this way, it is different from
the development rebate which was
allowed and the tendency to over-
capitalise will probably not be there
because of this difference.

You mentioned about larger and
smaller houses. No house, be it lar-
ger or smaller, can go in for an indus-
try without an industrial licence. Once
an industrial licence is given to an
industry, then we give it a rebate, and
that also not on the ground that it is
a small house or a big house but be-
cause it is an industry in the priority
sector, where government want to
encourage production because of shor-
tage and other things.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Is it not a
fact that this has led to exploitation
by larger houses?
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SHRI M. R. YARDI: The old deve-
lopment rebate was available to every
industry, be it small, medium or large,
according to the amount of invest-
ment made by him in plant and maci-
nery. If a person had invested more
on plant and machinery, he would get
a proportionately larger rebate. It is
a fixed percentage.

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL
BHATIA: What was the basis on
which these 22 industries have been
selected for inclusion in the Ninth
Schedule?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: There were a
number of factors which were taken
into account in preparing this list of
qualifying industries. One is the capi-
tal-intensiveness of the industry.
Where the capital is large, the amount
needed in the first few years before the
plant goes into production is fairly
large. Next comes high priority of the
product from the angle of experts;
then, essential needs for intermediate
and investment goods then, essential
needs of mass consumption. The main
point is where there is a capacity con-
straint on the production of a particu-
lar product and where by giving this
incentive there is a reasonable poasibi-
lity that the capacity will be increased
then we include it in the priority in-
dustry. Then, if an industry is making
abnormally high profits, then that
should not be considered for inclusion
because profitability is a very great
incentive. If that incentive ig suffi-
cient, then it does not merit tax in-
centive or tax concession. These
were gome of the factors which were
taken into account. If you look into
some of these cases, you will find that
most of the industries relate to goods
in which a shortage has occurred, in
which it is necessary to create greater
capacity. Therefore, many of the in-
dustries which are taken would satisfy
this objective. Take, for example, iron
and steel; it is necessary to create
more capacity. Cement is very crucial
from the point of view of industrial



growth. Similarly, soda ash and sugar
are required from the mass production
angle and also export angle. In the
case of sugar, for the first time in the
history of the sugar market, the inter-
national prices are sufficiently remu-
nerative to enable us to export larger
quantities, This was not go a few years
ago. Similar is the position in the case
of paper pulp, newsprint, ships and
aircrafts; caustic soda and soda ash
are very essential for chemicals; fer-
tilizers, the whole agricultural growth
depends on that. Most of the indus-
tries selected are such that they will
enable industrial growth to take place
in various directions. It is not our
intention to give it to the consumer
industries or other industries which
are making very high profits.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Which are the
industries m the Ninth Schedule
which are making very high profits
and which are still there?

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL
BHATIA: What about the cotton
textiles?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: Cotton textile
industry was in the doldrums for a
number of years and there are so
many committee reports that they are
not able to make both ends meet.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The textile people

have made sop much profits that they
have never done in hundred years.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: We have to
take the totality into account.

MR. CHAIRMAN: in Ferro-alloys
and tyres and tubes they are making
fantastic profits. Then there is news-
print and paper pulp.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Shortage is one
of the considerations. We want more

plants to come up because we want
more of newsprint.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is there a cem-
modity for which there is ng shortage
in the country? Further, there are

so many other things which are more
basic,

SHRI M. R. YARDI: If any sugges-

tions are madc in this regard, we will
consider them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What about pes-
ticides, pharmaceuticals, drugs, petro-
chemicals and electronics?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Pharmaceuti-
cals is a very profitable industry.

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL BHA-
TIA: Sugar is also very profitable.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: It ig necessary

to give the sugar industry incentive
from the export angle.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you willing
to take the balance-sheets of Com-
panies in these 22 items and find out
what the profits are?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Profit is not
the single criterion,

MR. CHAIRMAN: In respect of
pharmaceuticals, you said, it was pro-
fitable, So is the case with paper,
pulp and newsprint, tyres and tubes,
vegetable oils etc.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: In conditions
of shortages, people are making profits.
Ag far as vegetable oils are concerned,
it is an item of mass consumption.
The more you produce, the more
people will be happy. Merely larger
profits are not going to increase pro-
duction. Is the production increasing

in proportion to the needs of the
community?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: If in spite
of profits, they are not increasing
production, you mean, therefore, we
must give them incentives.

MR. CHAIRMAN: At one point, you
emnphasised one aspect and at another
time, another aspect.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: You may have
to consider the totality...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Some scientific
approach should be there.



SHRI M. R. YARDI: I know
weightage and arithmatic. I would say
that if you take criterion by criterion,
I can prove to you that no industry
will qualify for any incentive. When
we take the totality you have to
take a judgement there. lam a
mathematician myaself and 1 can tell
you that no satisfactory formula can
be devised for a thing like this.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: The ration-
ale should be growth. Let us take
totality in the interest of the nation.
Profitability is not by itself a factor,
shortage is by itself not a factor, need
by itself is not a factor, export by it-
self is not a factor. Ultimately it is
growth,

SHRI M. R, YARDI: It is a totality
of the factors. I would not have in-
cluded sugar two or three years ago,
but at the moment, sugar is fetching
such high profits. If we increase sugar
production, we shall be able to earn a
substantial foreign exchange.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Let us take
sugar. It is making huge profits. Pro-
duction is going up. Export will en-
courage it further. Export will serve
as incentive. Why do you want to
give incentive on the top of it?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We want this
production to take place at a faster
rate,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Will that
argument not apply to other industries.
Don’t you want pharmaceuticals to
grow? Are the essential drugs avail-
able for the people?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We are taking
up that in the public sector.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Public
sector also needs incentive. It does
not matter, whether it is private sec-
tor or public sector.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: This is only a
concession which is given to improve
the cash flow in the first few years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is yet to be
established.

6/

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We are pro-

ceeding on that basis.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 want you to
give clear-cut arguments for inclusion
and exclusion.

SHRI R. V. RAMAN: In regard to
the industries, which you particularly
mentioned, namely pesticides, drugs,
electronics, petro-chemicals, these
industries were examined by us before
we made the recommendations to the
Finance Ministry.

In particular, about drugs, we were
worried that production was not going
up and there was shortage and imports
had increased in the last two/three
years. The real problem of drugs was
mot a problem of investment. It is
quite modest as compared to many
other capital intensive industries. The
deficiency here was that in terms of
the policy, there was g limit, by which
we put that heavy investment sector
only was allowed for large houses and
foreign companies. This is an indus-
try, where large houses and foreign
Companies had been dominating. They
were not in a position to expand.

In regard to the other -categories,
there was the technology. This was
the real reason, why the growth has
been affected, not that tax concession
would have mattered.

In regard to pesticides, the problem
is not of investment, it is of techno-
logy. In some of petro-chemicals there
is capital intensity, while in certain
type of down-stream processing, it is
not a question of capital. In regard to
the more capital intensive industries in
the petro-chemical side, most of them
are in the public sector, where really
the problem is not so much of tax con-
cessions and so on. There were capa-
city constraints arnd there were short-
ages. Having regard to that and the
fact that investment had not come in
these fields we felt that these indus-
tries could be considered.

I would also mention one point
about the development rebate, and
that was that it was not related really
to utilization, but to investment,



installation of plant and machinery.
The initial depreciation allowance
would really depend on the installa-
tion and the fact that the plant is uti-
lised. To that extent, we thought that
his type of approach will be helpful
in encouraging investment as also
capacity utilization.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE: It
now appears that the main factor
which weighed with the Ministries
which made the suggestions that these
are the industries where large business
houses and the foreign firms would
come to invest.

MR, CHAIRMAN: He was only ex-
plaining this with reference to two or
three items.

SHRI SOMNATH CHATTERJEE:
Only large business houses can possi-
bly think of industries listed here. No
small scale or medium scale people
can think of them. Does it mean that
our policy is to give tax incentive to
large business houses and foreign com-
paines to set up industries? No thought
is given to the medium or small scale
which might set up industries.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: Machine tools,
sugar, vegetable oils, cotton textiles,
castings and forgings—these are all
medium industries.

SHRI R. V. RAMAN: Transformers,
switch gear and other equipment
connected with energy and power
development is, again, a part of it.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: In all
these cases, if a small unit comes in
competition with a big house, the big
house will eat away the small.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: You will have
%o take care of the large business
houses through licensing. If you don’t
want large houses to come in certain
fields, you will have to do it through
the licensing system rather than the
tax system.

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL
-BHATIA: I want to know whether
any study has been made by you be-
fore formulating the list of these
twenty-two industries for which con-

o

cession is being given, whether all or
most of them are not concerned in one
way or the other with big houses.

SHRI B, D. PANDE: Mr. Raman
has stated that the Ministry of Indus-
trial Development had very carefully
examined the entire list of industries
and, in consultation with the Finance
Ministry, indentified these industries
where concession has been given. The
question of large houses or non-large
houses was not the question at the
back of the discussions. There is an
item here called ‘“industrial and agri-
cultural machinery”. This is a wide
definition. Industrial and agricultural
machinery is only production machi-
nery, production being the large item,
and whether it is done by a small,
medium or a large house is immaterial.
The list was drawn up from the point
of view of the importance and need
for national economy. Who produces
it is another matter.

SHR1 VASANT SATHE: We are not
new to this, In public life you are also
there and we are also there; so let us
not assume that we are innocent.

You say that it is the growth factor
that is important. This reply was given
to my question in the House that
wherever growth takes place we must
encourage it. So the necessity of
growth was said to be the main factor
and that whether it is a large house
or a small house will not be taken into
consideration. Growth will be the im-
portant thing and therefore, indirect-
ly, those houses which have the capa-
city will get the licences.

Therefore, when you made the de-
tailed study, did you make the study
that industries which are basically in
the small scale sector also need incen-
tives—in fact, more incentives? And
as far as foreign companies and phar-
maceuticals are concerned, could you
not exclude them and say that foreign
companies will not get concessions, if
vou were really so concerned about it?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Actually, the

initial depreciation allowance is given
where the cost is heavy, After all,



subsidy is also being given to all in-
dustries in the backward areas.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: We are
not on the point of backward areas;
we are on the point of the scheduled
of inclusions irrespective of the back-
ward areas.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Government
has got a scheme of incentives for
small scale industries and medium
scale industries also. It does not mean
that every tax concession should also
be given to small scale industries.

MR. CHAIRMAN: No, it should not
be given; you must exclude the small
man as much as you can!

Will you please explain to me the
rationale of the proviso to Clause 6
where the deduction is 1 1|2 times for
large companies and onlyl-1|3rd times
for smaller people? Why this discri-
mination?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: This is because
the larger companies are predominen-
tly widely held companies.

MR. CHAIRMAN: All the Tatas and
Birla Companies are widely held com-
panies; all the monoply houses are
widely held companies.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The quantum
of tax benefit which will be available
under the existing provision and at
the present rate of income-tax will
work out as follows. For widely held
companies the tax benefit is 77% for
closely held domestic companies the
tax benefit is 84%, for closely held
trading companies it is 91%. ..

MR. CHAIRMAN: What beneflts are
you referring to? Are you referring to
the rates? Different companies have
different rates? That has nothing to
do with this.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The rate of
income-tax for widely held domestic
companies is 56.7% and so the tax
benefit at the rate of 1 1/2 will be
%.

MR, CHAIRMAN: And therefore?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: I am explain-
ing. For closely held industrial com-

panies the rate of income-tax is 639,
and therefore the tax benefit under the
existing provision is 84%. For closely
held trading companies the rate of
income-tax is 68.24% and therefore the
tax benefit is 91%...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are we talking
of percentages or in absolute terms:

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Percentages are
also relevant.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In this context
we are talking of a particular acti-
vity— the entitlement to a certain
benefit. Rates are fixed up on the
total income and when the total in-
come is liable to be taxed, a particular
incentives would work out differently
so far as the rates are concerned. But
so far as the basic philosophy is con-
cerned, why has the small man been
discriminated against?

I am not talking of the corporate

sector. What about the non-corporate
sector?

'SHRI B. D. PANDE: I think there

is a misunderstanding on this point.

This percentage of 50% and 1 1|2
times has been fixed to see that the
total benefit remains a little less than
100%. Otherwise, at a tax rate of
97.75% it may come to 130%,

MR. CHAIRMAN: How many people
are paying 97.75%? I am talking of a

small man and you are talking of
97.75%!

SHRI M. R. YARDI: You want to

give them a benefit which is more than
the tax?

MR. CHAIRMAN: My question is
much different—what a small man is
entitled to and what is the philusophy
behind this provision, If there is one
thing which is absent, it is logic? When
we are coming to basic principle, in
this it has to be admitted that a smal-
ler amount will get only 1-1]3 and
larger amount will pget 1.6 times.
Then what is the impact on this? If
there is a less, then there is nothing.
What are these calculations about?
The question does not arise here. The



question arises only if there is profit.
Therefore, may be in one case. if it is
just marginal, it would be something
different. Therefore what jg your
philosophy in arriving at this aspect?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: In tax matters
we cannot go on the basic of philoso-
phical aspect.

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL BHA-
TIA: Are we trying to compensate
the difference that exists in Taxation
Laws?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: You can give
relief upto the expenditure incurred.
But you cannot give relief beyond the
expenditure incurred.

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL BHA-
TIA: Supposing other industries who
also form this rational and if they
claim, will they also get the deprecia-
tion?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: No, Sir. Now
the decision will have to be taken at
the time Parliament enacts act. There
is no provision for that at present.
The objectives will not go into the
Act.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why not Parlia-
ment purely lays down the criteria?

SHRI M .R. YARDI: There will be
endless sort of representationg before
the tax administrators. Then if it is
refused, there will be endless litiga-
tions.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you take these
points for consideration then every-
body will come forward.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Sir, the ex-
tension or rejection of this list will be
for the Parliament to decide.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Instead of this,
why not we lay down the criteria
only?

SHRI M. R. YARDI; That will
create endle’s problems to tax admini-
strators. Therefore I would respect-
fully submit that if the Parliament
says that it is not sufficient, they can
add to it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want proper
representatives or experts to appreci-
ate this.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: If you lay
down the principles, that will give us
endless troubles because the Income-
tax Officers will have to decide this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then who will
decide ang determine which are the
industries to be entitled for exemption
and who will publish a list. And if
some inustries are excluded they can
make representation before that
authority and adjudication of that
authority will be final,

SHRI B. D. PANDE: Would it not
be better that instead of Parliament,
the Select Committee decides this
point?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Select Com-
mittee is not empowered to go into
these points. We will not. We only
knew a few facts here and there.
It can be done by the Ministry con-
cerned because they have various
data and expertise etc.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: May I re-
quest the witnesses to let us have a
note on this?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Besides pharma-
ceutical between Fifth and Ninth
Schedule, if you submit a note, we
can consider that.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: For the speci-
fic things, we can give you a pote
why they have not been included. But
on the negative side we will give rea-
sons why it was not considered neces-
sary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: And on that
basis, the Select Committee can de-
termine.

SHRI R. V. RAMAN: I may state
that in trying to select industries we
had several types of listg before us.
The Fifth and the Sixth Schedules of
earlier income-tax act have definitely
been gone through everyone of us.
We have in the Plan 31 industries
which are regarded as core industries
Wherever plan targets have not been
achjeved, the reasons were called for.
Lastly at the time of the formulation
of industrial Policy in February 1873,
we had drawn a list of priority indus-



tries in consultation with the Planning
Commission and the Finance Ministry.
Now, these 4 lists we had before us.
Then we tried to go through these
items to see in which category the pro-
duction was not there, whether it was
possibly due to price control, whether
it was possibly due to other cons-
craints. And we tries to form a judge-
ment based on the criteria which
Mr. Yardi had set up and this was one
of the industries which was considered.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Therefore, Mr.
Raman, I would request you to con-
fine yourself only to Fifth and Sixth
Schedule and that was why you had
excluded this. But we would then on
your reasoning evaluate whether we
agree or disagree on this. Then we
will decide on this point.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: (Criteria is
being listed in the act. I am not quite
sure whether the selection of an in-
dustry, on the basis of the criteria,
not be justiceable,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We can provide
for that and that will be the final
authority. What we would do is we
will ourselves try to do this for worse
or better.

SHRI ERA SEZHIYAN: Along with
that note, I want to have further cla-
rification on about 23 items out of 33
items regarding their headings. Previ-
ously, sometheing wag defined in the
Fifth Schedule and now samething
has been defined in the Sixth Sche-
dule.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In other words,
Mr., Raman, unless you have in your
mind something different than what
is contemplated in the Fifth and
Sixth Schedule, Kindly adhere to the
same terminology. Whatever laws we
want to make, the minimum we can do
is at least to make them clear.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: One thing
more may be kept in view while
giving that note that we want to en-
courage these industries which have
got employment potential such as
fishery, leather goods handicrafts and

T

canning. Why has this not been con-
sidered for being given incentives?

MR. CHAIRMAN: In other words,
are you suggesting some industries
over and above the Fifth Schedule?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: We are
not bound by the Fifth Schedule,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are not bound
by anything. We have to confine our-
selves, because we cannot go end-
lessly.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: I may like to
mention here that Mr. Yardi will be
able to explain it. In respect of em-
ploymemt oriented industries, various
attempts were made to see and exa-
mine whether any suitable, viable
defiinition could be framed andq pre-
pared which will enable us to find
out what are employment oriented in-
dustries, but we could not come to any
conclusion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Wage factor and
the cost of production could not be
the criteria?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The main thing
is that incentive will have to be given
for doing something more and in
that respect, additional employment
is there. Now, the main difficulty was
how did we define additional employ-
ment ‘schemes?

MR. CHAIRMAN: I want to put it
a little differently. @ We want em-
ployment oriented industries to be
taken in the Ninth Schedule. We can
have viable or reasonable criteria. But
I do not know which are the employ-
ment oriented industries? Mr. Yardi,
in that case, it would be difficult.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: That itself is a
difficult point.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If that is the
difficulty, we have to leave it.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We shall give
you a note on the various attempts
made.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What do you
mean by a wage factor? Where the



wage factor is more than 5 per cent
whether it is an employment oriented
industry or not?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Certain indus-
tries are employment oriented indus-
tries,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Bidi factory is
a highly employment oriented indus-
try. Then leather and coir industries.
Why should we not get that here?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: For certain
other industries, do you want to give
incentive to industries to create em-
ployment? Emplyment will auto-
matically come as a result of the in-
dusiries coming into being. For exam-
ple, Mining Industry. It is an em-
ployment intensive industry. Qur idea
was that we must try to see that an
industry created employment as much
as possible and not mechanised it to
the last extent. That was the view
which we had taken.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Have you
given the concessions to  industries
other than the Mining Industry? How
you will be able to......

SHRI M. R. YARDI:
question of policy.

Now, it is a

SHRI VASANT SATHE: People get
concession in Iron and Steel industry.
Why not in Mining also? Therefore,
the first criterion is that it should also
be in the private sector to enjoy con-
cessions. Why are you excluding.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: I am thinking
of encouraging self-employment also.
To start g unit of production and if
you give them incentive, that should
encourage self-employment Suppo-
sing even there you exclude large
houses, that will be an encouragement,
There is no disagreement on the in-
centives. They have to be provided to
the medium and smal] scale industries.
There is no doubt about it. But the
main question is whether that incen-
tive should be provided by the provi-
sion which is made here or by other
provisions:
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SHRI VASANT SATHE: In respect
of other provisions. why not provide
them here? I want to know the ra-
tionale of that?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The rationale
ig that the industry which requires
not very heavy capital, they will not
benefit by this relief,

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: Would they
also give a thought to the other mat-
ter that intial depreciation does not
remain only on paper and it results
in the nationalization of that parti-
cular industry?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sanghi, they
have explained to us what they have
in their mind. It is for us to give
thought to it. It is not for them to
give thought to it

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL
BHATIA: With this type of rationale,
the other industries will be entitled
to it. The whole purpose will be
defeated. Therefore, since the experts
are here, we should request them to
narrow it down to such ap extent so
that we may be able to do it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Fifth and Sixth
Schedule may be taken as the base.
Please give us rationale for exclusi-
on and we shall try to come to a con-
clusion.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: I do not
say that these should be taken as the
upper limit or as the base. I do not
say about rationale in that., If we
are making tax concessions to en-
courage industries, we should en-
courage them in backward areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN: All right. If it is
so, let me have a list of all industries
and we will spend it to'them. You will
send this information to us by the
week-end, because we have to re-
port back the Bill to the Parliament,
as soon as the Session starts. What
are the criteria of a backward area?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: On this criteria
of a backward area. I do not know
whether the Committee’s attention
hag been drawn to a report which was



prepared in 1969 or so. This happen-
ed to be prepared under my Chair-
manship when I was Secretary in the
Planning Commission. 1 think it is
bricf report and had gone through
certain earlier attempts to classify
backward areas and the attempts were
made.

Attempts were made since 1960 on-
wards. Certain criteria were drawn
up by this Committee as to what
should be treated as an industrially
backward area and an industrially
backward State. This Committee did
not recommend general backwardness.
This was only in relation to industrial
backwardness. This recommendation
of the Committee was placed before
the National Development Council and
the National Development Council met
in September 1969, At that time, this
Committee had recommended that
certain States be divided into two
categories, industrially backward and
not so industrially backward. But,
this rccommendation was not accepted
by the National Development Council
and they said the criteria should be
by districts and not by State because
there are backward districts even in
what may be described as industrially
forward States. Then, district was
taken as the unit and certain criteria
were laid down such as road mileage
per lakh of population, per capita in-
come etc. It should not be so0 back-
ward as not to have the minimum in-
frastructure for industrial develop-
ment. There are two types of back-
wardness. One is, totally backward,
where there is no electricity, no water
and incentives alone will not set up
industries there. There other is a
backward area, where the
minimum infrastructure is avail-
able. These criteria were, by and
large, accepted by the National
Development Council and they decided
that the incentives should be classified
into two parts. One, where the finan-
cial institutions under the leadership
of the Industrial Development Bank,
should classify such districts, where
concessional finance will be available
for setting up industries, and another,
more limited number of districts be
selected. At that time, it was sugges-

ted that there should be two in the
industrially backward areas and one
in the industrially forward States,
where in addition to the finance, some
positive subsides be also given, if the
unit does not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs in
size. The State Governments were
asked, under these criteria, to pre-
pare a list of these districts. These
lists were discussed by the financial
institutions on the one side and the
Reserve Bank on the other. Ulti-
mately, the Industrial Development
Bank gave the list where they wo'"ld
extend concessional finance and the
districts that would be eligibe for
subsidy were fixed in consultation
with the State Governments on the
basis of their recommendations, and
in consultation here between the Mi-
nistry of Industrial Development, the
Planning Commission and the Finance
Ministry. On that basis, it has to be
seen whether the criteria indicated
had been applied by the State Gov-
ernments.

MR, CHAIRMAN: This was done
by the IDBI?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: They did it for
the financing part of it. But, this
Committee did it for the subsidy part
of it, where the Government of India
was giving a subsidy. Since the
choice had to be limited only to two
districts in the industrially backward
areas and one district in the industri-
ally forward areas for subsidy pur-
poses, I think by and large, this Com-
mittee went by the recommendations
of the State Governments, ag long as
they saw to it that they did not choose
either a very backward district, where
development would not take place or
a very forward district where indus-
trial growth would be expected to
take place without the subsidy. This
is the present rationale.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What were
the criteria for industrially forward
districts?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: I am referring
to this Committee. They have laid
down certain criteria. For instance,
they have laid down certain criteria



in regard to the identification of back-
ward districts. The districts should be
outside the radius, about 50 miles from
large cities or large industrial projects.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What do
you mean by large cities?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: ‘Large Ccities’
means the cities with a population of
one million, if T am not wrong, so that,
it was expected that there would be
a spread effect on that.; poverty of the
people as indicated by low per capita
income per thousand of population;
under utilisation of productive resour-
ces; low percentage of population en-
gaged in secondary and tertiary acti-
vities; low percentage of factory em-
ployment; non or un-utilisation of
economic and natural resources like
minerals, forests etc.,; availability of
power or likelihvod of availability of
power within one or two years; avail-
ability of transport and communica-
tion facilities or likelihood of their
availability within one or two years;
availability of water or likelihood of
its availability within one or two
years. These were the broad definitions
that were given and they were to be
judged, each district was to be judged,
in respect of its distance from the
medial level of the State’s average per
capita income. Those which were very
far below were not to be taken and
those which were a little below were
to be taken.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: I would
like to ask one question. Mr. Yardi
may be able to enlighten on this point.
May 1 know, why in Maharashtra,
you excluded Wardha, Amaravati and
Akola? You might have considered
Nagpur as a big city with a popula-
tion of one million. May 1 know, on
what basis, these were excluded, even
though they fulfilled all the criteria
which have been mentioned just now.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Wardha or Akola
or any other district may be taken as
representative of districts which are
otherwise really backward, but not in-
cluded here.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The main cri-
terion which was adopted was, how
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many were above the average level of
per capita income and how many were
below the average level of per capita
income and we shall have to find out
as to what extent....

SHRI VASANT SATHE: You take
the per capita income of all districts
and then decide on the average level
of per capita income?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: It was
district-wise.

SHRI B. B. LAL: Actually, in the
selection of these backward districts,
the State Governments were.asked to
send their recommendations on the
basis of certain criteria which were
laid down and these were examined
by certain Ministries here, which were
concerned with this, like the Ministry
of Finance, Ministry of Industrial
Development, Planning Commission
and so on. If the recommendations of
the State Governments complied with
the guidelines laid down, we agreed
to it. But, I was going to submit to
you one thing, Actually, the whole
thing arose out of the desire of the
members of the National Development
Council to have more balanced growth
region-wise., There were two problems
in this. One was, in regard to certain
States, the State as a whole was very
backward compared to the average
level of per capita income in the coun.
ty; secondly even within each State
also, there were regions which were
more backward than the other regions
in the rest of the State. Two types of
exercises were carried out by these
two Committees which were set up
under the instructions of the National
Development Council One was to de-
cide which are the States in India
which could be regarded as being be-
Jlow the average level of industrial
development in the country. So, for
that, certain criteria were laid down,
like road mileage per one lakh of
Population in each State; rail mileage
per lakh of population; per capita in-
come; number of industrial workers
employed in the State per lakh of
population and so on. A number of
criteria were laid down. First, the
average for the country was laid

done



down. Then, the States which were
less than the average in the country,
were regarded as industrially back-
ward and then the list was finalised.
Fivst, it included Andhra Pradesh,
Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Orissa, Rajas-
than, Uttar Pradesh in addition to
Jammu and Kashmir, Nagaland and
Assam. These States were regarded as
being below the average level of in-
dustrial development in the country.
Then, for different districts in each
State, the same exercise was carried
out. The average level of development
in the State was taken and any district
which according to the criteria which
were laid down, fell below the average
in the State, was regarded as indus-
trially backward district in that State.
Now, the list which has been added to
this amendment Bill is the list of
those districts, which were recognised,
after carrying out this exercise, as
backward districts, Actually, these are
exactly those districts which were re-
garded as backward on the basis of
these criteria.

SHR] B. D. PANDE: To-day, these
lists are being used for concessional
finance, as approved by the Committee.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: That has
led to such a trouble for us. People of
Amravati are worried as to why they
are differentiated from the people of
Yeotmal, which is an adjoining area.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: I can appre-
ciate that. If I am not mistaken, this
covers nearly 212 out of 330 districts
i.e. nearly two-thirds of the country.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Precisely,
therefore, logical reasoning indicates
that since a minimum level of infra-
structure is needed, tribal areas do not
come therein. Otherwise, except in
the case of big cities like Bombay,
Calcutta, Madras and other industrial-
ly developed centres, practically the
entire country and all the small and
medium towns and the surrounding
areas will be treated as industrially
backward. Will it not be a most strai-
ghtforward appraisal, rather than mak-
Ing this laboured exercise?

_ SHRI B. B. LAL: If every district
1s declared as backward, then the

—

whole object of the exercise will be
frustrated.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: It is already
frustrated because of two-thirds of the
number of districts being included.

SHRI B. B. LAL: Let me point out
the logic of the whole thing. We want
to give certain incentives to areas
which are below the average to enable
them to come up to the average or a
little higher level. For doing this, it
is natural that we draw the line be-
tween districts; it is fairly logical.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: The line is
too thin.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It should be non-
existent as between Akola and Yeot-
mal.

SHR] B. B. LAL: I cannot say any-
thing about particular cases; but
whenever such demarcation is carried
out there are bound to be cases which
are just above or not below the line.

SHRI KARTIK ORAON: We often
use the word ‘backwardness; but its
definition is very vague and confusing.
One area may be agriculturally ad-
vanced and the other industrially ad-
vanced. The per capita income there
may be very high., One district may
be agriculturally very backward, but
industrially very advanced, yet the
per capita income there may be
very low. My point is that the
per capita income should be the final
determining factor, and not whether
an area is industrially backward or
agriculturally forward. For instance in
Bihar, some districts have been shown
as backward ones. They are having 5
or 6 crores of paddy, i.e.,, three normal
crops; the fourth is flooded, the 5th is
affected by the drought and the 6th
by political pressure. The per capita
income in that area is very high. Raw
mnaterials are not available in some
districts; without them how can an
area be industrially forward?

MR. CHAIRMAN: In view o* these
basic difficulties in properly identi-
fying the backward areas on a ration-
al and fool-proof basis what according
to you should be our approach in re-
making the Schedule?



SHRI KARTIK ORAON: It should
be based more on the per capita in-
come; that is the only way by which
we can remove the disparity between
district and district and areas and
areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN; According to you
the living conditions in g particular
district should help us.

SHRI KARTIK ORAON: We will
produce coal and we will suffer.
Where we had 6 crops, we would
now have 2. There is something basi-
cally wrong. This should be re-sche-
duled.

SHRI D. D. DESAI: The country it-
self is already backward. Therefore,
it should not be very difficult to iden-
tify and have a list of the developed
areas. -

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is what Mr.
Sathe had suggested. If 1 have under-
stood Mr. Yardi and Mr. Lal correct-
ly, they seem to feel that the whole
purpose will be frustrated if you make
the long list , longer. It would then
no longer be a question of identifica-
tion of backward areas; but one of
excluding the developed areas and
treating the rest as backward. But
they have gone on certain criteria.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The definition
of the words ‘developed area’ is itself
not very easy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think it should
mean an area where any further in-
dustrial activity is not warranted.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Then the
whole country, except a few islands
of presperity, will have to be treated
as backward area; and the very idea
of concentrating effort on some rela-
tively backward areas will be frus-
trated. As such, we thought that ave-
rage development should be treated
as the basis.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: The qualifi-
cation which 1 would make is to say
that the Committee spoke of identi-
fication of  industrially backward
areas. It is not general backwardness.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The real difficul-
ty is this. In Maharashtra, one of the
districts included is Colaba. Mr.
Madhu Limaye pointed this out in the
Parliament to the tremendous em-
barrassment of the Finance Minister
and said that Colaba is the district
selected for the twin area.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Not for the
whole district, Sir; but for a portion
of it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In regard to
backward areas at least, we should
leave it to be legislated to be made
hy the board or some other authority,
instead of making a schedule.

SHRI M. R. YADI: Again, the same
problem will come in.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Industrialization
is more subjective; but this will be
more objective.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Suppose
we were to exclude those districts
which do not have even the minimum
infra-structure for industrial growth
and those districts which are top-
heavily concentrated with industrial
growth. You exclude these two cate-
gories and include the rest.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: As I said, the
attempts have been made from 1960 or
even earlier to identify them, But it
has always proved to be a very diffi-
cult task.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What happens on
delimitation? As a result of delimi-
tation, there is a very serious com-
plaint made by the people saying,
“We were formerly in backward area
and now just because of political rea-
sons, we are tacked on to some other
districts which are no longer in a
backward area.”

SHRI B. D. PANDE: All kinds of
difficulties are there, the people who
have to identify these districts find it
very difficult to do that job. Take, for
example, Colaba which has been
selected ag a district for the develop-
ment of the twin city cancept. At



the time when this was programmed,
in 1969-70, it was not anticipated
when that concept would materialise
and so on. Colaba is otherwise
probably, comparatively, an industri-
ally backward district.

The point is that when this Bill was
introduced, in order that we do not go
over the same exercise in a different
way, over and over again, when a list
of district had already been finalised
which was, in fact, working as per the
notifications and instructiong given by
the Industrial Development Bank and
the Reserve Bank for financial things,
the easiest thing that was done was
not to re-open the question. Here was
a list of districts where financial aid
was being given. So, that as taken up.

SHR]I VASANT SATHE: You did
not want to re-open the question. You
followed the line of least resistence.
Because you had g ready-made mate-
rial before you, you adopted that.

SHRI B. B. LAL: It is not that, It
was done on the basis of the guide-

lines laid down by the National
Development Council.
SHRI N. K. SANGHI: We are

discussing the manner in which the
backward regions have been identified.
The National Development Council
laid down certain guide-lines by
which these areas came to be identi-
fied as backward areas. Whether a
particular area is really backward or
not from industrial development point
of view there is a lot to be said and
done. I do not think we can come to
any conclusion in a short time as to
what should be the criteria for iden-
tifying backward areas.

MR, CHAIRMAN: We are not
coming to any conclusion now. We are
having a dialogue now.

SHRI N. K. SANGHI: The most
important point is what they have pro-
vided as an incentive for developing
the backward areas. Does it really go
to an industrially backward area? In-
clusion of areas in that category can
be done from time to time,
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MR. CHAIRMAN: We are coming
to the quantum of incentives. Now,
we are on identification of backward
areas.

SHRI N, K. SANGHI: Mr. Sathe
has gaid so much gbout Maharashtra.
In Rajasthan, Balmer is identifled as
a backward area. But Jaisalmer
which is worse than Balmer has not
been identified ag a backward area.

SHRI B. B. LAL; Jaisalmer is iden-
tifled ag a backward area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Eighth Sche-
dule refers to a list of backward area,
not industrially backward areas. But

_you have to identify them with refer-

ence to industrial backwardness.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: This rebate or
whatever financial assistance is to be
given is for industrial development of
the area.

The whole thing started not about
the general backwardness of an area.
The direction of the National Deve-
lopment Council wag to identify the
area:s as industrially backward. The
concessions are given for setting up
industries in industrially backward
areas. This list has been drawn up
after a very long and detailed discus-
sion with the State Governments and
the authorities concerned.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Would you
kindly give us a list of those districts
which, according to your study, are
ahsolutely backward in the sense that
they do not have even the infra-struc-
ture facilities?

SHRI B. D. PANDE: That was done
by the State Governments.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: You must
have got it from the State Govern-
ments. You give us the list of those
districts and a list of over-indus-
trialised districts.

SHRI B. B. LAL: May I clarify one
thing? What Mr. Pande really said
or what he really meant was that
among the backward districts which
have been identified according to the
criteria mentioned, ag being below the



average state of Industrial develop-
ment in the State, there were some
other districts which the State Gov-
ernments were asked recognise . in
respect of which a special type of
financial assistance was to be given.
Normally, in all the backward districts,
the financial institutions give finance
at a lower rate of interest, the maxi-
mum being 74 per cent Wwhereas,
otherwise, the financial institutions
charge 11-12 per cent. Then, the
period of repayment also is longer in
the case of backward areas. There are
also certain other concessions, like,
other charges being at a lower scale
and so on. In all these backward dis-
tricts, all these concessions are given
by the financial institutions.

Now, in addition to that, in each of
the backward States two districts and
in each of the developed States one
district were to be given a special
concession and it was that 10 per cent
of the capital invested in an industrial
project upto a ceiling of Rs. 50 lakhs
was to be given as a subsidy. That
was to be given as an outright subsidy.
For example, if you set up an industry
costing Rs. 50 lakhs, Rs, 5 lakh subsi-
dy was to be given for that. For that
the State Governments were asked to
identify two districtg in each of the
backward States and one district in
each of the developed States. The
States were told, “Look here, this is a
very special concession to encourage
industries. I you select a district
‘where there is no infra-structure at
all, then that industry might not come
up there.” Therefore, the advice given
to them was, ‘Don't select the most
backward district in your State. You
select a district where there is some
elementary infra-structure available.”

This is what he meant by saving
that absolutely most backard districts
with no infra-structure at all were
excluded.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: By that
criterion, the State Government of
Maharashirg should have include
Akola,
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Anyway;
will apply our mind to that.

we

SHRI B. D. PANDE: My attention
has been drawn to a letter which was
issued in December, 1869, from the
Planning Commission to the State
Governments on identification of dis-
triets. It had issued under my signa-
ture. I do not know whether the
Committee would like to have a copy
of that letter. If you desire, we will
supply you a copy ot that,

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may supply
it to us. You may give us copies of
Pande Committee’s report, so that we
can see how best we can rationalise
the Eighth Schedule.

The next question is, how do you
think that this 20 per cent reduction
in profits over a period of 20 years
from the date of production is really
going to mean any incentive for an
industrialist to go to these areas,
specially in view of the colossal diffi-
culties of absence of infra-structure
and the built-in residence in our coun-
try as it is today for people to go
away from markets.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: As 1 said
before, this concession by itself will
not be an incentive.

MF CHAIRMAN: Then what are
the integrated steps taken?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: There are a
number of steps taken for the deve-
lopment of backward areas like con-
cessicnal rate of finance, extension of
initial moratorium on repayment o!
loan, longer a mortisation period,
participation in risk capital, reduction
in under-writing commission, reduc-
tion in consultancy charges etc. These
ore generally given oy the develop-
ment banks. 'Then there are certair
incentives riven the State Govern-
ments.. .

SHR1 B. B. LAL: This is a booklet,
Guidelines for Industries’ published



by the Ministry ot Industrial Deve
lopment. '

MR, CHAIRMAN: You can send us
some copies.

SHRI B. B. LAL: Yes.

SHRI M. R. Yardi: Varioug facili-
ties are given by the State Govern-
ments both by way of finance as well
as other things, For example in
Andhra Pradesh, they give deve-
loped plots in selected industrial are-
as to entrepreneurs on suitable terms
and conditions; the allotment is made
either on rental basis or on hire-pur-
chase basis, then price preference and
priorities are given in respect of raw
materials; raw materials are made
available to cottage industries at sub-
sidised rates to meet fhe actual re-
quirements of the artisans through
a suilable agency. Then, feasibility
studies are also made. The IDBI has
sét up two consultancy organisations,
one for NEFA and the other for Kerala.
The idea is to set up consultancy
organisations for the various zones of
the country so that they will be able
to give guidance in the selection of
industries, preparation of feasibility
studies, etc...

MR. CHAIRMAN: The incentives
referred to here are concessional
finance, better expertize and a limited
amount of direct finances available
to those one or two districts..,

SHRI B. B. LAL: Now that num-
ber has been increased to three dis-
tricts in each industrially forward
State and six districtg in each indus-
trially backward State.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Nothing is done
for infra-structure. What I want to
know is this. Suppose in an area, a
road has to be built or a well has to
be dug or a particular land has to be
developed. Assuming that the indus-
trialist develops the land or bullds a
road, which ig used by other also, he
neither gets depreciation nor is it
written off....

SHRI B. B. LAL: 1 would submit
that, by and large, it will be rery

difficult for an individual industrialist
to construct a road...

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want the
industrialists to go and invest money
in infra-structure. If they invest in
infra-structure, specially in develop-
ment of land, building roads, digging
wells, etc., why not allow deduction
in tax? If they do not do, then they
will not get.

SHRI B. B. LAL: I would submit,
in practical terms, they might not be
able to do anything. For example,
where a road has to be built and a lot
of private cultivable land has to be
acquired, only the State Government
can do it; a privaite industrialist will
not be able to do.

MR. CHAIRMAN: A paper mill
has come in my constituency. A road
has to be built—about three or four
furlongs. For that, the land has to be
purchased by that factory and the
road has to be constructed by the
factory itself. The State Government
have said that they will not build any
road. If the road is build by the fac-
tory, which would be used not only
by the factory but by others also why
not that be allowed to be written off?

SHR1 B. B. LAL: This will be
treated as part of the capital cost.

MR. CHAIRMAN: To the extent
that they invest in infra-structure in
backward areas, why not that be
allowed to be writtén off? Anyway,
so much for the Infra-structure. Now,
we come to this 20 per cent business.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: As I said, any
tax incentive by itself will not be
sufficient for bringing about industrial
development. It has got to be a sort
of a composite effort, a package of
incentives which should be given.
Now, the incentives which are given
both by the States and the Centre and
the financial institutions, I  think,
along with these tax concessions
should be sufficient to enthuse them.
But I do not expect an industrialist,
except a few rare cases ag the one
you have mentioned where a paper
mill iz coaning up, aad it has not been



our experience that an industrialist
has taken the trouble to go to a back-
ward area and develop the whole
infra-structure there. But the ques-
tion whether the infra-structural deve-
lopment should be considered as a
cost of putting up the factory for the
purpose of depreciation—that can be
examined and we shall submit a pa-
per on that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I am thinking of
the total write-off. If somebody s
willing to develop the country-side in
the backward areas and build the
infra-structure which is in fact the
Government’s job—the State Govern-
ment should do it or the Central Gov-
ernment should do it—but if some-
body in the public sector or the
private sector business does this, the
minimum that may be done is that
he should be allowed to write them
off.

SHRI K. R. GENESH: It is only a
big industrialist who can do.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The paper plant
I am talking of is a ten-tonne plant.
It is a small one. It is about the prin-
ciple we are talking about,

SHRI M. R. YARDI: There are
many practical and administrative
difficulties. Take for example, deve-
lopment of roads. Where will you
draw the line? Will you say that the
road built from the factory with the
trunk road will qualify for this or all
the roads which are put up in the
whole factory area?

MR. CHAIRMAN: In that district,
if someone is so philanthropically-
minded to do so, without any rela-
tion to hie industry, let him do it. It
iz a very happy proposition.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: He has done
that after reaping the profits. Should
the Government go on subsidising it?
For example, take Walchandnagar.
A beautiful industrial city has come
up there. They have developed it
over 3 number of years. Or take the
enmar factory in Nasik. Ag I had been

there, I know it. Beautiful roads, the
whole infra-structure are there,

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is of the
Maharashtra Government. Is it not
so?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Walchandna-
gar people have done it. They used
to have their own Police..,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: A State
within a State.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The State
Government has objected to it. Do
you want to subsidise it, and if so,
where would you draw the line?

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 want to draw
the line at only ome point. That line
is: you have identified the backdard
areas. An expenditure which ought
to be legitimately and validly - the
State's expenditure, if it has been
incurred by the assessee himself, the
minimum that can be done is: it
should be allowed to be written off.

SHRI B. D. PANDE: 71 will confine
it only to the connecting road and not
the roads inside the factory area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: No businessman
will construct a centimetre of road
longer than what is necessary for his
factory.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Walchand-
nagar factory you should go and see.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In the case of a
sugar factory they have captive sugar-
cane-growing areas. Therefore, it is
connected with their business.

SHRI K. R. GANESH: There is
one little doubt. The whole trend of
discussion to-day when we examined
the official witnesses and when other
witnesses came, can be divided into
two. The trend of discussion when
other witnesses came was that these
concessions given are absolutely nig-
gardly and it is not going to help the
economic growth, and therefore, it is
not worth having.

Now, the other trend which is

there to-day is that there are two or
three points they have given. One is



that the Schedules have to be com-
prehensive. Then doubts also have
been raised by hon. Members
whether these concessions will be
taken advantage of by the larger
business houses, and why not include
smaller people and smaller industries
also in the Schedule? I would only
say that the whole thing has got to be
seen. Take roads. Who will build the
roads? The roads can be built only
by a very large industry. Small in-
dustries cannot built the roads.

SHR] M. P. YARDI: As a result of
offering concessional termg 600 units
have been located in the backward
districts from 1972. The total amount
that has been sanctioned is Rs. 37.8
crores. This is inclusive of the pre-
paratory period also,

I personally think that with the
cummulative effect of the concessions
that are being given by the Centre,
the States and the financial institutions
will be to speed up industrial develop-
ment.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: About the
development of industries in the
backward areas and concessions 1
have got my practical experience.

The most important point is com-
munications. Take for example a
small town which is about 400 miles
from Bombay. Sometimes the tele-
phone line is working and sometimes
it is not working. I am talking of
Akola whereform Mr. Sathe comes.
What will happen? In spite of all
your incentives no industry has gone
there, Take my own constituency.
Sholapur. We do not get trunk calls
even though the telephone is there.
Sometimes it is working and some-

times it is not working. It is my
practical experience.
SHRI K. R. GANESH: Industrial

development the world over has not
taken place llke that, that telephone
line is not working or is working. It
needs a spirit of adventure and taking
risks.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: Any person
who is going to put up an industry

‘
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would like to have contacts with his
buyers and suppliers and whether he
is getting his goods or not. There-
fore, my submission is this: that first
priority should be given to those
cities which are in the list of back-
ward areas to be provided with STD
system so that their difficulties are
overcome and so that the communi-
cation difficulties are overcome, so
that the people who go there get the
best information and can keep them-
selves in contact with the buyers and
sellers and the market.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We should also

have invited the Secretary of Posts
& Tellegraphs.

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: The Plann-

ing Secretary is there. He can take
note of it.

The second is transport. Here my
views are these, While opening new
airports, those cities which are in the
backward areas should get the prio-
rity in regard to provision of airports
so that people can go and set up in
dustries there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We should have
airports in all these districts?

SHRI S. R. DAMANI: What I sug-
gest is this. In the mext five years
Government has plans to set up
new airports. new automatic tele-
phone connections. Priority should
be given to those citirs which are
backward. Industrv can go there.
They can get advantage of communi-
cation and ‘ransport. Without that,
giving concession alone, is not enough,

SHRI B. B. LAL: May I mention
this fact? In some of the States a
concession is also given in respect of
sales tax—in the backwarq districts.
This is a very great advantage. T know
a State in which new industries are
given a concession in the matter of
sales tax which is three times in other
districts, If the industry goes to the
backward areas they will get the
sales tax benefit for 5 years. That is
a big incentive because sales tax
constitute a good portion of the
amount one has to pay. Thig conces-



sion Is 3 or 4 or even 10 per cent.
That is for industries going to back-
ward areas. I am saying this for
purposes of completing the record.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We come to 20
per cent Mr. Yardi,

SHRI RAGHUNANDAN LAL BHA-
TIA: Regarding industrially back-
ward areas, the Government must
put an embargo on big cities saying
that no further liicence will be given
in those areas, for 50 ‘miles radius in
respect of big cities. In this way
alone the backward areas with deve-
lop automatically and all these con-
cessions wil kave a meaning. It is
only then that the top industrialists
will go to the backward areas.

SHR B. D. PANDE: This was
taken up in the National Develop-

ment Council and the most strong
opposition came from Bengal. The
question of Haldia came up, From

Calcutta, Haldia is less than 50 miles,
Kalyani is Yess than 50 miles. They
said, to reduce pressure on Calcutta
industries have to go to Haldia, Kal-
yani etc. Even as a concept if you go
by that they said there will be no
development in Calcutta, Since this
point has been raised, I am mention-
ing this fact. It was objected to in
the N.D.C. That is why this idea
had to be given up. This idea has
been made on many occassions but
there was way strong objection from
Calcutta.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: As you know
there are problems created by urbani-
sation and supposing you put a limit
like that you will not be able to
develop those towns which are within
the radius of ring towns, but which
are necessary. to reduce the pressure
on big citles like Calcutta, Bombay,
etc. You have got to take steps in
that regard also It is not as if we
have one problem; there are so many
problems.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The main diffi-
culty is, instead of ring towns, the
slums got developed. Now we come
to the question of adequacy, according
to you, of 2 per cent, There have
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been serious criticisms, The strong
criticism is that this period of 10 year
is illusory. Because, in first 3 or 4 or
5 years there are no tax profits. So
the real reliet will be available only
after 5 years. That is number one.
And number two, in view of the
increased cost of production in the
backward areas....

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Not necessarily,
I can say only in a very few cases
that the industrialists will undertake
infra structural development before
they make profits. If the infra-
structure development is taken care of
by the State Government I cannot say
that the cost of manufacturing in
backward areas will be more. People
used to go from Poona to Bhor about
50 miles away. There was not much
of labour cost. Labour cost was low
in other areas.

MR, CHAIRMAN: That was because
of the tax concession in those days.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Sales-tax and
Income-tax concessions are given by
the Centre to the States. These are
very substantial tax concessions which
are given....

MR. CHAIRMAN: In principle you
don’t accept that in backward areas
the cost of production per unit is more
than what is in a developed area.

SHRI M. R, YARDI: We know that
where there are multi-units of the

‘same project then the cost of wages

is much lower in the backward area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Take a piece of
paper and cost of production of paper
purchased from Chandigarh. In a
backward area the cost is to be more
than what it is in Chandigarh and that
is notwithstanding the fact that labour
is cheap but because wheat straw is
going to be more expensive there. So,
it is not cheapness of labour....

SHRI M. R. YARDI: You cannot
generalise

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is true; we
are not generalising.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Of course there
may be some cases like that, but on
the whole I do not know how the infra
structure development shorld be more



in a backward ares than for instance
in-a developed or forward area,

MR. CHAIRMAN: This position
that infra-structure is taken care of
by the States is itself possibly not
very realistic.

SHRI M. R. YARDI: Industrial
Estates mean, practically everything is
taken care of.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you made
any study as to how the tax concession
operates?

SHRI M. R. YARDI: It is very
difficult to make scientific study as
to how a particular tax concession
operates.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The point which
often arises is, why is there resistence
of the industries going to backward
areas,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: I will' put
it in the other way. Why is it that.
they prefer to put up industries in
the concentrated or developed areas
like Bombay and Calcutta only?

SHRI B. B. LAL: I say this from
the experience of States where we
have come face to face with such
problems, What he said about tele-
phone is one point, because they do
like communications to get in touch
with customers for getting raw
materials and so on. But I am talking
about another difficulty. In the back-
ward area sometimes there are no

educational institutions; everybody
comes up against the problem of
children’s education and all that.

They are not able to retain good and
competent staff as they are always
wanting to go. Housing is, therefore,
difficult,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Who have to
provide all this?

SHRI B. B. LAL: Industry has to
provide most of the housing for officers
etc, except for local labour. These are
various difficulties. Now what is
happening is that in many cases where
sizeable industrial units are prepared
to go o the backward areas, they try
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to negotiate with the State Goverr.-
mnents. They tell them ‘lock here,
we are going to these areas. Will you
provide facilities like power? Of
course power supply is provided for
by the State Government. Power
cannot be provided by any private
industrialist. Will you have more and
more industrial housing schemes in
this area so that we can have some
housing accommodation for our
labourers and mechanics ete. going to

‘the cities? These have to be negotiated

upon with the State Government, 1
would submit that in the development
of backward areas in the industrial
field, unless the State Government
cooperates and is prepared to provide
a certain amount of infra-structural
facilities and certain other facilities
development of these areas is very
difficult. That is why we, from the
Planning Commission advise the State
Government, Of course it will not be
possible for any State Government to
provide for the infra-structural
facilities to the backward districts. We
have advised to select some focal
points in the backward area and each
State will select four or five backward
districts, They will provide various
facilities like electric power, roads and
various other facilities, railways
hospitals and so on. At least in focal
points, some facilities may be available
so that the industries may go there.
You will of course agree that the
development of the backward areas
is difficult all over the States in a
limited period of two, three or five
years. We are advocating for the
provision of infra-structural facilities
if the industries want to go to the
backward areas. For example, various
concessions like the income-tax con-
cession or sales tax concession and
concessional finances and so on have
been given. From the backward
experience which I have from the
State I can say that there are areas
in backward districts which have
been declared as such where some
facilities have been provided by the
State Government by way power etc.
If this is provided for one can see
the industries going there,



-

SURI VASANT SATHE: Are you
in favour of providing any disincen-
tive for concentration in concentrated
areas? Do you advise that also?

SHRI B. B. LAL: As you know,
the Maharashtra Government has
already provided some incentives for
the industries for moving out of
Bombay and Greater Bombay. Apart
from that I do not think it is possible
to move them. The problem has
become so acute enough really that
the State Governments or the local
administrations may have to be

induced to follow suit.

SHRI N. K, SANGHI: In spite of
infra-structural facilities, why the
industries are not coming up in
backward areas? Is it because of
certain inharent difficulties? In view
of this, should we not do something
radical to see that industries go to
the backward areas?

MR. CHAIRMAN: We  shall
consider it among ourselves. They
have yiven their viewpoints, And

we shall consider them. They seem
to feel that tax incentive is only one
of the measures they are adopting.
In a concerted bid they are making
for development of the backward
areas, an impact of it is not possible.
They can only avaluate ang assess
the totality of it. My last question
to you is this.

SHRT M. R. YARDI: At the time
of discussion if there are any specific
suggestions made for improving these

things we are prepared to consider
them.

SHRI UNNIKRISHNAN: 1 am
raising a point. On page 8, I find,
they have lef{ out mining and ship-
ping. Why is it so?

SHRI B. D, PANDE:
I think, was deliberately left out
because it had got to be in the
backward areas. Naturally mining
has got to be there. And therefore,
it has got to be left out.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But, what about
small crafts and fishing boats in the
backward ayeas?

Mining,
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SHRI M. R. YARDI: At the time
prepared to consider the small craft
and fishing boats.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Who are you
to consider it? It is before the
Committee. The Committee alone
will consider that,

SHRI M. R. YARDI,
have a closed mind.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Are you
going to think in terms of a pro-
gressive taxation as a package deal
for the development of backward
areas which should also include
‘disincentive for concentrated areas’
particularly, not having twin city?

We do not

SHRI M. R. YARDI: We cannot
have disincentives by way of tax
alone.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If shipping and
mines are taken to the backward
areas, they would not be able to get
this relief which you are giving.

SHRI M. R.” YARDI The main
thing is to give an incentive,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Schedule Nine
is to give initial depreciation to the
industries going to the backward
areas. These are expressly provided
for,

SHRI M. R. YARDI: The whole
purpose of these incentives is to
encourage an industries to .go to the
backward areas rather than the
advanced areas. Mining cannot go
to Bombay or Calcutta, But it has
got to go to the backward areas.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You cannot
carry coal to New Castle. What is
the rational for this to be there?

Honestly you are not going to work
it out. In other words you are
helpless when that argument has
been put up by Shri Pande. It does
not appeal to me at least. If it
appeals to the Committee, it is all
right.

Thank you Mr. Pande.
{The Committee then adjourned)



